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  At 97 JJ Owns thought he would take one last trip to pay his respects to fallen comrades. He didn’t see that the fates had other plans.



Introduction
For James J. Owens a return trip to the planet of Hades in the Death Gates System was to be his final farewell. At ninety seven, his doctors had told him his chances of surviving the trip were small. This did not deter him in the slightest. It would be his last great adventure and a chance to say good bye to fallen comrades. What he did not know at the time he left the planet that had been his home for the last thirty years what lay ahead of him.
Nor did the old Death Dealer know that deep within him lying dormant was an old friend just waiting a signal to reawaken. A wakening that would being not only a second chance in life, but what would become his greatest, and most rewarding adventure. He will face off against assassins, rogue military units, hostile planetary governments, and an all-out revolt against the Empire he swore to protect. All of these things are nothing compared to his greatest challenge.
No that pleasure belongs to dealing with first learning how to be a teenage girl, the Head of House for one of the most prominent High Families in the Empire, and having not one be Two very deferent Artificial Intelligence computers in her head. One is the original Death Dealer AI that all Death Dealers have, this Dee De a Mark one Omega/ Assault class Death Dealer AI with a hidden secret. One that will lead to James greatest adventure and second chance in life.
They say Death Dealers never retreat and never surrender. Their battle cry has been heard on thousands of worlds for over four hundred years. Can one of the most respected and feared of them, the man they called Death walk away? Or will the granddaughter he never had, rise up to calm the name of Death’s own Daughter?



Chapter 1
Planetfall
“Mr. Owens”
I hear the flight attendants’ voice calling to me in my sleep.
“Mr. Owens, wake up sir we are about to begin our drop into Space norm.”
I open my eyes and look up at her. “Thank you Alice. How long until we enter Space Norm?”
“About 15 min. till Space Norm sir.” Replied Alice with a smile
“How long to Planetfall following that?’ I asked.
“Well sir, I really don’t know. The Navigator has only just given us the warning for Sub-Space drop. He didn’t give an E.T.A. for Planetfall sir.”
“Thank you anyway. Is this your first time with this Navigator?”
“Yes sir. I normally only work the Tau Seti 5 run. This is my first time to Hades and the Death Gates system.”
“Well when you get planet side be sure to visit the Hall of Heroes and the Wall of Remembrance. It should be required for all of our young people to see them at least once. Those two places will give you a real understanding of what our race has gone though in the last 500 years.” I said, as I looked into her light blue eyes. Oh to be that young and innocent again. To not know of the travesties against our race and the lengths to which we were forced to go too just to have the right to exist. The bio-warriors, the Death Knights, the A.I. tanks, and finally the nano-tech enhanced Death Dealers... all those horrible means of warfare that were created right here on Hades.
“I certainly will sir. I have wanted to see both places since I was a little girl. You see I’m a military dependent and my Father fought in the last war with the Gorgon Empire as a member of the 295th Jump Infantry Division. He died on Cold Frost 7 at the battle of Free Port.” Said Alice.
“Well in that case child, I hope you enjoy your stay while you can” I replied with a smile.
A loud bell tone sounded three times letting everyone know we 5 min. to the drop to Space Norm. I sat up in my seat as Alice headed for her seat to strap in. I myself began to do the exact same thing. No one in their right mind wants to not be strapped in when the ship came out of Hyper-Fold Space. There have been too many accidents where people were found stuck half in and half out of bulk heads of space ships in the last 600 years, thanks to the Kennery-Fugi Jump engines. 
The transit between Space Norm and Hyper-Fold Space or back is the most dangerous time in this age of space travel. The only time when it’s more deadly is in the time of war when Jump points are targets of opportunity. The final warning comes and as usual my stomach decides to try and crawl up my throat. I hate Transit, like all vets. It brings back one too many memories. I watch as the walls begin to shimmer and glow, then fade to transparence, then to nothingness. 
Then I feel the whole universe and all its wonders. It always amazes me how I feel in this time. Like a God, all seeing, all knowing, and all powerful. It’s such a rush. Then comes the crash. I watch as the walls slam back into view. Feel the seat rush up to meet my back with a painful smack in the back side.
Ten minutes later the Navigator comes over the intercom 
“Attention all passengers do not remove your safety harness. Planetfall will commence in T -10 minutes. Thank you for your cooperation.”
Damn, that is quick. Normally we have at least 45 minutes to an hour before Planetfall. This joker must have come in close as all Hell to the planet, or he misjudged the Jump point. If I live though this I’m filling a complaint with the Guild of Navigator’s over this idiot. He definitely has been taking way too much Weed Juice. I know that they need it to be able to stay sane in Hyper-Fold Space but it does something to their brains where they don’t feel fear or even human after a while. 
I can feel the Steward K-905 Engines come on line. Their massive fusion energy plants powering up the mass drivers. It’s about to get hot back there in about 5mins. I look out my port window and see Hades down below and realize that we are in a combat drop glide path. This is going to be one rough ride down I know I’ve be though over 50 combat drops.
“Hang on people it’s going to get rough in about 2mins. Were on a combat drop glide path!” I yell out to my fellow passengers. There are about 25 of us in all told.
“WARNING! WARNING! INCOMING ATTACK CRAFT ON INTERCEPT COURSE! WARNING! WARNING!” comes the computers automatic warning.
With that I start looking for just what the AI is talking about. We’ve been at peace for the past 20 yrs. Then I see them coming at us from the Sunward side of the ship. Six Correllian fast attack corsairs’. 
They're small heavily armored and armed ships that can make the jump into Hyper-Fold space without having to have a mother ship transport them to the target system. In other words, they're perfect for pirates to use, and they use them to the fullest of their design. They decided to try and jump us at the normal J.P., but it seems the Navigator must have detected them there when it came time for our normal drop into Space Norm and decided to use a Steinway Jump Point instead. 
Now that I know what he does, I don’t think I’ll file that complaint. Hopefully that P.D.F. can get up here to give us some help.
“WARNING! WARNING! STAND BYE FOR ATMOSPHERE ENTRY IN 10,9,8,7,6,5,4,3,2,1 ATMOSPHERE ENTRY COMMENCING. WARNING! WARNING!” announced the ships AI.
Holy Hell! He must be pushing the 905s to the limit if we got this close in less than 10 minutes for us to already be breaking atmo this soon.
“WARNING! PASSENGER OWENS SUFFERING FOR ELEVATED HEART RATE AND BLOOD PRESSURE! WARNING POSSIBLE HEART ATTACK IN PROGRESS! Warning!” said the ships AI.
That’s when I felt it... the massive pain in my left arm and chest. No wonder I lost some time, I’ve been in and out of it for the last 10 minutes. I know that if we don’t get down soon I’m a dead man. I should have known better than to travel at my age. They say for every year over 70 you have a 5% chance of dying intransient. It goes up every year by 5% till at age 90 you stand a 90% chance of dying. At 96 years of age you would think that I would know better but I wanted one last look at the names of my brothers in arms names before I die. Well it doesn’t look like that’s going to happen.
D.D.A.I.: SYSTEM REBOOT: YES OR NO?
What the hell? That’s my nanotech system control. What’s it doing coming on line?
D.D.A.I: REPEAT: SYSTEM REBOOT: YES OR NO?
YES
D.D.A.I.: FULL SYSTEM REBOOT: 120 MINUTES, DEPLOYING NANOBOTS FOR REPAIR OF PRIMARY HOST UNIT. YES OR NO?
YES
D.D.A.I.: PRIMARY HOST CONFIGURATION BEYOND REPAIR LEVELS FOR MISSION PERAMETERS FOR CONCEALMENT. SUGEST SECONDARY CONFIGURATION? YES OR NO?
YES
What the hell? Maybe the old gale was only shut down to allow me to be able to go home after the war. I know that I’ve missed hearing Dee De for the past 70 years. It’s hard to believe that 70 years ago I was one of the most feared and respected soldiers ever know by the human race. A Death Dealer. 
Even the enemy feared and respected us. Everyone from all walks of life wanted to be a Death Dealer. But only 7 out of 100 ever got to be one. The reason was that most people couldn’t live with the idea of having a living computer in their heads and sharing their lives with them. Most washed out in the first test phase. 
After we got out the AIs were shut down to allow us to live a normal life. The problem was that a lot of us got used to having someone we could talk to without other people butting in. It sent a lot of Death Dealers insane and to the point of taking their own lives. So for Dee Deto suddenly start talking to me now must mean I’m dying. Oh well, I’ve had a good run. I’ll be seeing you soon guys. 
As I look around I realize it’s getting dark. Well I guess it won’t be long now I think. As the darkness overtakes me, the pain in my chest eases up and the pain in my left arm goes away.

Flight Officer Alice R. Lee
I sit back and watch helplessly as Mr. Owens has a heart attack, knowing that there nothing I can do while the ship is in evasive maneuvers. I have to think about the other 24 passengers for they will need me when, or I should say IF, we get down on the ground. I send a quick prayer up to the Gods of space travel that we make it down in one piece and one for Mr. Owens.
Please God if you can hear me and if you’re real, save us from these monsters and protect Mr. Owens until we can get him to the hospital. He’s seen enough pain and death in his life. Amen.
As I look over one last time, I have to fight to keep from screaming. Mr. Owens is covered in some kind of webbing that’s rapidly encasing him from head to toe. It looks like a cocoon. It is getting thicker by the second.
“WARNING PREPARE FOR EMERGENCY BRAKING! ALL HANDS PREPARE FOR EMERGENCY LANDING!” announced the ships AI.
“Hang on everyone! We will be on the ground in less than 5 minutes. Make sure all of your harnesses are tight and all carry-on luggage is secure.” I yell out to all the passengers.
I can feel the big K-905s giving full power to move the massive ship through the atmosphere of Hades. The planetary flight wings are still deploying. Once they’re out we will be able to fly like a real aircraft.
Come on! Come on, deploy already you sorry fracking pieces of shit! Come on!
As I sit here, I understand how my dad, uncles, and granddads felt in those horrible times when they had to brave the fires of hell that were known as anti-ship fire as they approached their drop zones during the wars. I now can honestly say that they were without a doubt in my mind truly brave. Because I can say with surety that right now I’m scared out of my mind, and we are not even being shot at. 
I look over at Mr. Owens one last time and see that he is now completely encased by what appears to be a solid cocoon of ship hull metal. I laugh to myself and think that if we do crash he will most likely be the only one to survive. Hull metal is one of the toughest alloys known to mankind.
All of sudden I feel the ship jump upward. I look and see the atmo-wings have deployed. We’re no longer on a controlled crash course, we are flying. None too soon for my taste, but at least we’ll make it down in one piece nice and softly instead of hard and loud. I can see the space port in the distance and the P.D.F. rising to take on the pirates in the corsairs’. I hope they frag the fracking pigs.
“Attention! We will be landing in 2 minutes. Please wait until the flight attendants release you from your harness before departing the craft” announced the Navigator over the intercom.
I sit back and calm my nerves, waiting for the ship to land and come to a complete stop before moving. At least we’re down in one piece with all passengers healthy.
Oh shit! Mr. Owens!　 I look over and realize that we are going to need heavy duty tools to get him out. I grab the inter ship com set and call the Navigator.
“Mike we got a problem back here and I need a direct line to the port.”
“Why do you need to talk to the port Alice?”
“One of the passengers is going to need medical help ASAP when we get to the concourse.”
“What are you talking about I have 25 in the green up here on the readouts for passengers.”
“Look again you Weed popping nut case! I’m looking at one of our passengers who is encased in what looks to be hull metal.”
“Did you say encased in hull metal Alice?”
“Yes I did. And no I haven’t been into your Time Weed Juice. You know that crap gives me the hives.”
“Okay. Okay already I’ll get you that line to the port.”
As I wait for the connection I look over at Mr. Owens one last time. I can’t believe what I’m seeing the cocoon is shrinking. Before it was as big as Mr. Owens, now it’s about ¾ of that size and getting smaller.
“This is Hades Port Control. How may I be of help to you?” came over the headset at time.
“Yes. This is flight officer Alice Lee we need Medical and Engineering to meet the ship at the terminal please.” I respond.
“Can you state why you need Medical please ma’am?”
“Hum ... It’s hard to say. I can’t really say what’s wrong with the passenger.”
“Why is that ma’ am?”
“Look I don’t know what the problem is because I can’t get to the passenger. He’s encased in some type of cocoon by what looks like hull metal.”
“Ma’ am did you say cocooned in hull metal?”
“Yes.”
“What is the passengers name please?”
“Mr. James Jessie Owens sir. “
“Did you say Commander J.J. Owens?”
“I guess. I know that he’s a veteran, but he never gave any rank so I don’t know if that’s him or not.”
“Navigator can you open your passenger monitoring program and pip it to the tower.”
“Aye control” replied Mike.
“Okay, getting the feed now. Oh bloody HELL!” screamed the tower control. “We have a live D.D.A.I. on board that ship! Stop at the end of the strip and deploy your emergency ramps and get everyone off that ship including the Navigator and all flight crew! Keep everyone away from that cocoon! Do you understand?”
What the hell? I’ve never heard of a port control to give an order like that one.
“Say again control. Did you say everyone, including the Navigator?” came Mike’s response.
I know I was wondering the same thing. Navigators never left their ships except as a last resort.
“You heard me the first time! Now Do As You Are Ordered To Do!”
“Aye aye sir. Alice you heard the man now get everyone ready and keep them away from that cocoon.”
“Yes Mike”
I started getting everyone out of their harnesses and moving toward the emergency exits. Mike brought the ship to a stop at the end of the runway. I popped the E-release on the door letting it fall away from the ship releasing the emergency slides deploy. I hated leaving Mr. Owens behind, but I had others that were depending on me. Looking toward the front of the ship I see Mike’s slide has deployed and he is on his way down. I can tell he’s going to need help so I head down the slide and run forward to help him up off the ground. Navigators have very poor muscle development in their legs because they rarely leave the cockpits of their ships. Most die inside the cockpit of their ship, never marrying or having a family. They truly are loners who are married to their ships. So getting one to leave their ship truly takes every extraordinary circumstance.

Meanwhile back on board the ship in the passenger section
D.D.A.I: SYSTEM REBOOT: 15% COMPLETE C.O.B.R.A.SYSTEM 2% COMPLETE 
ARMORED SKIN: 9% COMPLETE 
PRIMARY WEAPONS SYSTEMS: 1% REPAIRED 
SECONDARY WEAPONS SYSTEM: 10% REPAIRED 
TOTAL TIME TO FULL SYSTEMS REPAIR AND REBOOT WITH SECONDARY CONFIGURATION 100 MINUTES
Is that really you Dee De? Are you really there? Or have I finally lost my mind?
No J.J. you have not lost your mind. I really am here. And yes it is me. Your favorite AI.
I thought you were decommissioned 56yrs ago? Where have you been?
No I was not decommissioned. I was placed in a hibernation mode till you died then I would have shut down completely and joined you in death.
But where have you been? So many times I wished you were there to help me when I had a problem, but never got a response from you?
I was always here;you just could not access me due to the restrictions that were put in place by the Military High Command. 
Did they give you the reason behind locking me and the others out from their AIs’?
Yes, but you’re not going to like the answer.
I’m waiting.
The High Command was afraid that if they turned the Death Dealers loose with operating AIs you would try to take over the ruling Government in a coup’.
In other words they didn’t trust us to go quietly.
To not put tosharp of a point on it, YES.  
Thanks Dee De. I could always count on you to give it to me straight.
D.D.A.I: SYSTEM REBOOT: 33% COMPLETE　C.O.B.R.A.: SYSTEM 22% COMPLETE 
ARMORED SKIN: 29% COMPLETE 
PRIMARY WEAPONS SYSTEMS: 31% REPAIRED 
SECONDARY WEAPONS SYSTEM: 41% REPAIRED 
TOTAL TIME TO FULL SYSTEMS REPAIR AND REBOOT WITH SECONDARY CONFIGURATION 75 MINUTES
Hum, hey Dee De? What’s up with the system repair and reboot info that keeps coming up?
J.J. that’s me coming back on line.
But what about all these other systems? I don’t remember a secondary configuration, C.O.B.R.A., armored skin, primary and/or secondary weapons systems?
All of these systems were kept from you and the other Death Dealers as they were a last resort configuration that would have been deployed if the war turned against the human race and defeat was imminent.
So just what does this configuration look like anyway?
You’ll know and so will I when we’re done with the repair and reboot.
WHAT?! You don’t know what we’ll look like!?
Hum… How do I say this? Yes?
GREAT! JUST FRACKING GREAT! With my luck we’ll need up looking like the terminator from that ancient 2d flick on the late, late, late show.
Hee hee hee
DON’T Laugh! Do you want to be known as a cast iron bastard for the rest of our lives?
Owww I don’t like that possibility. Knowing the High Command that could have happened. But I doubt it if you look at the PRIMARY PARAMETERS you will see that it is designed to make us blend in with the local population.
True it wouldn’t do for us to stand out. But what is the basis for its look? Can you access the data that program is using?
Let’s see. Yes. Hold one please. While I get the info up in a format for you to use. Here it comes now. 
	   Hair Color
	   Eye Color
	   Height
	   Weight
	   Sex
	   Race

	   Blond 25%
	   Blue 39%
	   180cm 81%
	   88kg 95%
	   Male 31%
	   White 22%

	    
	    
	   163cm 67%
	   56kg 81%
	   Female 69%
	    

	   Black 65%
	   Green 21%
	   165cm 91%
	   68kg 84%
	   Male 28%
	   Asian 40%

	    
	    
	   152cm 92%
	   47kg 89%
	   Female 72%
	    

	   Brown 15%
	   Brown 17%
	   173cm 68%
	   170lbs 72%
	   Male 21%
	   African 20%

	    
	    
	   157cm 71%
	   110lbs 81%
	   Female 79%
	    

	   White 100%
	   Pearl 100%
	   168cm 91%
	   155lbs 81%
	   Male 37%
	   Elf 18%

	    
	    
	   150cm 92%
	   95lbs 77%
	   Female 67%
	    


　             It looks like the program scanned the local planet populace records for Hades Dee De.
It sure does. And if I’m looking at this right I should be able to come up with an approximate representation of what we will look like.
Well do it already. I want to know what we might look like.
Just wait a minute I’m working it as fast as I can. I want to know what we’ll look like too you know.
                                                        
      D.D.A.I.: DISPLAY OF SECONDARY      D.D.A.I.: DISPLAY OF SECONDARY
      HOST CONFIGURATION # 1 22 %          HOST CONFIGURATION # 2 40%
                                                                      
D.D.A.I.: DISPLAY OF SECONDARY              D.D.A.I.: DISPLAY OF SECONDARY 
HOST CONFIGURATION #3 20%                    HOST CONFIGURATION #4 22%
Hum … JJ I think that we are going to wind up looking like a teenage girl for some ancient anomie cartoon for around the early 21st century
OH SHIT!!!! Is there any way to stop this from happening? I really don’t want to be a teenage girl!　 Let me look at the program code. I might be able to do something.
D.D.A.I.: SCANNING SECONDARY REBOOT 
*****
D.D.A.I.: SCANNING REPAIR PROGRAM FOR SECONDARY REBOOT
*****
D.D.A.I.: SCAN COMPLETE
J.J. I’ve dug through the whole program for the repair and reboot. You are not going to like the answer.
Spit it out already. We’re stuck like this right? One of the four configurations that you pulled up right?
Yup. You got it in one. Must likely number two since, from the looks of things, it has the highest percentage rating.
D.D.A.I: SYSTEM REBOOT: 91% COMPLETE 
C.O.B.R.A.: SYSTEM 87% COMPLETE 
ARMORED SKIN: 90% COMPLETE 
PRIMARY WEAPONS SYSTEMS: 98% REPAIRED 
SECONDARY WEAPONS SYSTEM: 96% REPAIRED 
TOTAL TIME TO FULL SYSTEMS REPAIR AND REBOOT WITH SECONDARY CONFIGURATION 10 MINUTES
I don’t believe this 96 years as a man I’m about to be turned into a teenage girl because of some stupid assed fail safe program that was installed in my combat AI over 78 years ago, but that isn’t the real kicker. Oh no! It’s the fact that there has never been a female Death Dealer in all of history. This alone will be something that is most definitely going to get the attention of the High Command. I just know they’re going to want to study my ass. The thought of becoming a lab rat for some ignorant scientist is not something I’m looking forward to.

90 minutes earlier... outside of the ship
Flight Officer Alice R. Lee
I stand back and watch as first as P.D.F. troops surround the ship, then the MED. Corps teams board the ship in Tactical Med. Power Suits. That is never a good sign when it comes to emergency response teams. If they’re in Power Suits that means whatever is happening to Mr. Owens can be deadly. But then again Tower Control had us evacuate the crew and passengers. I hope he is going to be ok.

90 minutes earlier... outside of the ship
Medical Officer, Cpt. David Huston
I think back to the orders I received from the Tower as I lead my team on board the ship. I still can’t believe that there is a fully active Death Dealer A.I. on board this ship that no one knew about. I mean those God awful things were outlawed for a reason. I mean the primary configuration was bad enough, but the minute their secondary came on line it was 100 times worse. I just hope that this host hasn’t begun its secondary configuration cocoon. If it has this could get hairy in a heartbeat.
“Moore, do they know which seat the Death Dealer was in? And who they are?” I ask my second in command and Intel. Officer.
“Yes sir. He was in seat B05. As for who he is will that’s a little complicated.” Came Moore‘s reply.
“What do you mean by ‘complicated’?”
“Well sir, the High Command is blocking all our request for information on the passenger. They say that all information on Owens, James J. Commander is classified as TOP SECRET EYES ONLY sir.”
“WHAT THE HELL DO YOU MEAN!? TOP SECRET EYES ONLY! We need to know just what we’re dealing with HERE!”
“Sir, they say that Commander Owens has an Omega Class security level and we are to wait until they have an Intel Security Officer here before we do anything.”
“Great. Just FRACKING GREAT! Do our friends’ over in Intel. Security have any clue as to when they’ll be here?”
“No sir. “
“Well I’m not waiting for them. If we have a secondary configuration going with this Death Dealer we need to know now, not tomorrow or the day after.”
“But sir...”
“Don’t but me. You hear me, we’re going in NOW!”
“Sir, YES Sir.”
“Ok boys and girls time to put on your big kid pants.”
I started towards the section of the ship where the passengers stayed during transit, with every sensor on full. We didn’t know what we’ll find. But I know one thing if we find a fully functional, Second stage Death Dealer, we are in real deep shit if it’s in combat mode. Those things kill any thing that gets in their way. That’s why they were banned for a reason. They’re totally uncontrollable. Not to mention dammed near unstoppable. Then I see it and my worst fears are realized. Owens is in full secondary cocoon mode. At least he hasn’t broken out yet. That means we have time to get it off the ship and to a secured site.
“Ok folks this is what we’re going to do. Moore, take Jones, Hall, Simmons, and Stone with you and remove all the seats and halls between here and the exit. Me, Turner, Hill, Backmayer, and Casey will get to work on separating the cocoon from the ship. Once we have that done we’ll move it to the number 12 hanger bay over in the old military section of the port. Any questions?”
“Just one sir.” Said tech 1 Backmayer.
“What is it Stephanie?”
“Just what is that thing?”
I could hear the fear in her voice and I didn’t blame her. She was scared. “That, Tech.1 Backmayer, is a Death Dealer in what is known as a secondary cocoon. It’s what they enter before their secondary configuration. Which why we need to be beyond careful while we work around it. It’s also why they evacuated the Navigator and the whole crew and passengers. Whatever you do, don’t piss this thing off. Clear?”
“Hum… sir why do you keep calling Cmdr. Owens a thing?”
“Because every Secondary Configuration Death Dealer I’ve run into was 100% crazy. I don’t know what happens to them in those cocoons but we know when they come out, 99 times of 100, all they are is a killing machine with no humanity left in them.”
“Good Lord! Who in the name of all the GODS came up with that idea?”
“Your great and powerful High Command, as a last ditch endeavor to stop the Pan Galactic Empire 80yrs ago, and then the Gorgon Empire 25yrs ago. The Death Dealers were some of the most respected and feared warriors to ever come down the line, but when people heard about the secondary configuration and how deadly it was, all Death Dealers were discharged and had their AIs decommissioned.”
“Then how did his get reactivated?”
“That’s what was never told to the public. The AIs couldn’t be shut down completely without killing the Death Dealers. So the AIs were placed into a deep hibernation mode, locking out the Dealers from all of their weapons and armor and making them no different than you or I.”
“Oh that seems practical.”
“It is. Now let’s get to work. I figure we have about 70mins. Before he wakes up.”
“Sir yes sir.”
I don’t say it out loud but I hope and pray we have that long. I don’t want to be any were near this thing when Owens wakes and comes on line. Too often the human mind doesn’t handle the radical changes that have occurred to their bodies, driving them insane. Then there’s the other extreme, where the host’s brain is dead and the only thing controlling the body is an AI that is programed for combat and search and destroy missions. Please God; let’s be in time to get this thing off the plane and to the Military Hangar in time.

55mins later... outside the ship
Flight Officer Alice R. Lee
I can’t believe the Med. Corps is keeping us out here on the tarmac like this. I mean the sun is getting ready to set, and once it’s down the temp will fall like a rock around here. Hades is known for its blazing heat during the day and freezing cold nights. If we don’t get inside soon the passengers, not mention the crew, will begin to suffer from exposure. As I’m thinking about this I hear the whine of a hover truck coming this way. When I look to see what is going on I see one of the big Military Heavy Duty Hover Transport trucks moving towards the ship. This is getting scary. First the MED. Crops personnel in Combat Power Suits now an H.D.H.T. truck. What in the name of all that’s Holy is going on?
“Excuse me, are you Flight Officer Lee?”
I turn to see a young Captain with the Military Intelligence Security Office standing behind me. “Yes I am. How can I help you Captain?”
“I’m Cpt. Howard with Military Intelligence Security. I understand that you were talking to Commander Owens just before the drop into Space Norm and the attack is that correct?”
“Yes it is. Why?”
“Did he by chance say why he was coming here to Hades?”
“No. Why is that important?”
“What did you talk about?”
“He asked me if I have ever been to the Hall of Heroes and the Wall of Remembrance. Why? Is that important?”
“Do you know if he was taking any meds during the flight out here?”
“No he wasn’t taking anything. It would have been on his flight registration if he was. Why?”
“Thank you for answering my questions.” And he started to turn away . 
“Hey BUTTHEAD you want to answer my questions?”
“Officer Lee you are not cleared to know the answers to those questions.”
“I suggest you look again, but this time run the name of reserve Officer Major Alice Rachael Lee s.n. 997-89-5775 P.D.F. Intel. Security Earth Prime. Captain.”
“Excuse me ma’am?”
“YOU HEARD ME! Now do your job and run the info I just gave you.” I watch as the little pain in my ass did exactly as I told him. It was fun seeing the color drain from his face as he realized his mistake. He should have run background checks on everyone here, but I could tell he only did it on the passengers by the look on his face.
“Hum… Ma’am, I’m sorry. I didn’t realize that you were a reserve Officer of Intel. Security.”
“Look you made a mistake by not doing full background checks on everyone here, but I’ll let that go because I didn’t identify myself. How about we start over. Maj. Alice Lee of Earth prime Intel. Security at your service. How can I help you Cpt. Howard?”
“Thank you ma’am. I won’t make that mistake ever again, but to answer your questions, did you know that Mr. Owens is Commander J.J. Owens of the 1st Battalion 1st Brigade 101st Division Death Dealers of Earth Prime Military High Command?”
“GOOD GOD NO! If I did I would have reported that to High Command first thing before leaving Sol Quadrant.”
“Ma’am he is one of the very first Death Dealers and he is an Omega/ Assault class commander at that.”
“OH DEAR GOD! HOW, IN THE NAME OF THE OF ALL THE GODS THERE ARE, DID HE GET ON MY SHIP WITHOUT THROWING UP EVERY RED FLAG KNOWN TO MAN!?”
“That’s what I’m trying to find out ma’am”
“Ok. I can deal with that. Now what’s up with the H.D.H.T. and the Med.Tecs. being in Power Suits?”
“Well ma’am it seems that Owens has entered what is known as a secondary configuration cocoon. What the higher ups are afraid of is that the Commander will in his secondary configuration, go on a rampage because he has lost his mind, or that he is brain dead and the AI is controlling the new Death Dealer and it goes on a killing rampage. Either way they’ll have to destroy the Commander. That’s why the Med, techs are in Power Suits and there is an H.D.H.T. here to transport the cocoon to the old Military Hanger at the other end of the Port.”
“How much time do they have left?”
“At the outside, 35mins; on the inside, who knows? He could wake any minute now ma’am.”
“Thank you Cpt. Let me know if you need me for anything. Right now I have to get the rest of my passengers inside before nightfall.”
“Yes ma’am” He gives me a salute which I return and walks away. As I stand there I think to myself that this day just keeps getting better and better. The good news just keeps coming. I look around and spot who I’m looking for and head that way. I really need to get these people inside or our problems are going to get worse. Half way to where I need to be I hear the H.D.H.T. fire up and roll away from the ship toward the Military Hangers on the other side of the Port. With a heavy sigh and a silent prayer for Cmd. Owens I turn back to the task at hand.

One hour and 45mins after landing
Cpt. David Huston
I and my team quickly, but carefully, get the cocoon out of the ship and onto the H.D.H.T. As I look at my team I can tell that they’re all relieved to be done with this job. I really can't blame them as nobody likes handling live explosives. That’s what it felt like while dealing with that cocoon. Waiting for it crack open and praying it didn’t.
The strange thing about this one was, it kept getting smaller and smaller as we worked to remove it from the ship. By the time we were ready to move it, it was only 5 and half feet long, 2 and a half feet wide and maybe 200lbs total weight. When we first got here the thing was about 6 feet long, 4feet wide and weighed maybe 450lbs total. “Hey Lt. did that cocoon look bigger when first got here?”
“Yes sir it did. I thought it was just me, but I would swear on all the Holy Books known to man and alien alike that it was shrinking.”
“I’d be right there with you Lt. so don’t sweat it. Maybe the tech Heads over at that Hanger can make sense of it.”
“I’m just glad they get to deal with it and not us, sir.”
“Amen Lt. Amen. Alright people let’s hit the locker room and get out of these suits and hit the showers.”
“YES SIR.” They all shout. Glad to be getting out of the suits. Power Suits are wonderful tools, but after a few hours in one they tend to get to be a little ripe and they begin to rub in places one doesn’t want to have rubbed raw.

Commander J.J. Owens inside the cocoon
D.D.A.I: SYSTEM REBOOT: 100% COMPLETE 
C.O.B.R.A.: SYSTEM 100% COMPLETE 
ARMORED SKIN: 100% COMPLETE 
PRIMARY WEAPONS SYSTEMS: 100% REPAIRED 
SECONDARY WEAPONS SYSTEM: 100% REPAIRED 
TOTAL TIME TO FULL SYSTEMS REPAIR AND REBOOT WITH SECONDARY CONFIGURATION 0 MINUTES 
TOTAL SYSTEM RECONFIGURE COMPLETE 
HOST RECONFIGURE COMPLETE 
PRIMARY WEAPON ON LINE: PARTICLE PROJECTION CANNON RIGHT ARM 
SECONDARY WEAPON ON LINE: PLASMA LASER LEFT ARM 
ARMORED SKIN COVERAGE: FROM NECK DOWN TOTAL 
C.O.B.R.A.: COMPUTER OPERATED BATTLEFIELD REFLEX ACTION ON LINE 
FULL INTEGRATION SECONDARY CONFIGURATIUON: 
HIGHEST PROBABILITY FOR SUCCESS HOST CONFIGURATION #2
Well Dee De, shall we take a look at what we look like?
J.J. I hate to tell you this but that status report is not complete. 
What’s missing, my dear lady? You know I hate surprises. What else does this new body of ours come with?
I think it would be best that I just show you in a printout.
D.D.A.I.: FULL PRINTOUT OF SECONDARY CONFIGURATION 
PRIMARY WEAPON ON LINE: PARTICLE PROJECTION CANNON RIGHT ARM 
SECONDARY WEAPON ON LINE: PLASMA LASER LEFT ARM 
ARMORED SKIN COVERING 
C.O.B.R.A. O.S. CLOSE QUARTERS COMBAT CLAWS L&R ARMS 
JUMP ASSIST JETS L&R LOWER BACK 
SONIC DISRUPTERS L&R UPPER CHEST 
ANTI PERSONNEL LASERS L&R INDEX AND LITTLE FINGERES 
TRACTION ASSIST PADS IN BOTH PALMS OF HANDS AND SOLES OF FEET 
STRAIGHT ASSIST UP TO 4500LBS 
SPEED ASSIST 85MPH CRUSE 110MPH BURST 
COMBAT CONTROL COMMUNICATION CENTER ACCESS LEVEL 5 INTER NET ACCESS 
UNLIMITED RADAR DETECTION AND TARGETING 360 DEGREES 
END OF LINE………….
Oh sweet Mary Mother of God! What the Hell did that reboot do to us?
Well if I had to guess I would say that it turned us into an almost perfect infiltration/insurgent unit.
What the frack do you mean GUESS? Are you or aren’t you the AI in charge here? Or is the cobra o.s. in change?
YES, I’m in charge, but during the reboot you gave total control over to the secondary system for the REBOOT you bone head. So I had no control over how we turned out.
Oh!!! Sorry Hun I didn’t know that I gave total control to the secondary system for the REBOOT. Forgive me?
Ok you're forgiven. Now do you want to see what you look like?
Don’t you mean what WE look like?
Hum… J.J. I think I need to tell you something. We are currently being held in a level 9 Military Hanger on the backside of Hades Space Port Prime. It seems that the Military and Civilian authorities are afraid that I’m the one controlling this body and have surrounded us with 4 Mark 21 Marauder Power Armor units, all fully armed and piloted by some of their best troops.
BLOODY HELL!! You have got to be kidding me?
I wish I was. Even with all the new upgrades there is no way I can take on that much firepower and survive.
What is their problem with us that they have Mark 21s chomping at the bit to blast us into little bitty pieces?
I’ve been scanning the net since we got here to figure that out. I now have the answer. It seems that some of the later Death Dealers entered their secondary configurations in the last war, but when they exited their cocoons they became blind killing machines because either the host went crazy, or the AI took over because the host was brain dead. They killed everything around them, enemy and friendly alike. High Command was forced to destroy all secondary configuration Death Dealers because they were uncontrollable.
Sweat Holy Hanna no wonder they’re not taking any chances. So I take it I should not mention you or the c.o.b.r.a. O.S.?
Got it in one again J.J.
Ok. Let’s pop the shell. And deal with the fans.
D.D.A.I.: COCOON SEPARATION IN T -10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 SEPARATION COMMENESING
I can hear and feel the air rushing in around me. For the first time in almost 30yrs. I can actually smell the air and feel it on my skin. My God how I’ve missed that simple feeling. With some trepidation I push up on the top half of the cocoon. Once it’s out of the way I stand up slowly with my hands raised above my head. I look around at the Marauders and shudder, as those four monsters pack enough fire power to give a minor God a hard time.
“Hi guys. Do you mind if I step out of the bottom half of this cocoon?”
“Identify yourself!” came the reply.
“James Jessie Owens “
“Identify yourself! Name, Rank, Service Number, and unit.”
“LOOK! You over rated, tin plated asshole! I’m retired! I don’t have a rank, s.n., or unit anymore. All I have is a name and s.s.n.”
“I repeat! Name, Rank, Service Number, and Unite.” at which point all four Mark 21s leveled their main guns at me.
Well my momma didn’t raise any dummies.
“Alright already! Owens James J., Commander, s.n.297-54-8898, 1st Battalion, 1st Brigade, 101st Division, Death Dealers of Earth Prime Military High Command asshole. Now that you know that I’m a Cmdr. you can tell me exactly who I’m dealing with.”
“Sorry Cmdr., but we had our orders not to let you move from that spot until you identified yourself. I’m Captain Mark Howard of the P.D.F. Hades Intel. Security sir. I’ve been told that I’m to inform you that you have been recalled to active duty until further notice.”
“Ok I can deal with that but you want to do me a favor and POINT THOSE GOD DAMNED CANNONS AWAY FROM ME!!”
“SIR! YES! SIR!”
“Thank you. It was beginning to make me jumpy. Now is there a mirror around here were I can get a look at new myself.”
“Yes sir. Over in the ready room.”
I just nod my head and walk over to the door to the ready room. As I walk in I see the mirror over on the far wall, along with the usual things one would find in a pilots ready room. Coffee pot, chairs, Map board, and duty roster. I start to walk over to the mirror when Dee Degives me a heads up display to navigate by. Dee De why did you put up the heads-up-display?
Because you didn’t turn on the lights. So unless you want to trip over something in here you better turn on the lights.
Then how can I see everything in here already?
That’s the 360 radar that’s painting all possible targets and giving you a visual display of what’s there. 
Oh. Well I guess I better turn on the lights then. With that I turn around and flip the light switch. With the lights on I ahead over to the mirror and get a real good look at my NEW body.
                                                        
One look is all it takes for me to get the full effect of the changes. One thought keeps running thought my head. I look like my deceased daughter when I last saw her. Okay I’m going to need a bat and a gun. Looking like I do every horny male within 100 miles is going to be chasing me.
Hey Dee De is that really us?
Hun, I’ve never lied to you before, even when you wanted me to so hey, that’s US!
OH SHIT. THIS DAY CAN’T GET ANY WORSE!
Hum… JJ
Hay what?
The local General of the P.D.F. and High Command Rep. just showed up and is demanding to see you. 
So I’ve dealt with H.C. Reps and P.D.F. Generals before. 
It’s his Honorable Lord, High Marshall General Alexander Wellington Stonewall.
Did I just say this day can’t get any worse? Well it just did.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 2
Stonewall
Hum… JJ 
Hay what?
Sir Alexander Wellington Stonewall of all the Jack legged, knee jerk, pig headed, egotistical ass hats for me to run into here on Hades HE is not one of my favorites. How in the Nine Gates of Hell did he get appointed to the top spot for the Military on Hades? He sent a whole A.C.R. to their deaths on Free Port at the Battle of Four Points. He knew it was suicide. All those poor kids had were Mark 17 AI tanks, M2A9 Bradly’s’, and Ju-58 Stuka attack hellos’. Up against 3 Divisions of Harkconien Heavy Assault troops. Not even Death Dealers would take on that without Drop Ship and orbital station K.K. (Kinetic Kill) support.  If it wasn’t for him my daughter would still be alive and so would her husband. They were both assigned to the 4th Squadron of the 3rd A.C.R. its air support Squadron. They were due to get the new at that time AH-60 attack hellos’, but funding problems and construction delays prevented their arrival. Then you add in the shipping delays for the rest of the Regiment and it left them woefully unprepared for the battlefield. No way were they even close to being able to take on what they did. The more I think about that F.U.B.A.R. command the madder I become. There a loud click and a target sight pops up on a heads up display with the words primary and secondary weapons on line tracking for primary target General Alexander Stonewall. Target located distance 29.7 meters at 273 degrees from current location.
JJ Hun you need to calm down here. You can’t kill the Lord High Marshall.
What are you talking about Dee De?
JJ look in the mirror. Look at your arms both the primary and secondary weapons have deployed and you have a hard lock on the H.M. get a hold of yourself.
Holly SHIT!!! Where did those come from? From the backs of my fore arms sticking out of what can only miniature be docking bays are a miniature P.P.C. and P.L.G. My God if those deployed because I was pissed what would happen if I had been in a blind rage? That kind of fire power unleashed with no one in control would terrify any sane humane. I take a few deep breaths and called up all of my old training methods from when I was a young man. As I slowing regain control of my anger the heads up display and targeting lock disappear. The calmer I become the more control I gain over the D.D.A.I. systems most importantly the C.O.B.R.A. Operations system. I quickly ask Dee De a question about the C.O.S.
Dee De did the C.O.B.R.A. system just take over?
I think so. It looks like that program is activated by strong or powerful emotions such as anger hate and fear. If I had to make a guess that system was designed to come on line when we lose control or if it looks like we are in danger of losing a fight. Since the H.M. is out there with 4 Mark 24 Marauders that currently are out fitted with rail guns and P.P.C.s there would be no way for us to win under normal circumstances the C.O.S. took over and started planning how to achieve its goals.
ARE YOU TELLING ME THAT FOR ME OR YOU TO STAY INCONTROL OF THIS BODY OF OURS I HAVE TO STAY CLAM!?
Hum… will… Hum…UH…Yes.
I see the heads up display come back on line with the radar tracking/targeting showing 9 possible targets on my six o’clock position. With a deep inhale fallowed by a long exhale I force myself to calm down again. I can’t get upset I have to remain in control until I can get Dee De to figure out a way to override that dammed cobra O.S.. After a few more minutes of this I feel more in control of my emotions I turn around and head for the door and the hanger beyond. I really would rather go and get a beer than go in there but I know that if I don’t those fools will try and force me and the situation. If they were to do that it could …no would get really hairy and ugly quick, fast, and a hairy, of that I’ve no doubt.
As I step out into the hanger I’m greeted by the sight of those four monsters with all that fire power and a chill runs down my spine leave me with a real deep down bowl gripping sense of fear. Hell anyone would have that if they know that those monsters were there just for them. They stand 15ft tall weight in at 80tons and are armed with 1 M17 120mm rail gun, 1 k12 120mm Practical projection Canon, 2 M24 Bushmaster 35mm chain guns, and 2 15 round 2.7 in rock pods. Like I said before enough fire power to give a minor God a hard time. The fact that they have four of these bad boys here to keep an eye on me is really quite impressive as well as disturbing.
                                                        
“HALT! DO NOT COME ANY FURTHER! IF YOU ATTEMP TO DO SO WE WILL OPEN FIRE!” came from the Mark 21 in the middle just behind the High Marshall. This guy definitely had my undivided attention. I really need to get a handle on what’s going on around here.
I decide to pull the old get pissed off officer and make an ass out of myself “HEY! Dumb ass if you think I’m going to stand over 80ft away and try to hold a conversation with the High Marshall your out of your pea pinking mind!”
“DO NOT COME ANY FURTHER! THIS BY THE COMMAMND OF THE LORD HIGH MARSHALL GENERAL ALEXANDER STONWALL”
With a look of total disbelief on my face. “OF all the stupid stunts’ you’ve pulled Alex this one takes the cake. Captain Howard just over 20mins ago you informed me that I was recalled back to active duty  by who’s authority did that order come from?” This joker can’t be for real can he?
“SIR IT CAME FROM EARTH PRIME MILITRAY HIGH COMMAND SIR.”
“In other words it didn’t come from Gen. Stonewall correct?” I asked sweetly playing up to my appearance.
“YES SIR!”
Oh boy oh boy with that order and its confirmation it just changed the ball game and Stoney ain’t goanna like it one fracking bit. “That’s what I thought. By High Command order 801b sub section 5 as puritans to combat personnel in the field under unusual circumstances I am assuming command. Authorization Delta 7 2 1 9 Beta 6 Code word Hell Fire understood.” I ordered with all the sweetness I could muster at this time. For some strange reason I have a feeling that before long I’m going to get better at being this cute little girly-girl that I appear to be. A whole lot better.
After what felt like the better part of an hour but more like 5 minutes Cpt.  Howard finally said over his load speaker “AUTHORIZATION... APPROVED! …WHAT ARE YOUR ORDERS COMMANDER OWENS?”
“Post up outside the hanger and keep the civilians away for now. You are not authorized to use deadly force unless fired upon first. Am I clear on that?” I know that last bit wasn’t needed but I felt I should make really clear that I didn’t want a fire fight if it could be avoided. 
“YES SIR. LOUD AND CLEAR.”
“Just what do you think you’re doing? I’m the one in charge here!” screamed Stonewall at the top of his voice. ”You will not leave this area do you understand me. That thing is not the one in charge. Do you hear me?”
“Sorry sir but the commander’s codes and authorizations supersede any and all planetary authority. Both civilian and military sir.” Was the captain’s reply through his loudspeaker.
“What!?” Screamed Stonewall in total disbelief. 
“He said that you are no longer the top dog around here Alex you ignorant shit now shut the frack up and listen. Before I have you arrested thrown in the brig charged with insubordination.” I have to get control here or its goanna get crazy around here real quick. What I wouldn’t give for a cup of coffee and a smoke right now to help calm my nerves. I know they always helped back in my younger days.
He stood there and watched as the Marauders walk out of the hanger with a look like someone just kicked his puppy. I couldn’t help it I started to laugh at this poor excuse of an officer. Will it was more of a giggle but I just couldn’t help it. All this time he thought that no one but no one could override him from the Military except the High Command on Earth Prime. He definitely didn’t expect a lowly Commander to be able to do it. “Will now that that’s taken care of. Why don’t we get down to business shall we?”
“Just who the Hell are you?” came Stonewalls reply.
“Will Gen. that should be painfully obvious to you by now. I am OR was James J. Owens, Commander of 1st Battalion, 1st Brigade, 101st Division, Death Dealers of Earth Prime Military High Command at your service.” I said with smile and a bow. I just couldn’t help it my old smart ass attitude from when I was younger was coming back.
Dee de what’s going on with me? I haven’t been this big of a wise ass in over 70yrs?
I think that your age regression and all the new hormones are starting to affect how you think and act now but I’m not sure.
What do you mean YOUR NOT SURE?
Will no D.D. AI has ever been installed in the body of a teenage girl before. So I really don’t know how it’s going to affect you or me and how we operate.
In other words I’m screwed.
Hee Hee Hee. Like I say I have no idea what’s going on.
Hay no giggling here. This is some serious deep shit here.
Right now you need to deal with Stonewall kid.
Hun … oh hay. Gotcha we talk later.
“If you’re who your say you are then can you tell me why you look like a 15yr old girl instead of a 96yr man?” Well at least the ass clown has some kind of grasp of what is going on.
“That’s a little hard to explain Gen. But from what I am able to piece together from what I was able to gather from the SECONDARY REBOOT AND REPAIR program of my D.D. AI. This is what 64.9% of what the population of Hades looks like. And because of this fact than this configuration has the highest chance of blending in with the local population. In other words the largest percentage of your population is made up Asian teenage girls.” Can this goat really be this clueless?
“I know that. Hell every red blood male on the planet knows that. But that doesn’t explain why you look the way you do?”
Heyup he really can be that clueless as well as dumb “General are you always this pig headed? Or are you really that stupid? My on board AI took one look at your planets population and found that the largest group of people was Asian teenage girls. By running a simple calculation it came up with the best way for me to hide in plain sight was to be a teenage Asian female. Its main objective is to keep me alive.” I don’t think he took my reply too well but, you know what, I really don’t give a rat’s ass.
“Ok. That explains your appearance. But why did you enter what is known to be a very dangerous Secondary Reconfiguration and Reboot procedure?”
I can’t believe this he thinks that I did this to myself on purpose! “It wasn’t by choice I can tell you that without a doubt! From what I can put together when the pirates attacked the Navigator performed a combat drop landing. When he did this I started to have a heart attack. At that point my AI came back on line and took action to save my life. If that meant it had to enter the Secondary Reconfiguration and Reboot then that’s what it will do. The D.D. AIs are not known for taking half measures you know.”
“So your AI decided on its own to activate the Secondary Configuration?”
“For the last time YES you putts!” I am starting to loss my temper here. If I get asked one more stupid question about how the D.D.AIs works I just might shove one up his ass to show him.
“Commander. Can you tell us how you’re AI that was decommissioned over 70yrs ago was able to come back on line?”
Well maybe not just yet. I think I’ll screw with him on this one just to see how he will react. “That’s a good question. And one that is outside of your pay grade or need to know.” 
“Just what do you mean by that?” Yup just like I thought he would. Hee Hee.
“It’s simple I’m done answering any questions you or this bunch of monkey nuts you call a Command Staff are going to ask.” And with that I start walking for the door.
“Get back here you little bitch! Nobody talks to me like that!” Stonewall yells out as he grabs a hold of my arm. I don’t know what happened but I think the COBRA O.S. took over at that point. Because Stonewall goes flying across the room and my heads display is back and giving me hard target locks on the rest of his command staff as both main weapons come on line. I’m wheeling around pointing my weapons at them while dropping into a combat stance ready for a fight. The look of fear on their faces is all it takes to break me out of my combat mode. For over 20yrs in command none of my troops ever looked at me with fear in their eyes. For that matter no ever looked at me with fear in their eyes even when I walked down the streets on leave at home in uniform. Respect yes, but not fear. My God what has that secondary reconfiguration program turned me into? I have got to get a hold of myself. Taking a deep breath in I hold it for a count of ten and slowly let it out. I relax and stand up slowly retracting my primary weapons. Hay I know that one of them is technically a secondary weapon but I just can see something that can blast a whole through 20 inches of case harden armor as a backup weapon. Do you? I mean really if it can do that than it should be a primary weapon. I really need to get control of this situation and I need to do it now. I have to calm these people down and get them to trust me if I’m ever going to figure this whole S.N.A.F.U. if we’re going to get anything done. But first I need some fresh air. “Alright listen up people I’m going to walk outside and get some fresh air and maybe bum a smoke off one of those Marauder pilots out there while I calm down. When I get back I want to know who all of you are, where you’re from, and finally what is your specialty. Got it? Good.” With a flip of my hair I do an about face and step out for the hanger personnel door. I really need that cup of coffee and a cigarette right now.
Dee De what in the name of all that’s Holly is going with me?
I really don’t know JJ. You’re reacting to everything as if you’re in a combat zone.
I’m sorry you wake up as a teenage girl after being a man for 97yrs and see how well you deal? I replied with some heat. Shit I still can’t get my head around the fact that I’m alive instead of being dead right now. That fact alone is a real kick in the head for me. Add in the gender change plus age regression and you have one totally screwed up mess for anyone in their right mind would not want to deal with in the first place. Man I hope that one of those Mark 21 pilots has some coffee and a smoke. I really need the caffeine and nicotine right now. I just want to sit back in a small dark room all by myself for about 24hrs and cry my eyes for some reason. These new hormones and teenage emotions are going to drive me right of the edge and right into the crazy house. I have to figure out what is going on with me and fast. If I don’t these lovely flocks are going to blast ass pass into little bitty pieces of Death Dealer teenage girl. Of that I have no doubt at all. Half of Stoney’s staff back there was reaching for their side arms as if that would do any good. According to Dee De’s read out this Armor Skin of mine can stop anything in the small and medium range of weapons to include energy and beam weapons. Only heavy or crew serve weapons stand any kind of chance of penetrating the Armor Skin that covers me from the neck down so their only chance of hurting me was a head shut. Not that it would do them any good. The titanium covering of my skull as well as the rest of my bones would most likely stop any small, medium or large arms that they could have carried in there with them. As I walk outside I see one of the 21s pilots standing outside of his machine form the looks of him he’s Cpt. Howard. “Excuse me Cpt. Howard?”
The young man turns and looks at me with a smile. “Yes ma’am. Can I help you with something?”
As I look up at him I notice that he is rather cute looking. CUTE LOOKING where the HELL did that come from? “Hum… Yes you wouldn’t happen to have a cigarette and a cup of coffee would you?”
“Well the coffee is in the hanger office. But as far as a cigarette all I have is Earth Prime Gold’s ma’am will they do?” he says with that too cute smile of his. Damn it where are these thoughts coming from.
“Yah that be fine. Thank you.” As I take the offered smoke. “You wouldn’t have light too?” I ask.
“Sure thing here.” As he pulls out his lighter. I notice that it has the 3rd ACR crest on it and wonder if he served on Free Port. 
“Forgive me for asking but did you serve on Free Port by chance? The only reason I ask is that you look to be the right age to have been a young Lt. during the battle of Four Points and my daughter was with the 4th of the 3rd ACR at the time.”
“Yes ma’am. I did I was one of the few that made it out thanks to two of those pilots. They just kept strafing the enemy positions over and over while we retreated no matter how many hits they took or Harkconien fighters tried to shoot them down. I’ll never forget their names Capt.’s Steel heart they were a married couple that were assigned to the air attack wing of the fourth squadron." I could see the sadness in his eyes as he looked back, terrible vicious day. I know that look all too well I see it every time I looked in a mirror. He can see the dead and dying, hear their screams of pain and anguish, and he can smell the burning flesh and metal of the battlefield." Those two crazy fools never gave up they kept strafing the Harkconien positions over and over. They've dropped all the bombs, burned through all of their auto canon ammunition, and were down to only the pulse lasers the center of the nose those old beat up Stuka's. They never really had a chance but because their actions myself and several others about 25% of the Regiment were able to get aboard our drop ship and escape." He turned and looked at me. When he saw the tears in my eyes he had to ask." Excuse me ma'am but may I ask why you're crying?" I didn't even realize that it was actually crying.
“Well captain it's like this those two young pilots were my son-in-law and only daughter. All that I ever knew about how they died was that they died in action at the Battle of Four Points on the planet of Freeport." I had to stop and wiped the tears from my face and eyes before I could continue. I knew if there was more to the story that what was reported that a certain high Lord Marshall would definitely be in a massive world of shit. Damn these hormones for getting out of hand and I can't control my emotions. How the world do women let alone teenage girls deal with these quicksilver mood swings is beyond me." Thank you Capt. for the smoke and for telling me how my daughter and her husband died on that day. If you ever need anything from me all you have to do is ask and if it is within my power it is yours." I smile up at him, crushing a cigarette with my foot, and headed inside to the hanger office to find that much needed cup of coffee.

Looking around as I come inside through the door to the hanger office I see that old Stoney is sitting up in the chair at what looks to be a portable field table. Deciding that it would be better for me to get some coffee before I say another thing to that man I head into the office to find an empty cup and coffee. I quickly find what I need and all the fixes for making it the way I like. As I stand there with the coffee cup in hand I noticed that there is a full-length mirror on the back of the door to the office. Now I know I got a decent look at myself a little bit earlier but I didn't really stop to look at my new face. Deciding to bite the bullet I closed the door and step up front of the mirror. As I stand here looking at her, the girl in the mirror, I have to be honest with myself. She ain’t half bad looking oh she's no runway beauty but with a little bit of work and a small amount of makeup she would be a real cutie. Long black hair reaching down to the middle of her back, soft Asian featured face, small up turned nose, small shell like ears, and finally those deep sea green eyes. Oh yeah that young lady in the mirror could be my own daughter maybe even my wife's sister if she was a little bit old. But even I, as I stand here and look at her, can see a sorrow that should not be in the eyes of someone so young. Hey Dee De you there girl?
Yes JJ I’m here. Something bothering you?
You could say that. Have you compared our new look to your profile pictures of Ohmie?
JJ I didn't want to bring it up but I think that when the secondary configuration and reboot pulled its informational data of the planet's population looking for best camouflage it also accessed my profile pictures to see if there was any examples of what it was looking for in storage.
Are you telling me that pain in my ass secondary reconfiguration program intentionally made me look like my own daughter and possibly a little bit of my wife?
Hum…Yes?!
                                                  
                                     Me now (black), Ohmie in her flight suite (purple and yellow).
Okay girl friend is time for us to have us a little bitty chat here. I start counting off on my fingers each and every point that I want to make. Starting with can you first turn off that cobra OS? Second if you can't see any way to put it in a sleep mode? Third can you reprioritize my weapons systems and if you can how long will it take?
Well take your questions in order. No. Possible. Yes. And around two hours.
Okay this start with number two and work our way up from there. I really do not like having that operation system running all the time. Especially since it is affected by my emotional state. If we can put it in a sleep mode I'll be extremely happy. I really don't want that thing activated less I want it activated and then all only if it's needed. Once you have that done get back with me on the reprioritization of the weapons.
I'm working on it now and I'll let you know what I get it done. Now I think you need to walk back out to the hanger and go deal with the Lord High Marshall.
Okay love all had out here and deal with Stonewall  but I can honestly tell you that if he shows his ignorance one more time I just might punch him in his big fat mouth. But please get to work on trying to override the cobra OS put it in sleep mode please.
I will darling don't you worry I'll get it taken care of. You just leave that to mama.
I stick my tongue out at you naaah!
Taking a deep breath and center myself. I opened the door and stepped out into the massive hangar bay and head for the Lord High Marshall Gen. Alexander Stonewall and his pack of idiots. As I start walking towards the table I notice that they're all looking at me and wondering what I'm going to do. I do not know what came over me but for some reason I just have to put a little saucy sway into my walk as I had for the table. I can see that they don't know what to think or make of this 97-year-old person in the body of a teenage girl. To be quite honest at this point I really don't know either. Even in my younger years I was never this big of a smartass. Right now I think I'll just blame it on the hormones. Yeah that's what I will do I’ll blame it on the hormones that'll be my excuse for now. But then again I can always claim to be senile from old-age. I mean you really can't blame me for that I mean I am 97 for God sakes. As I take my seat across from Gen. Stonewall I noticed that most of his staff will not look at me instead they have their eyes glued to the top of the table. I wonder if they're looking for some great meaning in the wood grain of the tabletop. But there is one who has no problem looking in my eye. 
A young second Lieut. with the most beautiful baby blue eyes and blond hair I have ever seen. She has the type of eyes that a man can't fall into and never want to come up from. Oh yeah she is one fine looking young lady and if I was only 40 years younger and still a man I would definitely make a pass at her. She has the type of beauty that you sit back and savor like a fine glass of aged whiskey. You know the ones I'm talking about. The gals that should be on a runaway in places like Paris, New York, and Melon; she's so beautiful that she makes that drab gray planetary defense force uniform look like this to be this next great fashion trend that comes out of the fashion houses back on Earth Prime. As I look at her she gives me one of those knowing smiles that say yes I know you've been checking me out. I never in my 97 years of life been able to get away with checking out a beautiful woman on the sly. Oh well I highly doubt with her looks she would want to be seen when someone who looks like they're barely a 16-year-old teenage girl. Taking a deep breath and all more time to calm myself down I looked back up at Gen. Stonewall. “All right general let's say we start all over from the beginning sound good to you?"
I watch as the general takes a deep breath and slowly lifts it out. Finally looking me in the eye he says." Okay commander I'll agree that we didn't start off on the right foot here. I'm willing to let bygones be bygones if you are. As I see it right now we have 4 major problems. The first of which is at this time you do not have a current ID. Second as far as the port authority goes you are here illegally as an underage unaccompanied minor. Three if you attempt to leave the spaceport the local L.E.O. units will attempt to apprehend you because you are both a minor and here illegally. And finally number four is a Leo unit scans you it will find all that firepower that you're currently packing. At point in time with the way they are programed we will automatically account to engage you with their weapons. Now you and I both know that the D. D. AI will go out of its way to defend itself. We both know that if this were to happen the Leo unit would lose but before it died it would call in for assistance. This in turn will bring more Leo units which will then try to kill you. While we both know that once they engage you a firefight will commence which will continue to escalate out of control until the military will be forced to intervene. Once that point has been reached we all know that Mark 21 marauders will be deployed. This means there will be uncontrolled devastation all around. Now my question is to you commander what are we going to do now?" Well hell I have to give it to old stony he definitely has a firm grasp of the situation.
“When you put it like that general I don't have the foggiest damned clue. I am open to any and all suggestions. Do any of your people have an idea?" I asked with a sweet smile on my face.
“As a matter of fact Lieut. Walking Water the young lady that you were so carefully inspecting earlier has an idea that might just work. But it's going to take cooperation on everyone's part to be able to pull this off." Was his reply. Turning and looking down the table to the young lieutenant Walking Water." Well Lieut. it's your plan you explain it to her." I shudder at hearing the female pronoun applied to me by the general. Yes I know I look like a teenage girl now that I've only had at most an hour to get used to the idea. Just something else I will have to get used to I guess.
“Commander this is what I figure is our best bet for keeping all of this under control and from getting out to the public. And still give you the ability to live a rather normal life." She looks at me and I can tell just by looking at her that I am not going to like this idea with one damned bit." You become your own granddaughter."
“Excuse me did you just say you want me to be my own granddaughter!!" I yell at the top of my lungs and look at her and plain unadulterated disbelief." Have you lost your damn mind? Everyone who knows me knows that my daughter and her husband died at the Battle of Four Points on Freeport 20 years ago without leaving any children behind. Also take is a simple search of the military data bases of dependent children to find out ally in that state.”
“Actually Sir… I mean Ma’ am… I mean Sir"
I decide to interrupt the young lieutenant and save her from making a fool out of herself." Okay everybody stop right here right now. Look we all know that I no longer look like a Sir. I know for a fact I definitely don't look like a man anymore. I look like a 16-year-old young lady. And as far as I know from what my AI has been able to tell me I am now 100% female right down to my xx chromosomes. So it might as well use the female pronouns and references that would apply to me as of right now." I look around and see a nodding of the heads in a positive manner all around the table." Okay Lieut. It’s your show."
With these visible sigh and look of relief on her face young lieutenant looks at me and smiles nodding her head starts to lay out a plan." Well ma’am it's not exactly bulletproof but I believe we can pull this off. The only people that know you were on that flight by yourself were flight officer Alice Lee who just so happens to be a reserve officer with Earth Prime Military High Command Intelligence Security division, the reservation clerk back on Earth Prime, then Navigator for the drop ship, and yourself ma'am. Now we can control three out of four of those possible security breaches. Reserve Officer Maj. Allison Lee and knows and understands the importance of operational security. I suggest that we bring her in along with drop ship Navigator First Class Marcus Farwell. The both of these individuals have a reserve commission with the Military High Command was the that read into the situation they can access the drop ships passenger log books and make the necessary changes. It will show one James J Owens boarded the drop ship Star well with his granddaughter for a trip to the planet Hades in the Death Gates System. During the attack by the pirates at the Jump point Mr. James Owens suffered massive heart attack resulting in his death. Leaving your granddaughter without a guardian to watch over her. However she does have a full ride scholarship to the Hades military Academy on Hades pride in the capital city of Haifa. Her grandfather was escorting her to the Academy because she has no other family." With a smile on her face Lieut. Walking Water sat back, folded her hands in front of her on the table.
Now over the years I’ve heard some crazy cover stories but this one, while not at the top of the list, was one of the best. Especially with the way everything was laid out. I mean here I am, up until a few hours ago, a man that would definitely fit the profile of an elderly grandfather who would not let his teenage granddaughter travel to a far-off system to go to school all by herself. And if that school was a military academy on one of the largest military outpost that had monuments to all those who served before giving him a chance to say good bye to his fallen brothers at the same time as teaching her a little history, all the better. I mean this cock-a-may-me scam has almost everything in place to make it work except for one thing. And I’ll be dammed if I’m going to give it to them. No this man is not going to defile the names of my daughter and son-in-law just to cover up the fact the High Command put a Dooms day program in the D.D. AIs all those years ago.
“Well it seems you have this all worked out Alex. There’s just one problem. You and your staff are not going to defile the good names of my daughter and her husband you ass clown. No it’s not going to happen.” I came so close to losing my temper that the heads up display flickers on then off. I start the deep breathing exercises to calm down.” Especially after you sacrificed their lives on Free Port at the Battle of Four Points you stupid son of a bitch.”
The look on Stonewalls face and those of his staff were ones for the book. They ranged from total shock to disbelief. Everyone knows of the failed attack by the 3rd ACR but only a few knew that the order to attack came from the man sitting across from me at that time and even those number in the single digits’. For me to know would mean I held a lot higher clearance than everyone had except for the general.
“Who was your daughter Commander Owens?” asked Lt. Walking Water with some fear in her voice. I have to give it to her, of all the useless R.I.M.F.s that were sitting in front of me at that time, she was probably the only one who had any kind of steel in her spine.
“If you want to know ask the man who denied their Medals of Honor for fighting a rear guard action while the rest of what was left of their Regiment boarded the drop ship and retreated leaving them behind to die on the field of battle.” I hold out my arm pointing at the general at him with a shaking figure. “The same man who ordered that Regiment to attack a heavily defended well entrenched enemy who had 10 times the fire power they could hope to bring to bear with the weapons they had at their disposal while denying them their requests for orbital bombardment.” I need to back off and calm down my heads up keeps flashing on and off.
Hay kid you really need to calm down so I can work here. Every time you come close to losing your temper that C.O.B.R.A. os tries to activate.
Ok Dee De I do my best to calm down. But have you heard what they want to do? They want to use Ohmie and Richard as my parents now, is after old Stoney tried to cover up their deaths being a useless gesture of defiance. I was fighting to keep from crying in front of him and his staff. I would not let these people know the depth of my pain over that loss. Plus there was no way I was going to let Alexander Stonewall get away with trying to use my family again.
Relax James. Relax use this to get the Honors that Ohmie and Richard deserve and the rest of those who died that day because of his mistakes and incompetence if he wants to do this then make HIM pay.
What are you talking about Dee De?
The only way that the plans for the attack on Four Points can be released to the High Command on Earth Prime is for him to do it. Make that one of the conditions for following this plan. Ohmie and Richards Medals of Honor the next and finally make him clear the names of all the troops who were there that day.
Are you sure you’re only an AI?
Yes I am sure that I’m only an AI. Why?
Because my dear sweet Dee De that is positively the most cunning plan for black mail I have ever heard in a long, long, long time. If I could I’d give you a Great Big Kiss.
As I look down at my hands on top of the table General Alexander “Stoney” Stonewall stands up. Then he does something that I would never have expected him to do. With a deep bow from the waist he says “Commander Owens it is with great regret and the utmost respect that I apologize for the loss of your children under my command. When Capt.’s’ Ohmie and Richard Steal heart fought the rear action they saved the lives of over 25% of the regiment that day. I wish to all that’s Holly that I could have given them the honors they deserved.” With that he stands up and salutes me.
Well if he thinks he’s going to get off with just that he’s got another thing coming. “Well General Stonewall that ain’t near enough. This is what’s going to happen if you want me to follow through with this plan of yours. Frist you will unseal all the documents concerning Four Points. Then you are going to formally clear the names of all the men and women who died that day at Four Points. Next you’re going to makes sure that the Medals of Honor they should have received for their sacrifices. You do these things for right now in front of me you have a deal.”
“Very well, you have a deal. Col. House open a channel to the High Command Servers please?”
“Yes sir.” Three minutes later.  “You have your channel to the High Command Sir”
“Thank you Col. Now to get down to bossiness.” A half hour later and a whole but load of commands everything that I wanted was done. What I didn’t expect was what came in on the heels of the orders for my children’s medals was the mandatory retirement orders for Stonewall. “Well Commander are you happy the Military High Command has order my mandatory retirement. After we get done here today I’m to turn over command to General White here and catch the first drop ship headed for Earth Prime to answer to a board of inquiry.”
I sat there and looked at the fool wondering if he had any clue at the amount of fire power that was hidden inside of me at that every moment or if his former staff even gave him a report of what they saw earlier? Mostly they didn’t. Because no man in his right mind would piss off someone with easy access to a plasma laser rifle. That reminds me I really need to check in with Dee De.” If I may be excused for a few minutes I need to collect my thoughts before I continue?”
“Of course ma’am. As a matter of act you can take half an hour or longer if you want. I imagine it must be kind of hard to get out of that cat suit you are wearing. If you need the rest room it’s down the hall on the left hand side. I only need to know what name you want to use on your new birth certificate and other id’s. Did your daughter or son-in-law ever have a name picked out if they had a daughter by chance or maybe your wives name perhaps?” Lt. Walking Water with a smile that could light up all of downtown L.A. back on Earth Prime.
As it turns to answer her I find myself at a loss for words. In all my life I have never had this happen to me. Oh Hell what am I going to do? Here I’m one of the most decorated Death Dealers in living memory, having worked my way up the chain of command to the posting of Battalion Commander from a lowly Private, I was a graduate  of the N.C.O. Academies, then Officer Candidates School, and finally Command and Control War Fair School. A man who has given the order that has sent men to their deaths or to their glory. A truly self-made man never without an answer. And I can’t think of something as simple as a girl’s name. 
Dee De front and center girl. All hands on deck. Defcon 5. Huston we have problem! HELP!!!
Whoa there girl slow down relax and tell me what the problem is.
That’s it exactly. I’m a girl. A GIRL here and these people want to know what name to put on my new paperwork for my ids. And I have no clue as to what kind of names for a girl is correct. Can you do a fast search of data bases of girl names for me and give some kind of idea?
Hee Hee Hee. O.M.G. The great and terrible Com. J.J. Owens the man who made Death From Above the motto for the 1st of the 1st of 101st Death Dealers the man who scares the pants off of 4 star Generals can’t even pick out a name for a girl!!!!! Oh my God I can’t wait to get in touch with the other D.D.AIs to share this.
Oh shut up and run the search already.
Yes sir oh I mean ma’am I thought you were going to pee your paints the first time that lt. Walking Water called you that. Oh you ready for some good news?
I’ll take what I can get right now. So what is it?
I have been able to put the C.O.B.R.A. os into standby mode.
Dee De THAT is not good news. Its GREAT news. Thank you so much for do that I really did not want to spend the rest of my life on guard of my emotions. Now that I’m going through puberty all over again but this time as a girl with the much looser emotions and quicksilver mood swings I wasn’t looking forward to my first case of P.M.S.
Ouch yah I can see it now. Some poor idiot pinches you on your backside outcome the P.L.R. and the P.P.C. target hard lock and BOOM! Another brave for the happy hunting grounds.
Exactly oh excuse me for a minute.
“Hum... can you give a few more minutes there Lt. you kind of caught me off guard with that question?” I ask sweetly of the pretty young woman.
“Oh! Yes ma’am. But the sooner I know the sooner I can get it done.”
“Of course Lt. I understand completely I have it to you in no more than 15 minutes. Is that soon enough for you to work with?”
“Yes ma’am that will give me enough time to pull up all of the data bases I’ll need to punch it into.”
I smile get up and walk back to the hanger office to get some more coffee. As I’m refilling my cup and adding the cream and sugar Dee De decides to throw up a list of names in front of me on the heads up display the Minx scared the crap out of me with that stunt.
Hay! I have that list of names you wanted I stayed with mostly Japanese names that your wives family has used over the last 400 years.
There was a total of about 37 names up there with the number of times that they were used. But there was one that stood out from all the rest. Its meaning was both beautiful and deadly and somehow it that one name fit me. I mean I am beautiful and deadly. All because of what it means. It was my mother-in-laws name and when combined with my name it truly means both beauty and deadly. Maiha Mana Owens that will be my new name.
Thank you Dee De as usual the information you have provided has been extremely helpful.
So have you found your new name?
Yup I sure have and it is a fitting one at that. Maiha Mana Steel Heart.
With my new name firmly in mind I head back over to Lt. Walking Water. ”Lt. I have my new name for you hope it won’t be too hard for you to slip into the data bases?”
She look up at me with a slight smile as if to say are your kidding me. “No sweat Com. What would you like for your new name to be?”
“Maiha Mana Steel Heart.” You could have heard a pin drop.
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 3
My new name
Each and every one of the people standing in that room turned and looked at me as if I had just smacked the holy Emperor himself. Oh yes, that name and that alone is going to turn more heads, upset more stomachs, than just about every other name in history.
For one thing, the first name is, without a doubt, reserved for the Japanese Imperial family’s use only. While the second and middle names are reserved for those who are descended from the Japanese Shogun families. Then, finally, to have the surname of two Medal of Honor winners is going to get some attention in its own right.
"Cmdr. You do realize that for you to use that first and middle name you need to have some tie to the Shogun families of Japan?" Asked the very lovely and charming Lieut. Walking Water. The look in her eyes as she contemplated what that name would mean or how I could even be able to claim that name spoke volumes. And I know I should not be this way but I just had to giggle. I can tell these people didn’t even do a simple background check on my family.
This is so priceless it is almost too perfect to be true; here I am literally with all the cards in my hand. They had no idea that my wife of over 60 years was a direct descendent of one of the most powerful Shogun dynasties in all of Japan. If my daughter had lived to have a child, that child herself, or himself, would have been in line to that very Shogunate. I still marvel over the fact that my beautiful cultured wife ever fell in love with a down to earth, back woods swamp rat commoner like me. For now though I need to put things in motion so I can get on with my new life.
Looking down at the young lieutenant with a smile and a little giggle to say. "Yeah Lt. I know that those names are reserved for the Shogun families. And as far as me needing ties to a Shogun family, you need to look no further than my deceased wife. If I remember right she was the eldest child in her family, placing her first in line for the Nakatoma Shogunate. And after her would have been our daughter. Then after her, would've been her child. Since were trying to pass me off as my granddaughter and her daughter, I need a name that will reflect that."
Oh my God the looks on their faces is priceless. I mean, here are all of these highly ranking officials of the planetary government, not to mention military high command, and they just now realize just who I really am.
“Can you verify this claim? We will need to be able to satisfy the powers that be if it’s true.” Asks one of the other staff officers who I had yet to be introduced to.
He had the look of a High Families spoiled brat to him. You could tell just by the way he held himself, the cut of his uniform, and of course his general looks. He was tall, blonde haired, and blue eyed. Your typical Aryan ass clown. With a shake of my head and a heavy, put upon sigh I decide to answer this jerk with the same arrogance that he has shown me.
“May I know your name sir, or is it the practice of all junior officers in the Hades P.D.F. Military to be this rude? I know that if you were a member of a Death Dealer Unit, they would have taught you some manners.”
The look I give this jerk is one of pure contempt as if he was nothing more than a cockroach. The poor bastard didn’t know how to respond to such a verbal attack. I could see the gears in his mind slamming together and stripping out. I can almost see the thoughts running through his brain; 'Just who does this little girl think she is? Doesn't she know she's supposed to be trying to kiss my ass? I am a member of the HIGH FAMILIES! Nobody, absolutely nobody, talks to us like that. Error! Invalid input! Error! Does not compute! Error! Does not compute! Error.'
I can't help it, I start to giggle. At hearing my first giggle, Lt. Walking Water starts up with her own giggle, which gets the Major of Intel. Sec. Going, followed by what looks like the Head of Space port Security. Needless to say, pretty soon half the people in the room are laughing out loud at the shmuck.
Turning a bright red from anger, the ass hat makes the mistake of getting right in my face to scream out. “You do not speak to me in that manner! I am the Vic. Lord High Marshal for this system! If anyone needs to be taught some manners, little girl, it is YOU! You will show the proper respect to your betters! Do you understand me?”
Yup, just as I thought. He's your typical, High Families spoiled brat, who got his position because of who he is related to and not through hard work and reward. I need to put him in his place now, before he thinks that he's in charge.
“Listen UP, you over privileged Asshole! As of right now the only person you out rank is the janitor for the zoo. Do you understand? You and the Lord High Marshal General Stonewall have both been relieved of all command responsibility. You can't even order in a pizza, shit head! Now get out of my sight before I blow a whole big in you big enough to march an Armored Power Suit though! Got it?”
I think I might have lost control a little bit, because the P.P.C. in my right arm was deployed. One look was all junior needed to run like hell for the hanger door. As I take a deep breath in to calm myself and retract the offending weapon, I hear something very strange. Looking around at the others in the room I see that they're clapping. I swear I blush clear down to my toes. I've never been so embarrassed for losing my temper in my life. 
“Ladies and Gentlemen, please forgive me for that unladylike display of temper.” I ask with all modesty.
The Major from Intel. Security gave me a look of total respect, and then smiled at me. “Cmdr. Owens. Ma'am, I can safely say on behalf of all those here, that you can lose your temper like that any time you want, as long as the target of your anger richly deserves it, as Vic. Lord Blackstone did. He had no reason for screaming or challenging you the way he did.”
“Excuse me. But did you say his name was Blackstone? As in Kiel and Blackstone shipping? Duce Blackstone of the Royal Family Blackstone?” I ask, with some excitement in my voice.
“Yes ma'am, I believe so. Why?”
Great, just great. Now I know how General Stonewall got his posting of Lord High Marshal here, as well as why. For years I've wondered how, after that disastrous operation on Haven Mist, he was not pulled in for a summery inquisition and courts marshal. By all rights he should have been hung by the neck until dead for that mistake. But now I know. I also know who was behind the cover up. Finally after all this time the murderer of my child and her husband is within my grasp.
“Do not let that son of a bitch get off this base. That is a direct order. Do you hear me Maj?” 
She might not know what is going on but she did know that, at that point in time, I was the supreme authority in this system. So with a quick salute she raced outside to Cpt. Howard to pass along my orders.
“Excuse me ma'am. But can I ask you a question?” It was the Head of Space Port Security.
“Yes sir. What it you would like to know?” I can tell he is trying to figure out what’s going on right now, and has no idea of how to ask. Smiling, I say, “Go ahead and spit it out as blunt or crude as you like, sir. Trust me. In my past I've said or heard just about every foul word there is sometimes even used to describe me, to my face.” I have to giggle at the look on his face.
“Ok ma'am, you asked for it. For those of us who aren't part of the High Command, how in the Name of the Nine Gates of Hell can a Battalion Commander, who has been retired for more than 50 years, just walk in here and relieve the Lord High Marshal of a planet, along with his Vic. Lord without a trial? Especially one with ties to the High Families.” I can tell the poor man had to know the truth along with everyone else here. 
It must be the new type of hormone mixture running through my blood system. Or maybe the Reboot did something to my brain. Even the Secondary Configuration Protocol rearranged my neural pathways. But whatever it is, it’s screwing with my ability to make rational decisions, because I'm about to break all Opsec. Rules and Regulations in the book.
 “Alright folks, here is the skinny. My real rank is, or I should say was, First High Lord of the Death Dealers Divisions for the Delta Sector. In other words, I never fully retired; I've just been on inactive Reserve.” From the number of gasps I can tell they weren’t expecting that. “But all that aside, I still... no let me correct that... WE still have a massive problem to deal with. Because let’s face facts, I no longer look like Mr. James J. Owens, 97 year old grandfather, let alone one High Lord James J. Owens. So let’s get to work making me a real person on paper again, please.”
With several loud and motivated Ma’ams, yes Ma’am’s, everyone got down to work creating a back ground for one Maiha Mana Steel Heart. Meaning, yours truly. While everyone was busy working on my new back ground I went back to the hanger office for some privacy and more coffee.
“Ok Dee De. I am pretty sure we'll have a few moments to ourselves so we can have a nice little talk with no one butting in.”
If you want total privacy I suggest that you lock the door there kiddo.
“That's just one of the things that we are going to discuss, that kiddo crap, but I really can't lock the door because the coffee pot in this place is in here. I know that one of those youngsters in there will want a cup sooner or later. Besides after I get this refill I’m going outside to see if I can bum another smoke off of Cpt. Howard and his team.”
Well if you want a cigarette there are two packs and some matches in the last cabinet on the right behind some Tec manuals.
“Just how do you know that, you old biddy?”
The first time we come in here the C.O.B.R.A. O.S. was still operating remember. Well it scanned the entire area and cataloged the contents of all the cabinets. What it found I know. All that info in cataloged, sorted and stored for later retrieval. So there you go it’s that simple.
“Whoa that is just too cool. What the Hell over? Can you explain to me why I'm thinking, acting, and talking like some idiot teenager now, or better yet, why I'm like, checking out all the cute guys and gals round here?” 
Damn it! I did it again! What is going on with me here? I mean I’m letting my emotions over rule my reasoning and judgment. I’ve never allowed that in the past. Why I am I doing it now? For some reason I started to cry. At first just one or two tears then all of a sudden the dam broke and the flood waters came pouring out. With my back against the door I slide down it until I was sitting on the floor crying my eyes out for no reason.
Hey, hey, calm down Maiha, calm down honey, you can get through this.
“How do YOU know? You're not losing YOUR mind, you tin plated bitch!!”
Because you're not going crazy, or losing your mind, so calm down get a hold of yourself and use your head girl. Think! You have over 87 years of life experience at your disposal. You just have to relax, calm down and think, honey.
After about 15 minutes, I wipe the last tears from my eyes, breathe in deep, and count to 100 in Croatian. Did it again three more times before I was back in control of my emotions. As I sit here on the floor I finally understand what Matsu Me always meant by 'Having a good cry.”
Getting up off the floor, I go over to the cabinet that has the cigarettes hidden in it and dig them out. Yup, my luck is still going strong. Black Hawk Kings menthols no less. A fouler tasting cigarette you'd be hard pressed to find. Now I know why nobody has bothered to steal them. But beggars can't be choosers, as the old saying goes. I get a fresh cup of coffee, grab the two packs and head outside. 
Spotting Cpt. Howard over by his suit, I head over, hoping to trade the two Hawks for half a pack of Gold’s. 
“Excuse me Cpt. Howard; can I talk to you for a minute?”
“Sure thing ma'am. What can I do for you?”
“I can't talk you into swapping me half of your Gold’s for two whole packs of Black Hawks, can I?”
Looking down at me, with a wondering look on his face, he asks quietly. “Did you get them out of the last cabinet on the right?”
“Uh, yeah, I did. Why?”
“Oh no reason, but the going rate for those packs is 2 for 1, little lady. Something must have crossed my face, because the next thing he says is. “Oh My God ma'am, I'm so sorry! I didn’t mean that 'little lady' comment, it just slipped out. I mean, with the way you look and all, I forgot I was talking to an officer. I would never be disrespectful of any fellow officer, but with you looking so cute and all..... The poor man turned white as a sheet as he realized what he just said.
I can't help it, I start laughing. I mean the whole situation is so bizarre that it is almost total slap-stick in a way that is beyond belief. After a few more seconds, even Howard is laughing, himself. Once we calm down and get control of ourselves we get back down to business.
“Would you care to tell me why the exchange rate for these packs is 2 to1, Cpt.?” I say.
“That’s simple ma'am. Only the truly desperate would smoke those. They've been in that same spot for over seven years, ever since the last maintenance Chief put them there, and back then the swap rate was 2 to 1. It’s kind of become a tradition to keep that rate in honor of the Chief. So if you'll give me just a sec, I'll get you a pack out of my suit and then you just put those back where you found them.”
“Sure, no problem Cpt. I'll be right back.” I say, as I run back inside to return the two packs to where they belong. Once back outside, Cpt. Howard hands a pack of his E.P.G.s and some matches. 
“Oh ma'am. I know that you're really a lot older than you look, but I think that you might want save these cigarettes.”
“Why do you say that?” I ask.
“Its simple ma'am. No T.A.B.C. store clerk is going to sell to someone who looks like they aren't old enough to drive yet.” He said with a straight face.
Oh hell. Everyone and I mean everyone, from this point on, will only see me as a teenage girl, not as a grown man of almost a hundred. Shit! Bite me! I have to grow up all over again. Thanking the Cpt. I head back inside to drink my coffee and talk to Dee De.
“Dee De did you realize that I am going to have too grow up all over again?”
Are you finally ready to talk to me again?
“Yes, I am, and by the way, sorry about earlier. I don't know what came over me. I have never been that emotional before. Do you have any theories as to what is going on with me?”
Maiha I think I do know what is going on but I don’t think you’ll like the answer. So I’m going to ask you if you really want to know.
“Dee De I want you to do me a favor. I want you to look back at the 20 years that we had together, but before the higher ups put you into sleep mode. Have you done that hone?”
Yes.
“Ok now. Did I ever order you to withhold any information for me or the troops under my command?”
No. you always wanted the truth no matter how good, bad or ugly it was.
“That's right, and if you will dig back into that outdated file cabinet you call a data base, you'll find the one order that I never rescinded was for you to never lie or withhold the truth from me, correct?”
Outdated filing cabinet I call a database?!! Listen here, you pint sized, unholy terror! Just who do you think you’re calling outdated? You will pay for that comment!
“I believe you my dear sweat Dee De.” I giggled. “After all, right now you are the oldest, still operating D.D.AI out there. I know that all of those from our class, and those before it, along with their hosts, have passed on to the happy hunting grounds. So that does make us both outdated and a bit antiquated, my dear. But would you really hold a grudge against a sweet and innocent little girl like me?”
SWEET!  INNOCENT! You are no such thing! 
D.D.A.I.: PROSSESSING
*
D.D.A.I.: TOTAL NUMBER OF FIRST GENERATION OMAGA / ASSULT CLASS 1
D.D.A.I.: TOTAL NUMBER OF NEWER AND CURRENT CLASSES OF A.I.4 NEW CLASSES ONLY 1 IN USE
Now that is a sobering bit of data. We really are the last of the best aren't we?
“Yes my dear, we are. The High Command found out how truly powerful all of the Omega classes Dealers were by the end of the War with the Din Bowen Confederation. The power that was held by the Omega class is truly frightening. Even you must acknowledge this, Dee De.”
Ok, I'll give you that. Hell, the fact that I was able to reactivate, plus reboot and reconfigure into the secondary configuration, is proof of that. Which brings us back to the original topic. When I was looking for the off switch for the C.O.B.R.A. o.s., I found that one of the things it does, is it gives the host the ability to not only have hyper quick reflexes, but to act in the same manner as the populace in which the host is seeking to hide. This is done through a behavioral modification program, based on the targeted populaces behavior and customs. That is down loaded directly into the hosts’ brain.
“Are you saying that, during the Secondary Reconfiguration and Reboot, that piece of backyard garage software brain washed me to act like a teenage girl, because the largest part of Hades is populated by Asian teenage girls?!”
In a word, yes.
Great Just Fracking Great! Any more good news about what those two pieces of shit programs did to me?”
Well seeing as how the majority of the teenage girls of Hades are Bi-Sexual no not really I think that about covers everything the Reboot and Secondary Configure did.
“Dee De, did you just say that I am most likely to be Bi-Sexual?
Hum... Yes, I believe I did. Is this a problem?
“Dee De you just don’t...Oh never mind. I'll deal with it when the time comes, but it does answer quite a few questions that I had.”
I get up and get myself a refill from the coffee pot over on the counter. While I’ve been having this conversation with Dee De, several of the former Lord High Marshal’s staff have been in and out, getting a cup themselves, so I decide to make a fresh pot and go back to talking with Dee De, but before I do, I get me another smoke out and fire it up. After taking a long drag I exit here and get back to Dee De.
“Alright Dee De, I think I can deal with all the weirdness that the reboot is going to put me through, but there are a few things I need to know and you are the only source on this topic. Seeing as how I don't have an owner’s manual for this new body, let’s do a full run down on each system, shall we?”
Give me a few moments to compile the data into a readable format for you, and then we'll go over each one individually.
D.D.A.I.: PROCESSING...
*
D.D.A.I.: COMPLETE
D.D.A.I.: UP LODING
*
D.D.A.I.: FULL PRINTOUT OF SECONDARY CONFIGURATION
WEAPONS:
PARTICLE PROJECTION CANNON
PLASMA LASER RIFLE
CLOSE QUARTERS COMBAT CLAWS L&R ARMS
ANTI PERSONIEL LASERS L&R INDEX AND LITTLE FINGERS
SONIC DISRUPTERS L&R UPPER CHEST
ARMOR:
ARMORED SKIN COVERING CLASS 5 PROTECTION
COMMUNICATION ASSETS:
COMBAT CONTROL COMMUNICATION CENTER ACCESS LEVEL 5
INTER NET ACCESS UNLIMITED
RADAR DETECTION AND TARGETING 360 DEGREES
C.O.B.R.A. O.S.
PHYSICAL UP GRADES
JUMP ASSIST JETS L&R LOWER BACK
TRACTION ASSIST PADS IN BOTH PALMS OF HANDS AND SOLES OF FEET
STRENGH ASSIST UP TO 4500LBS
SPEED ASSIST 85MPH CRUSE 110MPH BURST
END OF LINE.
Ok Maiha this is what I’ve got on all of the modifications to our basic configuration. For starters the P.P.C. and P.L.R. can be configured to be both the primary weapon, but not both at the same time.
“Are you telling me that I have a choice between using a battering ram or cannon for my primary weapon?”
In a word, yes.
“Alright let’s give priority to the P.L.R.  I know that it will recharge quicker and, if I get into a firefight that can mean the difference between life and death. Ok, on to the next big bit. The C.Q.C. claws and anti-personnel lasers. Just what the hell are those?”
The claws are 8x2 inch combat blades stored in your forearms that can be extended for use in C.Q.C. or the silent removal of an opponent .The a.p. lasers are just that. Lasers in the index and pinky fingers of each hand. You are able to target up to four different opponents at one time.
“So if I am facing multiple opponents then I have a chance to win... is that what you’re saying?”
Basically, Yes. Now for the sonic disrupters in the chest. They produce an ultra-high frequency sound wave that attacks the nervous systems of anyone within range, rendering them comatose.
“Holy shit! You mean to tell me I have a shatter rock band in my chest?”
Not quite but that is a good comparison, honey. (Giggle)
“Hey, I know that is not what you meant, but you know how much I hate shatter rock. Ok, what’s up with the C3 suit and radar tracking stuff?”
Well, what I can figure out is this. In our current configuration you were meant to operate on your own using the local populace as rebel troops. Now because of this fact you were not meant to be on the front lines, but act as more of a command and control adviser.
“Now that makes the most sense of anything else you’ve shown me or told me in the last 30 minutes. Now, I can basically tell what all that physical upgrade stuff is, but what are traction assist pads?”
Those are for climbing walls hills and cliffs my dear. They will give you a much better grip on whatever surface you have to climb.
“Cool! That can come in real handy. Now, is there any way to turn off or disguise this armored skin covering? I really don't feel like walking around as a teenage boy's anime wet dream all of the time.”
I've been working on that and I think I have figured it out. There is a command file for controlling the armor skin. All you should have to do is say out loud, 'disengage armor.' Now while the skin armor your weapon will still be accessible if needs be.
“Alright! I can get out of this cat suit. Disengage Armor!”  With that I feel a tingling sensation all along my body where the armor was. I look down and get the shock of a life time. I was naked as the day I was born. YYYEEEIIIKKKEESSS! I have to admit, not one of the finer moments in my life, nor graceful for that matter.
“Frack it all to Hell!!! Dee De you should have told me I would be naked as the day I was born Dagnabit! Don’t tell me that you didn't know about that either, you tin plated ass clown.”
(Giggle) I told you I would get even, love. Now you know the first rule when it comes to being a woman. Don’t get mad, get even... and when possible, one up! (Giggle)
Now any intelligent person would have thought to revise the previous command at that point right then and there. Unfortunately for me, I was a little distracted by getting mad at Dee De. And of course my luck being what it is. Basically if I didn't have bad luck, I wouldn’t have any luck at all. So here I am, butt ass naked, and who should come waltzing into the hanger office but my favorite male officer and A.P.S. Pilot, Cpt. Howard. Excuse me ma'am. But there’s a Mr. Randal Reed here to... Woah!!
 The poor man stops dead in his tracks and mid-sentence upon getting a good look at me. He turns beet red and quickly does an about face. Me, I try to cover up and find a place to hide all at the same time. Of course Dee De just has to get in one last dig before letting me reengage the skin armor to cover up my body.
(Giggle) And so ends the lesson my young apprentice. (Giggle)
“Alright already, you win! Now how do I get that armor back?”
Just say, 'activate armor” dear.
“Activate armor!” I nearly scream out. I feel the tingling rush as my armor quickly covers me back up. Once it has, I stand up and cough. “Okay Cpt. It’s all clear. You can look now.” As he turns back around, I feel the need to apologize. “Sorry about that. I was trying to figure out how to turn off my armor so I can look a little more normal.”
“That’s quite alright ma'am. I should have knocked before just barging in like I did.” He said with a slight smile and a little bit of a blush on his face. “Just wasn’t expecting to walk in on a naked teenage girl.”
The total stupidity of the situation and the look on his face are so totally F.U.B.A.R. that I can't help but to bust out laughing. It's not too long before the Cpt. joins in with me. After a few minutes, and when we finally calm down, I ask the good Cpt. why he was in such a hurry.
“Oh. There is a Mr. Randal Reed from planetary immigration to see you and the H.C. staff. Something about the application of one Maiha Mana Steel Heart to the Joan Eunice Smith School for Young Ladies. Can I ask you a question ma'am? Would that be you he wants to talk about with the H.C. staff?”
“Cpt. what you are about to hear is classified Ultra Eyes only, do you understand?” I asked him. “Do you understand the consequences should you leak any of this?” At the nod of his head I knew that he could be trusted with everything that was going on here. “Yes I am, or will be, Maiha Mana Steel Heart, my granddaughter that never was. Both me and the H.C.S. needed some way to explain why a female minor was on that flight and related to JJ Owens, who is no longer among the living, leaving her an orphan. But I thought they were going to enroll me at H.M.A. not some girl school? I think I need to get in there and find out just what those yahoos have been doing. Care to join me?”
“It would be my pleasure ma'am. I’ve pissed off enough of the High Command that I know I'll never rise above captain and that one more black mark won't make a difference.
At that last comment I turned to look at my escort. From the look of him I would say he's in his mid to late 40s, in good health and excellent shape. He was obviously highly intelligent and educated a graduate of one of the better military universities he should be at least a brigade executive commanding officer, or maybe even a full bird colonel.
“Cpt. you can tell me to go to hell if you want, but why are you still just a Cpt. of an A.P.S. company and not a brigade X.O. or C.O.?”
Now most career officers would get upset over that kind of question so I was greatly surprised when he just laughed and said. “It’s really quite simple ma'am. Though my performance Evals says I'm a fine commander of troops, I lack the potential to understand the political possibilities that come with higher advancement.”
“In other words you have no respect for your so called betters from the High Families right?” I ask him with a grin.
Chuckling, he replies, “Got in one ma'am. My previous C.O's all felt that I should pay the High Families officers in my unit more respect than what I do. I just can't see why an accident of birth should place one person over another socially, or give them a more preferred station over someone who has actually worked their ass off for, and should be rewarded with, that station.”
“You know Cpt. Howard; I think that you and I are going to get along just swimmingly. If I remember correctly, there were a few Evals like that in my own Personnel File. Kind of funny really, when you look at the woman who married me all those years ago, I mean who would've thought that a backwoods, uneducated, unrefined swamp rat the likes of me rate a woman like her?” While we're talking, I'm looking up at him. Hell I have to look up at just about everyone here. This sucks majorly big time, being this short. I didn’t realize just how short I was until that moment.
“Hey Dee De... what are our stats?”
Do you really want to know right now? You have other things to take care of.
“I'm going to need that info sooner or later and, from the looks on the faces of the H.C.S., it will most likely be sooner. So what are they?”
Ok you ask for it. We stand 5ft even, weigh a total of 97lbs, have black hair with green eyes our measurements are 29-21-28 with a B cup.
I damn near trip over my own feet upon hearing that. Howard notices and asks me if I'm alright. “Yes Cpt. I'm fine. My AI just read off my stats to me and they caught me off guard is all.”
“Hum... ma'am, I wouldn’t let those folks over there know that your AI is still active, as well as functional.” He says, with some fear in his voice.
Stopping him, I look up at him and say, “Cpt. Howard, they already know. They also know I'm in full control over it and all the systems that I now have on board this body, so relax. But thank you for your concern. Now let’s go deal with the monkey nuts of the High Command Staff, good Sir.”
With a flourish of a bow and a hearty chuckle he responds, “Right this way my Lady.”
As we approach the table that the H.C.S. has been using since all of this began, I realize it’s been over 5hrs from the time that the drop ship had landed. I can tell they are all tired and worn out. If all they have been able to accomplish is to get me down on this rock legally, then I owe all of them my profound thanks. Because I really don’t want to fight with every L.E.O. unit out there. I take a quick head count. There’s Lt. Walking Water from Pers.Com. by the collar insignia, Com. House from Telecom, the Maj. from Intel. Security, the Head of Space Port Security, another Maj. from Intelligence, and finally a Col. from Space Command.
“Ok people. From the looks of satisfaction on your faces I take it you were successful in putting everything in place for me to become my granddaughter?” I ask. As they nod their heads in the affirmative I have to ask myself, how did old Stoney find such a band of highly skilled, motivated and dedicated officers and not ruin them? “Alright, let me have it. But I would like each of you to explain your part individually so I know who to thank for what.”
The Col. from Space Command stood up first and cleared his throat. “Commander, allow me to introduce myself. Colonel Warn C. Campbell of the Space Command. I think that I had the easiest part in all of this. All I had to do was give my approval to whatever these fine officers need.” And with that he sat back down.
Giggling and shaking my head, I reply, “Col. If that was all there was to being command, and then every command level officer I know would sleep better at night.” I give him a smile then say, “Thank you for all you did to make this project happen. Next.”
The two Intel Maj's stood up next. “That would be us ma'am. I'm Maj. Tom T. Wallace and this here Is Maj. Malcom Ford with Intel Security. Basically ma'am, our job was to hack into the different data bases so that we could get in there and change certain records.” He made that statement with a whole lot of pride. If the two of them pulled that off then they had every right to be proud.
“Well, I guess that I'm up next, seeing as how we are going in descending order of rank here. I'm Space Port Security Chief, Robert Plant. I had the enjoyable task of putting one Vic. Lord High Marshal, Richard Steven Blackstone, and his Honorable Lord High Marshall General Sir Alexander Wellington Stonewall in hand cuffs. I followed them shortly thereafter, to a holding cell at my station to await transfer to Earth Prime under armed guard where they will stand trial for gross negligence and cowardice in front of the enemy and treason in the form of attempting to cover up their actions in the Battle of Four Points on the planet of Haven Mist. All I can say is that for once, Military High Command Earth Prime is doing the right thing.”
I noticed that he gave his report with an almost gleeful bounce that was barely contained. I just had to ask why he was so happy about putting a Lord High Marshal and his Vic. behind bars. “Ma'am that’s simple. I was there at Four Points, as a crew member of one of the Bradley’s. I lost a lot of friends during that S.N.A.F.U. and when Stonewall was promoted, instead of being court marshalled, I almost went A.W.O.L. I would've gladly put a bullet in that s.o.b's head! If a friend hadn’t stopped me, I would be the one in that cell, not Stoney.
 Well that explained why he was so happy. “Commander Owens, I owe my life to your daughter and son-in-law, so if you ever need anything, well, all you need do is ask and, if it is within my power, it shall be done.” He finished with a very deep and formal bow from the waist, and then sat down.
To say I was a bit overwhelmed would be an understatement. As I tried to gather my thoughts, Commander House stood up to give his report.
“Well, as you already know ma'am, I am Commander Johnathan House of Tel.Com. and it was my great pleasure and task to make and maintain the communications ties that allowed all these fine officers to perform their duties.” House was a little smug with his report but then again he had every right to be. The sheer number of planet wide connections that had to be made, and maintained, was staggering, not to mention the transmitting system connections, just to cover all the data bases.
“Cmdr. If you ever need a reference, just let me know. You'll get it and then some. The advantage to being as old as I am is I know where most of the skeletons are hidden.” I said to him, then turned to the last person who was in uniform, Lt Walking Water, the master mind of this whole crazy ass scheme. “Well Lt. Walking Water, I'm waiting for your report.”
As she stands up, she tugs at the hem of her jacket then clears her thoughts. “Well ma'am, everything went according to my original plan, until it came time to enroll you in school.” From the look on her face we had hit a major snag.
I decided to give her a break. “In the words of the Great General, Robert E. Lee, 'No plan survives contact with the enemy.' So what happened?”
With a sigh, she replied, “Well Cmdr. It would appear that we made one minor mistake that has snow balled out of our control. When we tried to register you with the Hades Military Academy, the name we used threw up all kinds of flags to the administration. It seems that, for you to attend the H.M.A. would be beneath your station.”
I nearly came unglued. Just what do you mean, beneath my station!?
“Hum, well you see, it’s like this. You are now the head of your dead wife’s house and for you to attend a Military Academy would be a great insult to the rest of the house.” She at least had the decency to be embarrassed when she reported that and what followed. “Whether you like it or not, you Commander, are now a member of the High Families, and not just any member, you are the Head of the House.
I can’t believe what I’m hearing. Me? The Head of House for a High family? There must be some kind of mistake. I know there is, because Matsu had a younger sister who would have taken her place when she died.  
“Wait a minute... what about my wife’s sister? Shouldn’t she be the next Head of House?”
“Sorry ma'am, but you are it. The reason for that was stated by your other self, earlier. When you stated that, if I remember right, she was the eldest child in her family placing her first in line for the Nakatoma Shogunate. After her, would have been your daughter. Then after her would've been her child. So that was what we went off, when setting up your back ground and history. Since we can't very well lie to the administration, or to your wife’s family, that you are the heir to both your daughters and wife’s heritage, we couldn’t get you enrolled at H.M.A.”
I could tell that this was not what she was planning or counting on. She had her head down, looking like someone had killed her puppy. It was a brilliant plan, and it would’ve worked perfectly if not for my new name.
“It's alright Lt. Outside of that little problem the plan went off without a hitch. So don’t get upset over something out of your control. Now tell what you came up with to solve the problem.” While giving her my best encouraging smile.
Looking over at me, she can tell I'm not disappointed in her. The young lady straightens up, squares her shoulders and continues with her report. “Well when we found out we couldn't get you into H.M.A., we listed all the schools that we could put you in. That’s when we found out that there is a rep. for the Nakatoma Shogunate here on Hades, right here in Haifa, who would be your great aunt. It seems that the Grand Lady has decided that someone is trying to use the family name, and the fact that your daughter died in action, to pose as someone they are not. It seems that she was notified by the Office of Education and Cultural History. Well, she demanded they send an investigator over to first find out if you really are her great grandniece, and if you are, then why were you trying to enroll at H.M.A.?” With that she sits down signaling that she is done with her report.
“Thank you Lt. I know that you did your absolute best and gave it 110%. All right, now that we know that what the problem is, what do we do now?” I ask them.
Cpt. Howard speaks up at that point. “I believe this is where I come in ma'am. For the last hour or so, me and my team have been stalling one Mr. Randal Reed. He has been trying to get in here by demanding to see Mr. James J. Owens and whoever is supposed to be his granddaughter. It seems that he is some kind of inspector from the O.E.C.H. I don't really know, because the self-important ass hat won't let me see his credentials, so I have been letting him cool his heels out on the tarmac. I figured that something might have gone wrong with whatever the H.C.S. was trying in here, so I kind of decided to put him on hold till I got the ok from one of them to let him in.”
At hearing this I can't help but bust out laughing. Apparently the H.C.S. also found this funny. By simply following his orders, the Cpt. had saved the whole operation, giving us the time to think up something to tell the O.E.C.H. inspector. By the Gods, this man should be a Division Commander not just a lowly Company C.O. If I have my way I will correct the injustice that has be done him by narrow minded fools in his past.
“Okay Cpt. If you would please let your team know to let Mr. Reed in?” I ask him. After a nod from him to acknowledge my request, I turn back to everyone else. “All right folks, you have all done a fantastic job. Now it's time for me to do mine, and that is dealing with that ass clown from the O.E.C.H. out there. Now everyone put a sober look on your faces. We need to make this look like the investigation into what happened earlier. To be precise, the death of Cmdr. James J. Owens and the orphaning of Maiha Mana Steel Heart.  Oh, how are we explaining my apparent age, seeing as how it would be kind of hard for my Daughter to have a 16yr. old child when she died over 20 yrs. ago?”
A giggle from Lt. Walking Water grabbed my attention. “Out with it Lt. What did you do?” I demanded.
“Well it was really simple, ma'am. A search of the Gift Life data banks showed that your daughter and son-in-law had made illegal deposits in a non-military bank on Atlas Prime. The only person who knew about it was your wife, but she was in the beginning stages of her illness when she was told. Now, 18yrs. ago when she passed away, you were asked by your family lawyer what you wanted to do with the Life-Takes on Atlas Prime. Well, seeing as how this was the first you had heard of this, you naturally investigated it. When finding out that there were enough embryos to try five times for a grandchild, you told the Gift Life bank to proceed with all five, hoping to get at least one to 'take. Out of the five you were the only one to go full term. After you were born your grandfather raised you on his own. No nannies or sitters not even a Medbot to help.
You were placed in the public school system back on Rigel 5, where you were schooled until you earned the scholarship to H.M.A. in Haifa, at age 15. Your grandfather was so proud that he immediately gave his approval for you to attend.” 
The look of pride on her face was well earned. It was perfect. All the way around. G.L. banks were notorious for keeping their records secret. Not even the High Families would dare to question them. Nobody in their right mind screwed with the Gift of Life Banks, not if they wanted to be able to continue their family line. A simple accident in the cold storage vaults and an entire family line could be wiped out. No, they were the last people you wanted pissed off at you. Now I truly understand why the H.C.S. was so proud. Not only had they cracked the Banks security but had changed the data to show how I, Maiha Mana Steel Heart, came into being 16yrs ago, along with an entire history that was totally believable. To say that I was impressed would be an understatement.
“Ok, that explains my existence but how do we explain my current appearance. I mean this is not the current fashion for traveling.” I ask everyone here.
Cpt. Howard looks at me, and then says, “Ma'am I know that you can make your suit disappear. How about we get you a standard ships suit out of storage along with boots? You put that on over your cat suit then make it disappear. That way it'll look like your clothes were damaged during the landing and this was all we could find for you?”
“Yeah! That'll work! Let’s do it. How long till Mr. Reed gets here?” I say.
“Long enough for what needs to be done, ma'am.” He replies, with a wink. A little over 15 minutes later I was dressed in a standard gray suits suit and boots. I quickly disengaged the Armor Skin and I looked like a normal teenage girl.
A few minutes later the hanger bay doors opened letting in a Mark 24 with a civilian ground transport. I could tell that the driver was not happy, but then again neither would I be, if I had a 120mm rail gun pointed at my ass. Just the fact that the troops in Howards command didn't like this joker spoke volumes for his ability to lead men and women. I knew that I could trust them. After stopping a short distance away and getting out of the transport the driver made a big show of straightening out his suit and tie. I could just hear his thoughts: 'If these piss ant Military types think that they can bully me into just accepting their word for this imposter, they have another think coming'. I think I'll save time and just start hating the asshole now instead of latter.
Walking up to Col. House, thinking that he was the one in charge, the little shit puffs out his chest and demands, in a loud voice. “I want to know right now where the Lord High Marshal is and why does he think he can just pass off some street urchin as a member of the High Families?” Yup. Just as I thought. The little freak is an inspector working for the High Families. If he is with the O.E.C.H. then that means the Nakatoma Shogunate has a lot more pull on this rock that they used to. I'll have to play this carefully.
Stepping forward I cough to get his attention. As he turns to look at me I say, in the most non-threating tone I can come up with. “Sir? I beg your pardon, but I believe that you are here to see me, not the former Lord High Marshal?”
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 4
Listen here little girl
“Listen here little girl. I don’t know who you think you are but this conversation is for adults only. Now why don’t you go over there and wait by that guard.” He said, pointing at Cpt. Howard. Now I could handle being called ‘little girl,’ I could even deal with his disrespectful attitude toward me. BUT I’ll be damned if I’ll let him disrespect the men and women in this room. NOT EVEN ON HIS BEST DAY.
“I’ll have you know sir, that I am Maiha Mana Owns-Steel Hart the daughter of Cpt. Ohmie Owns-Steel Heart, Granddaughter to Matsue Nakatoma Owns and Commander James J. Owns of the 1bt. 1brg. 101st Death Dealers Div. NOT SOME STREET URCHIN! If you do not start showing me the proper amount of respect then you can join the Former Lord High Marshal and his Vic. Lord High Marshal in the holding cell over at Port Security to await transport to Earth Prime on charges of attempted Treason in the act of interfering with the rightful succession of the a Head of House to the rightful heir.” Was my response. 
Now normally I would most likely be trying to help out this asshole with discrediting me as I really do hate the High Families and the ruling Classes with all their bullshit, but all of the people in this room have put everything on the line for me because at one time I was one of the most respected and feared Death Dealers out there. I had a chest full of medals to prove my bravery and those of the men who followed me. At that moment I quit my pretending to be my Granddaughter as I had originally planned. 
What I became was someone my wife and daughter would be proud to claim as a daughter and granddaughter. I become the Grandchild of the one warrior’s around the Galaxy call, Death personified. I was truly Deaths Own Daughter. 
“Now if you have any doubt as to my claim to which I am then get that portable D.N.A. scanner out of your transport, take a sample of my blood, verify who I am, or get the FRACKING HELL out of here so that these good people can get back to work investigating the death of my grandfather.”
Well, upon hearing this, the Inspector actually decided to try and call what he thought was an obvious bluff. Returning to the transport he got out what can only be described as what would happen if a toolbox mated with a table. The thing had more bells, whistles, and thingamabobs than anyone could, or would, be able to count.
“Dee De? Can you hack that piece of shit and give us what we need to pass?”
Child, are you trying to get me mad at you?
“No. Never on purpose honey.”
Ok. But why do you want this jackass to verify that you’re a High Families heir? I thought you’d welcome the chance to walk away from all that B.S.?
“Because every one of these people put their necks on the line to help us. But it was my stupid mistake that fouled everything up.”
Ok just wanted to make sure kiddo. Now let me work on the scanner.
After taking a blood sample from my left arm and placing it in the scanner, the Inspector walked away from me to wait for the results. Five minutes later we heard a beep sound from the D.N.A. the results were in. The Inspector looks down at the results and turns as pale as a sheet. 
“Sir are you all right? You look as though you have seen a ghost? I mean you’re white as a sheet.” I ask with all the fake concern I could muster.
“You really are her. But how? Everyone knows that your mother never gave birth to any children.” Was the only thing that came out of his mouth.
“That sir, is none of your concern. But I take it that there is no longer any doubt of my heritage?” I ask.
“Oh no! My Lady! Please forgive me. I was going off of the information that was in the O.E.C.H. data base. This is clearly an out of date data base, Lady Steel Heart.” Was his real quick reply.
I can tell that the stupid sorry son of a bitch did not want to get me any more pissed off than I already was. 
“But my Lady, there are going to be questions as to your birth because the High Families data bases of heirs do not show your mother ever having given birth to a child. Even the Military dependents data base doesn’t list you as the daughter of Cpt. Ohmie Owns-Steal Heart.” At that I looked over at Lt. Walking Water as if to ask what is going on.
“Um….Yes Lady Steel Heart that is true. It seems that your grandfather never registered your birth with ether of those data bases, just the local data base that he was required by law to. Would you know of any reason for him not to have registered you with the High Families Heir data base or the Military dependents data base?” So that’s how she’s going to get the story put of the G.L. Bank deposits.
I have to hand it to the woman. Her mind is sharp as a steel trap and twice as quick. Since they couldn’t access ether of those two extremely secure servers without bringing down the Civilian or Military Authorities, she would just let them ‘correct’ their own D.B.s with the supposed correct information. By the Gods it was a perfect job of deception on the part of the H.C.S. All I have to do is give Mr. Reed here the G.L.B. and he’ll do the rest. I almost blow it by giggling, but stop it before it can pass my lips. With a heavy sigh and a little pout I look down at the floor. I know that I if look at Reed I’ll just lose it. 
“Lt. Walking Water, as you know, I am the last of my family line. You also know that I never knew my parents. The only member of my family that I will ever know will be my grandpa. You see, before my mother and father deployed with the 3rd A.C.R. to Haven Mist, they each left a Life-Take with a non-military Gift of Life Bank on Atlas Prime, all highly illegal by the Military Uniform Code of Justice. They felt that if the unit, or they themselves, had somehow disgraced themselves and died that at least the family blood lines would carry on, even if the Military purged their G.L. Bank. Which was exactly what happened.
But it was done for all the wrong reasons. The troops of the 3rd A.C.R. we’re not the ones who should have been blamed. No, that charge should have gone to the General who was in charge of the operational command of the Assault on Haven Mist; Sir Alexander Stonewall. All of the parties involved sought to cover up his mistakes and that of his X.O. by placing the blame on the troops, just to save the career of a High Families soiled little prince. But that act of treason has at last been brought to light and the reason for it and the ones responsible.  Well anyway, the only person who knew about the Life-Takes was my grandmother. Unfortunately, when she was told, she had already entered the second stage of her illness.”
I stop and wipe the tears from my eyes as I think back to that terrible time in my life. Not being able to do nothing to help my beloved wife the only woman to ever capture my heart and soul. With a deep breath I continue the tale of my ‘new life’. 
“After she passed away, the family lawyer asked my grandpa what he wanted done with the Life-Takes in the Gift of Life Banks on Atlas Prime. When he found out about them he immediately contacted the G.L.B. When he found out there was enough material for five attempts for a viable embryo he gave the go ahead for all five attempts. Out of the five I was the only success.
Now, because I was conceived from ‘illegal’ Life-Takes, I have no rights to my mother or fathers dependent benefits. As far as the High Families go, well, grandpa never really could tolerate all of the political bullshit that dominates the ruling classes. So he went out of his way to give me as normal life as possible. Away from their meddling and backstabbing ways of the High Families.” I sniffle a little wipe some more tears from my eyes.
As I look back up at Reed I notice that over half of the H.C.S, have moved so that they aren’t in his line of sight. Over half really, and they all have this look on their faces as if they're are trying to keep from busting out laughing. I swear, if Reed wasn’t standing in front of me I’d pound the crap out of each and every one of them.
“I really don’t know why grandpa disliked the High Families. I just know it had something to do with something that happened way before my mother was born and after he and grandmother were married. Now can you tell me who in my grandmothers’ family is so all fired up over my existence all of a sudden?” I decided to move this talk over to the table by walking over and taking a seat.
Mr. Reed, seeing a chance at redemption with me and H.C.S, quietly joined me at the table. 
“Well, as to that Lady Steel Heart, it would be none other than your great aunt The Lady Nakatoma Dai Etsu, who you will be replacing as the ruling Head of House now that you have been able to prove your claim to the title as well as your birth right. Oh, and do not doubt that your great aunt has your best interest in mind. You see as it stands right now there is no one who can claim the Seat without challenge. Except for you, that is. Since it was believed that your grandmother died without an heir, the lesser members of the Nakatoma Family have taken to fighting amongst themselves. This infighting has cost the Family almost half of its members. Not to put too blunt of a point on the matter, you showing up now on Hades will put a stop to a good amount of needless bloodshed.” Reed puts his tablet on the table and begins to type out a message to someone.
“Excuse me Mr. Reed, but who are you sending that text to sir?” asked Cpt. Howard with a very threating tone to his voice. I swear I can hear the targeting computer in his Mark 24 giving him a hard lock for the rail gun and all he needs is the all clear to fire.  I can tell that if he doesn’t like Reed’s answer that the man is a goner.
“Why, the Lady Maiha’s great aunt, to tell her the good news. That there is a true heir that the Nakatoma Shogunate and she is of her older sister’s line, a true Nakatoma. In both stature and attitude. Someone who will be able to put an end to the fighting.” Was all Mr. Reed said never looking at the Cpt. for a minute, he just kept typing.
I know that I have to step in before the man gets his head handed to him on a platter. “Excuse me. Mr. Reed, but I would ask for permission before sending that message.”
He looks up at me with true confusion on his face. “Why, my Lady?”
I just look at him. I can’t believe he has no idea of how the military works. “Mr. Reed this is still an ongoing military investigation. For you to be here is to place all of the work of the H.C.S. in jeopardy. I must ask for you not to send that message just yet, please?”
“Oh my. I had no idea that this was a full investigation. May I ask how you are involved my lady?” he said.
I look up at Col. House for some help here. I can’t very well tell him I’m the reason for the investigation. Thankfully I don’t have too, the Col. Comes to my rescue. 
“Sir, the reason for the investigation is to determine why the Lady’s grandfather, at the age of 97 and at great risk to his health, would get on a drop ship, but wouldn’t go so far as to make sure his only living relative would be sure to get an appointment the one of the premier Military Academies in the known Galaxy.”
“I thought that the reason for the investigation was to confirm her I.D. because of my involvement at this point.” Was all he said to that. “If there is any way that I can help I would be glad to offer my services on behalf of the Nakatoma Shogunate and the Lady Nakatoma-Steel Heart.”
“Whoa, wait a minute. When did I become The Lady Nakatoma-Steel Heart?” I ask with some heat to my voice. “I thought I told you my name was Maiha Mana Owns-Steel Heart.”
The looks that everyone gives me are ones of 'Oh you poor deluded child don’t you realize that was always your name?'. I can tell you this much it’s enough to get me pissed off royally. But before I can say one word to all of them Maj. Ford puts his hand on my shoulder, stopping me in my tracks before I can even get up a good head of steam.
“Lady Maiha, once Mr. Reed was able to confirm your Family heritage and, when you were able to give the missing information as to where you came from, followed by your very blunt if not outright claim to the Head of House Nakatoma, you basically changed your name to that of Lady Nakatoma Steel Heart, I’m afraid.” Was all he had to say. Once again I let my alligator mouth overload my jay-bird ass. Damn it! When will I learn to keep my trap shut!
“Now Mr. Reed I know that the O.E.C.H. handles most challenges to High Family title claims and you do investigate any reported attempts at defrauding those Families, how is it that you think you’ll be able to help in a purely military investigation sir?”
“Well, seeing as how there was an attempt to cover up the death of an heir to the Head of House of one of the most important Shogunates, I have full authority to bring the entire weight of all the ruling Houses to bear. I can get into data bases that would be closed to all of you.” He said this as if he did it every day, as if investigating corruption among the High Families was an everyday thing. But then again for all I know it probably is. “But that is for the future. Right now we have a slightly more pressing issue.”
I look over at him, wondering just what that can be. “Could you please explain just what is more important than the investigation of either the death of my grandpa or the cover up of my parents?”
“Well that should be obvious Lady Nakatoma. Your enrollment at the Joan Eunice Smith School for Young Ladies and an introduction to your great aunt Lady Dai Etsu. But first we need to get you something a little more appropriate to wear than a ships suit and boots. By the way, why are you wearing a military issue ships suit?” He asked with some curiosity. 
“She was covered in a highly flammable fluid from a ruptured line on board the drop ship that was caring both her and her grandfather. When the Medical and Engineering Teams got to them they immediately placed her in quarantine for her protection. One of the first things they did was to remove the travelling clothes she was wearing because if they came into contact with an ignition source they, and her, would have gone up in flames.” Was the answer supplied by Chief Plaint. After all he was the person in charge of Port Security and all that entails. “They believe that was what finally killed Cmdr. Owns in the end. The exposure to the fluid, not his heart attack, caused his dormant D.D.AI to activate and try to save his life by using its emergency Medical cocoon. Unfortunately it was too little too late. The Cmdr. had already passed away.”
“Ah that explains the Lady’s unusual attire. I’m sorry if I have made you at all uncomfortable with asking these questions ma’ Lady.” Was all the ass hat said to me. I swear, if I wasn’t supposed to be a teenage girl I would have beat the mortal hell of him. As it was, a heads up display popped up a targeting reticule with the question of ‘IS THIS A VALID TARGET: YES OR NO’.  Now I have to say that was one hell of a question to ask at that point in time. I quickly answer no.
Standing up I say to everyone “Excuse me Ladies and Gentlemen, but I need a break for a few minutes.” And got up to leave the table.
“Maj. Howard would you please provide escort to Lady Nakatoma?” asked Mr. Reed.
“Mr. Reed, its Captain, not Major.” Replied Cpt. Howard.
“Oh I made no mistake sir. You see the lowest rank the commanding officer of a body guard unit for a Head of House is Major, and since you are the only one who can fill the position that Lady Maiha trusts, that is your new rank. Congratulations sir.” Said Reed with a very smug look on his face.
“Wait one fracking minute here! Who says I need a bodyguard or even a bodyguard unit?” I almost scream. “Especially one that’s as heavily armed as a P.D.F. A.P.S. unit!”
“True, most bodyguard units are made up off highly trained combat infantry troops, but seeing the unquestioning loyalty that Maj. Howards troops have shown to you ma’ Lady Maiha, I thought it would be better to just have them assigned to your House as bodyguards than try to find a House unit that would be just as loyal. For you to not have such a unit would just be asking for trouble. So you see, all very prudent and proper.” Was his only reply to my show of temper.
He didn’t even raise an eyebrow, as if dealing with High Families spoiled little brats was an everyday thing for him. Then it hit me like a ton of ship hull metal. Everything we have been dealing with here as far as my new life WAS an everyday situation for him. But there was still something bugging me about this man. And I know just who to ask once I have some privacy. So I just turn around and head for the restroom. 
Once inside away from prying eyes I step into the first stall and drop the ships suit so I can use the restroom. For the first time I realize what all my new body will entail. From going to the bathroom, to clothes, menstruation and giving birth. Oh boy! I can’t deal with all this right now. So first relieve the bladder and then get some info on Reed. Like one of my old C.O.s used to say, “Knowing is half the battle.”
“Ok Dee De, what can you tell me about our friend out there, Mr. Reed. I can tell he ain’t no ordinary O.E.C.H. investigator.”
Give me a couple of minutes to check the registry for O.E.C.H. 
D.D.A.I.: ACCESSING OFFICE OF EDUCATION AND CULTURAL HISTORY
D.D.A.I.: LISTINGS FOR RANDAL REED INVESTIGATOR
D.D.A.I: ONE LISTING FOUND
D.D.A.I.: DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF EDUCATION AND CULTURAL HISTORY
Ok hon, I think we might want to go along with whatever Mr. Reed wants to do here.
“You can say that again! If he wants, he can make our life a real living Hell.”
In more ways than one, kid. So let’s go play nice for now. Later, when we have time, we’ll come up with our own plan of action.
“But first I need to get Reed to out himself so the H.C.S. knows who they're dealing with.”
I finish up, wipe, then leave the stall. I wash my hands and head back out. As I leave the restroom I find Cpt. Howard just outside of the door. “Cpt. Howard I’m sorry for what Reed is pulling here with you and your men. If you want, once I figure out what’s going on, I’ll get you all back to your regular assignment. Is that ok with you?”
“Look Cmdr. I don’t know what all is going on right now or who that jack hole out there is, but there is one thing that I do know. I and the men and women of my command all owe our lives to the man and woman who were your son-in-law and daughter. That is why, when you first exited your cocoon and put ‘Stoney’ and his ass kissing lackey in their places I called in the rest of my company. I know, more than the rest, what Death Dealer over ride codes look like.” Came his whisper. “There is no way a teenager could be what you had claimed to be. So I knew that something was up. I may be just a dumb-ass A.P.S. Jock, but I do have some brains.
Now that being said, I let all of my pilots know that the daughter of Captains Ohmie and Richard Steel Heart was in here trying to clear her parents’ names and the names of everyone in the 3rd A.C.R. that served at Four Points. As you guessed earlier, most of the people in my unit are older than most at the same rank. You see, all of us were in the 3rd at Four Points or had someone who was. I can say with all honesty that we’ll die to the last man for you after what you have done here today.” I didn’t know what to say. But Dee De sure did.
By all that’s Holy! The man called Death personified rendered speechless twice in one day. Hell has truly frozen over.
“Oh shut up and give me a break here. How was I to know that this would happen just by busting old ‘Stoney’s’ chops?”
“Cpt. I truly do not know what to say.” Was all I could come up with at that time.
“No sweat ma’ Lady. Just know that you can always count on Delta Company 4th of the 503rd A.P. Regiment Hell Hounds. We may not be Death Dealers, but I can promise you this much. After we get done with whoever has made the mistake of pissing us off they will wish they were never born.” He said with some pride. I can tell that his troops have earned that respect just by the look in his eyes. Oh yes, him and his troops well make supreme bodyguards.
“Alright Major lets go back to dealing with the monkeys shall we?” I say with a smile.
With a very deep and sarcastic bow. “Of course ma’ Lady Nakatoma Steel Heart. After you ma’ lady.”
“You know that they shoot smartasses where I come from, Maj. Howard?” It's all I can get out before losing it and starting to giggle. Oh man I’m becoming such a girl. I hope I don’t lose what I need to be a hard ass when I need it. That behavioral dump by the C.O.B.R.A. o.s. is really messing with my head.
Don’t worry James. I will always be here to keep you grounded when you need it. As far as you not being able to be a hard ass.  DON’T MAKE ME LAUGH! That will always be there. It’s too far down to get to, even with explosives.
“Thanks Dee. I really needed that right then.”
Like I said, grounded.
“So I have been told ma’ Lady, so I’ve been told.”  Maj. Howard said with a chuckle.
I just shake my head and walk back into the hanger bay. As I enter the bay though, I get the shock of a life time. Besides the Marauder from earlier, it has been joined by 3 other Armored Power Suits of different makes and weights. Now the Marauder was an Assault class power suit and was, without a doubt, the heaviest.  But the other three were a complete mystery to me.
“Maj. Howard why are there four A.P. suits in the hanger bay?”
“Oh the commanders of the other lances in my company wish to introduce themselves to you Lady Nakatoma. From the scout lance, 2nd Lt. Marcy Howl in the Mustang. 2nd Lt. Lisa Von Rickover in the Stryker from the close support lance, and last, my X.O. 1st Lt. Stephanie Wolf in the Rifleman from the heavy attack lance. I asked 1st Sergeant Miller to keep an eye on things while you were using the facilities. My officers felt he could use a hand on keeping everyone here, plus keeping them in line and not doing things without your approval.” Was all the man said. As if 80 tons of combat firepower was not enough to get a point across as is.
I almost laugh at the absurdity of the situation. I mean no one in this room has more than a hand gun to use against that monster and they bring in even more. If it wouldn’t be bad manners or set an unwanted standard I would be laughing. So instead I turn to him and with a small smile I say, 
                       
“Major Howard, I am honored that your officers would show such respect for one they have not met. Please give them my respects, but please ask them to wait outside. I will talk to all of them when time permits.” Then I bow to the man as a sign of respect.
With a simple nod to acknowledge my order, he turns toward the A.P.S. s and signals them with a hand sign. As one, they all bow then turn toward the hanger door and walk out in step with each other. That plain, but simple maneuver shows me one thing and it’s something the others would not grasp. This was a unit that is made up of highly trained, dedicated and deadly professionals. To underestimate them would to be detrimental to one's health. To be very honest I would be cautious of sending Death Dealers against them. Turning to the gathered representatives of the local planetary government, I proceed back to the table and take a seat.
“Now ladies and gentlemen let us get back down to business. But before we do, Mr. Reed can you please enlighten myself and the others as to why you can just make such sweeping gestures as reassigning an enter A.P.S. company from the P.D.F. over to House unit command?”  I ask of him.
“Oh my! I never introduced myself?” he asks.
“No. You didn’t.” was all I needed to say for him to turn bright red with embarrassment.
“Please forgive me, Lady Nakatoma, for my rudeness. I am the Director of Education and Cultural History for the planet of Hades and the Death Gates System. As such it is well within my powers of office to perform all that I have done. I merely need to send out the authorizations and everything will be taken care of.”
Thank you so much, you shit for brains diplomat! You could've saved us lot of heart ache if you had just told everyone who you were from the beginning! I wanted to scream at him, but held my temper in check. Thank goodness for Col. House, though he didn’t need to hold in his.
“YOU IGNORANT ASS!! DO YOU REALIZE HOW MUCH TIME YOU COULD HAVE SAVED US IF WE HAD KNOWN WHO YOU WERE!? By the Gods of battle man, don’t they teach you people over there that information in a situation like this is key?” The man was red with rage. At that point I decided to bail out the Director, as I still needed his help.
“Please ladies and gentlemen, let us try to maintain our composure and keep a civil tongue in our heads. Getting upset over a minor transgression is silly. Now Director, you were saying something about my enrollment at some all-girls school instead of the Hades Military Academy? May I ask why I can’t attend the H.M.A.?” I can tell that my question has caught him off guard. As he sits there thinking of how to answer it without pissing me off, I can tell I won’t like it. 
“My dear Lady Nakatoma, for you to attend the Academy would be perfectly acceptable if you were just your grandfathers’ granddaughter. The problem is, that is not the case here. You are now the Heir to AND the Head of House for the Nakatoma Shogunate. For you to attend any other school other than the Joan Eunice Smith School for Young Ladies would be the same as telling the rest of known space that you don’t have the social skills to be anything other than a soldier.”
Yup I was right. I knew I wouldn’t like it and from the looks on everyone else's faces, they don’t either. But he’s right; that is exactly how it would look. Ah shit. It looks like I’m headed for Joan Eunice. Before anyone can get too pissed off I step in to control things. 
“Thank you Director Reed for explaining to me the need for me to attend Joan Eunice. I had not fully grasped the tactical or political situation. Now that I do would you see to my enrollment please?”
”May I send out the announcements to the Nakatoma Family about the fact that they have a true heir to the Head of House as well? It’ll make getting things done in your name easier ma’ Lady. “Was all he asked.
Up till now I had been trying to avoid what is now my duty to my wife and daughters family line, but I can’t do this halfway. If I am going to be the granddaughter of Matsu Nakatoma Owns, and the daughter of Cpt. Ohmie Owns Steel Heart, then I have to accept this duty as well. I nod my head yes to let him do so.
Once he starts to type I speak up. “Director, you will also send my letter of apology to the Hades Military Academy explaining to them why I will not be attending that fine school. You will also contact the Commanding Officer of the P.D.F. explaining why he is losing one of the finest A.P.S. companies to House Nakatoma. After that you will also contact the new High Lord Marshal, telling him that he may call on me at his pleasure for my statement into the investigation of his predecessor. If you need help with any of this I believe that Cmdr. House might be talked into giving you a hand with it.”
Gesturing toward the Cmdr. with my left hand, while with my right I point to the two Majors of the Intelligence Division. “Maj’s’ Wallace and Ford can provide you with the details of the investigation once you have been cleared by the Lord High Marshal if he wishes your assistance into the investigation.” As I point out each of them, they nod their heads in acknowledgement to my requests.
Upon seeing how all of these professional military men and women react to me Reed gives me a look of wonder and awe. 
“Lady Maiha, there can be no doubt to your right as the only true Heir of House Nakatoma Shogunate. If anyone were to see how all of these fine upstanding people respect you, they too would see what I see.”
“While you gentlemen take care of that, I think the rest of us will take a short break. I for one need something to eat.” With that I get up and walk to the hanger door. Maj. Howard was close behind me following me outside “Well Maj. where can we get some chow?” 
“Ma’am, may I say that act you just put on in there was an award winning performance.” He laughs out loud.
“Oh bite me Maj.” I laughingly reply. “Now where can we get something to eat?”
“I’ll get one of the lances to make the chow run so you don’t have to deal with any unwanted attention ma’am.” With that he turns away and starts talking into a portable radio I hadn’t seen before. While he’s taking care of the food I pull out one of my Golds and light up. I look out over the open expanse of the field, watching as 2 of Hades 3 moons rise in the distance. As I turn back to him I see the outdoor thermostat reads just over 36 degrees. No wonder I’m shivering. Why didn’t I feel the cold earlier?
Because of the Armor Skin kiddo.
“Huh? You’ll have to explain that one to me there Dee De. And what’s’ up with calling me Kiddo and treating me like a kid now?”
For starters, the armor skin is designed to protect you from the elements all the way down to 18 below zero without wind-chill. As far as treating you as a kid, it’s my way of reminding you of who and what you are now. In other words, more grounding, so get used to it. Because I’m not going to quit any time soon. Kiddo.
Before I can comment, Maj. Howard comes up to saying. “Ok ma’am, chow is on its way for all of us. I also took the liberty to have all my troops pull back to this point and to post up around the hanger. They were starting to upset the locals. It seems people were not too happy with having military grade weapons pointed at them for just getting too near the boundary of the Space Port for some reason. I have no idea why?” He had the nerve to try and look innocent as he said that last bit.
I can’t help it. At first I start to giggle, then chuckle, and finally I’m laughing out loud at this. I can just see some poor guy out here to watch the drop ships come in, getting stopped by a 10 to 15 foot tall armor power suit, armed with a shitload of fire power.
You do know that, in our full on combat mode, we could do the same thing and we are only 5 feet tall right?
At hearing this I really lose it. The thought of someone my size scaring the crap out someone is truly priceless. Thank god the good Maj. had the decency to not let me laugh out loud all by myself. I can just see it now. The proud, tall, and handsome pilot of an Armored Power suit and the tiny teenage girl laughing hysterically for no reason. If the locals saw this they would surely think us mad. I mean wouldn’t you? Or perhaps they would think us lovers, happily laughing at some joke only the two of us would know. 
I look up at Howard and tell him what my AI had informed me of. When he looks at me and puts the read out that the Mark 24 had given him of me in our initial meeting he really loses it. “Ma’ Lady if there was ever a gross understatement that was it. Now how about we head back inside where it is a bit warmer shall we?”
At my nod we turn and head inside, but I stop for just a moment to look back out at the Space port. I wonder what my new life will bring me. What challenges will I face, first as a school girl and then as the Head of House for one of the most Powerful High Families in the known Galaxy? Can I really be a Lady of the High Courts? I don’t have the training for any of this. I would better at the head of an attack on a Gorgon Heavy Assault platform or leading a guerilla war, but not for this. I have no clue on how to be ether a teenage girl or a Lady. I think back on all my schooling and training just to be sure, and nothing that I find there can help me with the mess I find myself in. Yup I’m screwed and ROYALLY.
“Ma’ Lady are you alright?” asked Maj. Howard. Looking up at the concerned look on his face I realize that the man does care. “You seemed lost there for a moment.”
“Yes Major, I’m fine. I was just thinking about what my new life will bring and how to deal with it all.” I reply. “Come on, let’s get inside and see what the monkeys have come up with now.”
As we come back into the hanger, Col. Campbell walks up to me and gives me a very courtly bow. “Lady Nakatoma I have just been informed that the new High Lord Marshal, General Michael White, has taken command of the P.D.F. and all Death Gates System Military as of an hour ago. He sends his regards to you for the loss of your grandfather and looks forward to meeting you. Also, he has ordered both Maj’s’ Wallace and Ford to investigate the Four Points Battle and all those involved with the attempted cover up. He even gave permission for the O.E.C.H. to be involved with that investigation so that no one will escape justice.”
“That is fantastic news Sir. Please let him know that, at the first moment I have time, I’ll be more than willing to sit down and talk to him.” I say with a great deal of happiness. At last my children will have justice and be able to rest in peace.
“My Lady Nakatoma I have good news for you as well.” Said director Reed. With a nod to let him know to continue. “Your enrollment into the Joan Eunice Smith School for Young Ladies has been approved. You begin classes at the beginning of next semester in two weeks.”
I try my best to keep from groaning, but I fail miserably. To my extreme embarrassment this draws a chuckle from most everyone here.
“Fine I’ll go, but I won’t promise to like it.” At this everyone bust’s out laughing. I don’t why, but it might have to do with the pout on my face. Damn it I have to get control over that behavioral download. Either that, or surrender to the inevitable fact that I will become a very girly-girl.
“Excuse me ma’ Lady, but I just received a message from your great aunt, Lady Nakatoma Dai Etsu.” Said Lt. Walking Water, interrupting everyone’s fun. With a quick nod to proceed she continues. “She has heard of your situation regarding the lack of proper attire. To quote her exact words ‘I will not have my great niece walking around looking like some tomboy ruffian. I will have my personal maids there within an hour to address the situation. They will have everything that she will need to be made presentable for public appearance.’ Ma’am I don’t know whether this is good or bad news, but they should be here in just under three quarters of an hour.”
“Thank you Lt., for that news. I guess I have been a bit of a tomboy for most of my life. Grandpa really didn’t know too much about female fashions or how to raise a girl for that matter.” At my comment the entire H.C.S. breaks out laughing. Poor Mr. Reed just looks at them with a very confused look. I save him by giving him this explanation. 
“Dir. Reed all of the H.C.S. have heard of my grandfather’s exploits over the years. From what I myself have heard and experienced he was, without a doubt, the last person in the Galaxy to raise a little girl. A little boy, yes. A girl, no.  He was what you would call a real man’s man. You could put him in a room full of officers of all ranks, let him wear a plain uniform and he would still stand out. So now you know why everyone is laughing the way they are.”
Thankfully I was saved from any more explanations by the opening of the hanger door. A min-size transport truck enters at this time. Looking over I see one of the scout A.P.S‘s, a Mustang I think it was called, escorting it in. Maj. Howard answers the question before it is even asked. “That’s the chow we ordered up ma’am.”
“Ok everyone take a break. Let’s get something to eat before we all starve to death.” I tell them all.
After everyone had gotten their plates, we sat down to eat. I watched as Maj. Howards’ troops filed though to get their plates as well. I noticed that he and all of the officers, as well as his 1st Sgt., waited until the enlisted personnel had gotten theirs’ first before getting any. Now that is the mark of a true leader, always putting the men first. The more I see of this man and his troops the more my respect for them goes up.
“Maj. Howard, I must say my respect, high as it is already, just went even higher. If I must have a bodyguard unit then I will not have any other than yours.”
“Lady Maiha Nakatoma Steel Heart, I speak for myself and all the members of the Hell Hounds. It would be our greatest honor to be your personal bodyguards.” And with a bow from him and his officers they return to their plates and what looks like a command meeting. As much as I want to join them I know that I can’t. For me to do so would only undermine his authority and that is something I will not do for anything. Instead I look over to Dir. Reed.
“Excuse me Dir. Reed but would you happen to have a recent photo of my great aunt on your tablet? You see, I have no idea of what she looks like. I think I should at least know what the woman who has had such a large impact on what has been happening to me since landing on this planet, looks like.”
“Excuse me ma’ Lady? You mean you have never seen a picture of your grandmothers’ family?” Reed asks, with a great deal of surprise.
“No sir, I haven’t. You see, the only pictures of my family were ones of my mother, grandmother and grandfather in grandpas’ home. As I said earlier, I know that there was a fight between my great aunt and grandmother, but I have no idea what it was over.”
“If you give me a moment I’ll pull one up for you.” With that he started typing away on his tablet. “Here you go ma’am.”  As he turns it toward me, I get my first look at Dai Etsu Nakatoma, a woman I have not laid eyes on in over 60 years, not since the day that I married her sister, my wife, Matsue. I never knew what caused the split between them, but I know that it ate at Matsue till the day she died. 
                                                        
Before I could become any more depressed, Maj. Howard got my attention. “My Lady, your great aunts’ maids and representatives have arrived.”
Now I’ve seen military support trains enter an area in the past. But I was not prepared for what I saw coming though the hanger door. I don’t think anything would have prepared me for that, or what was soon to follow. Much to my dismay.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 5
My mobile Salon
I couldn’t believe my eyes.  There was a heavy transport coming through the door. What, in the name of all that’s Holy, is going on? Why would these people need a heavy transport? I mean, all I should need is a shower, some clean underwear and maybe a decent shirt and pants. 
After it comes to a stop I notice that all of Maj. Howard’s troops have encircled the hanger with their A.P.S.s’. From what I can see, the Marauders are out front placing the heaviest amount of fire power where everyone can see.
“Um… Maj. Howard? Why are all the Marauders out front? Shouldn’t they be spread out?” I asked.
With a smile and a bow he says. “This is to make sure that the reporters and news hawks get the hint ma’ Lady Nakatoma.”
“Maj. I would greatly appreciate it if you and your troops just called me Maiha and not Lady Nakatoma?” I asked of him.
“I’m afraid that would be unacceptable. We can use Lady Maiha when not in public, Lady Nakatoma, if that would please you.” Was all he said.
I was very confused by this. How did I go from, at worst Commander, but most of the time ma’am or miss, to formal pronouns and names. “But Maj. just less than 3 hrs ago you were calling me Miss or ma’am. What changed? And when did it happen?”
“When Director Reed appointed the Hell Hounds to be your personal bodyguards.  My X.O. 1st Lt. Stephanie Wolf had served in a P.B. unit before coming into my command. She was the one to inform all of my staff on how we should interact with you. What is and is not acceptable, my Lady Maiha.” He answered.
Before I can comment, two very distinguished Japanese women approached me. With a bow from the waist they said. “You are the Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana, yes?” At the nod of my head they continue. “We are your Ladyship's great aunt's personal maids. She has sent us to you so that you may be made presentable for the public. If you will follow us so we may get started?”
With a sigh I turn to everyone else. “It would seem that we are done here for tonight ladies and gentlemen. I thank you all for your hard work and dedication in helping me this evening. I hope that we will get a chance to meet again, but under better conditions. When that time comes I hope to reward each of you in turn for all that you have done on my behalf.” Then, with a bow to them all, I turn to the two maids saying. “Ladies, I am in your capable hands. Shall we?” I asked, gesturing to the heavy transport trailer. As I walk over I notice that it has a communication uplink dish on top. “Would it be better to set up the truck outside? I see that it has a communication dish on top.”
                                                   
“My Lady Maiha, once we are inside, the M.C.U. driver will move it outside so we may up link to your ancestral home here on Hades and the Lady Dai Etsu your great aunt. But until you are presentable we cannot allow for you to be seen by those pigs who are with the news vids. To do so would be an unacceptable error of duties on your behalf.” Said the one on my right.
I had not really noticed but they had placed themselves behind me one on each side. How in the world did they do that? I mean one minute they’re in front of me the next they’re one foot behind and to each side as well. I have to find out how they pulled that off when I get the chance. “Your bodyguards have done a remarkable job of forcing them to keep a distance that makes them use long range camera lens, but they can still see the front of the building. So we will take no chances and have you get on board in here, then move outside.”
I want to laugh at so bad at that comment I can’t stop the giggle that escapes. I mean if the troops in those A.P.S. out there wanted to every one of those reporters would be blasted into hamburger. “Dee De? Can you give me a run down on the A.P.S. outside as far as fire power goes? You can forget the Marauders.”
Sure give me a minute.
D.D.A.I.: MUSTANG, MARK 14, ARMAMENT 2 105MM AUTO CANNONS, 2 90MM PULSE LAZERS, 4 20MM CHAIN GUNS, AND 2 20 ROUND SHORT RANGE MISSILE PODS
D.D.A.I.: STRIKER MARK 7, ARMAMENT 1 150MM RAIL GUN, 6 50MM PLUSE LAZERS CHEST MOUNTED
D.D.A.I.: RIFLEMAN MARK 120 ARMAMENT 2 200MM RAIL GUNS, 2 120MM PLASMA LAZERS AND 8 90MM PLUSE LAZERS CHEST MOUNTED
“My God Dee De, any of those pilots could massacre those reporters from where they stand! Patch me into their network now!”
Are you sure? If you do that, then our ace in the hole will be out in the open?
“No you are right. I need to keep a lead on all our capabilities.”
“Maj. Howard, please make sure that your very loyal troops don’t have an ‘accidental’ discharge over one of the reporters getting too close. Please?” I asked, as nicely as possible. The maids behind me start giggling at my request.
“Of course Lady Maiha. I will see to it at once.” He said, then turned away, leaving me with the maids.
The one on my left politely asks “Lady Maiha, surely such fine Samurai's as the ones who guard you would not actually do such a thing?”
“Oh yes they would. The pilots of those A.P.s out there all have a real and justifiable hatred for the press.” I say. “By the way, they are not samurai. May I please know your names?”
“I am Gin and she is Kina, Lady Maiha.” Said the one on my right. “As for your bodyguards, if they would go so far as to attack the reporters for being too close to you, then they are Samurai. And I am sure that if they are not, then your great aunt will make it so. Now you have delayed long enough to make sure that your Samurai will not cause a scandal. It is time to get you cleaned up and appropriately dressed.”
So much for my delaying tactics. These women must have figured me rather quickly.
Hate to tell you this kiddo, but these gals are the 9th generation of their family to serve the Nakatoma women. There isn’t a trick you can think of with your short time as a girl that they don’t already know. I would suggest using the old tactic of passive resistance for now.
“Gee, thanks a lot Dee. You know that is not my style.
Well it had better be for a while. We need Intel. and we need it now.
“Intel what Intel? Just what are you talking about? Have you popped a chip?”
You need to know how to, first be a girl, second, how to be a Lady, and finally, how to be the HEAD of House for the Nakatoma Shogunate. Where else are you going to learn?
“That puts a whole new spin on all of this.”
Yes it does kiddo, but I do know this much, and you can take it to the bank. Deep down you are still you, but you have to become a combination of your wife, daughter and what you are. If, and only if, you meant what you said earlier. If you really are Deaths Own Daughter? Are you?
“By all that's Holy and unholy, I AM Deaths Own Daughter!”
With that thought firmly in my head, I straighten my back, stand as tall as I can and head inside to face my destiny.
After stepping inside, the ramp door closed up behind us. I feel the transport start to move backwards and I hear the hanger doors open up. As I stand there, waiting for it to stop, I look around the inside. What I saw floored me. Instead of your typical mobile command headquarters, it was more like a mobile home with its own beauty salon. To say the least, everything to make me into the best example of a proper young, Japanese, High Families Lady. I mean they had it all, a hot tub, steam room, massage table, make up table and chair, full salon station, full nail station, and an area for dressing someone in the height of fashion. You name it was there at their beck and call.
“Uh… Gin? Can I ask why my great aunt would have something like this? I mean it’s not like something as what happened to me is an everyday occurrence.”
“Lady Maiha this transport is yours, not your great aunts. As to why you have it, well this is your mobile residence and throne room. This back half is really supposed to be in front, next to the driver's area. You see over there, behind that wall, is your bedroom for when you travel to visit your other family members. The throne room half will be here in the back allowing you keep this half as your private sanctuary.” Explained Gin. I really want to see how they swap the two halves around sometime. “Now, young lady, it is time for you to start getting ready. So please remove those undignified clothes at once.”
Ok, I may not know a whole lot about the way a High Family House is supposed to work when it comes to servants, but I do know that maids do not talk to their Lady’s like that. “Excuse me? Did you just order me to strip? Well you can get bent if you think you can order me around, sister.”
With a sly smile on her face that said more than her words, Kina looked at me and said. “Lady Maiha, when in front of others you may be in charge, but here at in your private quarters at the Shogunate, we your maids are in charge. For you see, it is our duty to make sure you are presentable for public appearances. Now, as you said earlier, STRIP or shall Gin and I have to treat you like a small child and remove that ship suit and boots for you while applying a hair brush to that pretty hind end? It is your choice.”
“Dee De, can I access the enhanced strength without the armor akin?”
Sorry honey, but no, and I am not going to allow you access to either. You need to understand that when it comes to your appearance, they are the experts and the ones in charge.
“You mean that you would actually allow them to spank me?”
Got it in one kiddo. This is not a life or death situation. So do as they say.
Realizing that Dee De was not going to be of any help here and due to the fact that she has already locked me out of my access to the armor skin, I begin to unzip the ship suit. I can see that Gin and Kina aren’t going to give me any privacy so I just get it over with without any more protests. After I had taken the borrowed boots and ship suit off, Gin took them and dropped them into a recycler unit. “Hey! Those weren’t mine! I have to return them!”
“Do not worry Lady Maiha, the military will be reimbursed.  Please follow me to the bathroom so we can get you cleaned up like a proper Lady of the Families.” came from Kina. So following her into the bathroom I find myself receiving the first bath to be given to me by a maid in what will undoubtedly be a long line of them to come. I don’t even try to argue with her. I can tell she will brook no argument from me at all in this matter. “Do not worry Lady Maiha, I am sure that your great aunt will let you choose your own maids once you have taken over as the Head of House.”
“I know I am going to regret this question, but here goes any way.” Looking her in the eye. “Do I really need a personal maid? Can’t you teach me what I need to know so I can do it myself?”
You would have thought I had taken a dump on a shrine altar. The look on her face told me everything I needed to know. “Lady Maiha for you to know how to do all of your personal toilet is not against the rules, or to be able to do them yourself, but to not have a personal maid would be undignified for a person of your station.”
“Thank you Kina, and please forgive my ignorance. This is all still very new to me. Hell I’ve never even worn a dress before, let alone have a personal maid. For the last 12yrs the only person who washed my ass was me.” I said with a little embarrassment.
“Oh my! Lady Maiha, I had no idea. Both I and Gin thought that you had only lost your clothes during transit. We had no idea that you were not raised to be a lady. You can’t tell by the way you carry yourself.” Was her reply. “When we first saw you, both Gin and I said to each other ‘Her Ladyship is handling herself quite well considering how she is dressed. We are going to have our hands full with this one.’ We did not know that you were a tomboy or that you had no woman’s touch in your upbringing.”
I didn’t know whether to be insulted or not. I’ve never received such a back handed complement before in all my 97yrs. Right now I could really use an owners/operators manual for my new sex. Normally I would have Dee De helping me out with little hints on how to behave here, but as she put it earlier, I need Intel, and the only way I was going to get it was from them. “I hope that wasn’t meant to be an insult toward my grandfather Kina? Because if it was I will make sure no matter what else happens, you and Gin, as well as your families, will be in need of new employment. No one, and I mean NO One will make disparaging remarks about my parents and grandparents. Do I make myself clear on this matter?”
“Please forgive me ma’ Lady. I meant no disrespect. I merely was commenting on how well you present yourself for one who is not used to the expectations of a member of the High Families is all. Considering the fact that your grandfather may not have known how to raise a young lady, he did a remarkable job of instilling in you a true sense of self.” She said as she bowed to me.
As I look up at her from the hot tub I can see that she is sincere. She did not mean anything bad in her comments, but praise. “I forgive you Kina. Neither you nor Gin could have known, but yes I guess you could say I’m the original tomboy. All my life I was a ruffian. Constantly getting into and out of trouble. All too often to the displeasure of my guardians. I guess that was why grandfather was so happy with my appointment to H.M.A. in Haifa.” I lied. 
About that time, Gin came into the room. “Come, my Lady. It is time for you to get out. Everything has been prepared in the outer room.” As I get out of the tube the two of them give me a quick pat down with warmed towels to dry me off. After placing a silk robe around me they lead me out back into the back of the transport trailer. “If you would please take a seat in the chair, we can get started on your make-up and hair.”
“Will one of you please explain to me why we are doing all of this? I mean, aren’t we going to be travelling from here to my great aunt's?” I asked of them.
“Oh no Lady Maiha. We will not be travelling in this monster, as comfortable as it is, to the Shogunate. For you to arrive in a heavy-transport would be a great insult to your great aunt and your Family. It would be saying that you do not trust them not to make an attempt on your life. It is also a sign of weakness. The fact that you have an entire A.P.S. company travelling with you as bodyguards will tell the Galaxy you are not one to be trifled with let alone angered.” 
I can see the logic in Gin's words. If I roll up in an M.C.U. it would definitely give off the wrong signal. I swear I’m going to keep these two as advisors if it’s the last thing I do. I don’t need maids, I need teachers and they are definitely two of the best when it comes to court politics. They are also aptly named, as Gin means silver and Kina means silk. Two very valuable resources. “After we have made you beautiful we will escort you back outside to your personal hover-limo, which will transport you to the Shogunate. Past those pig reporters over there. 
I wish for the day when the government has more control over the news vids. I hope one of them tries to stop the hover-limo, don’t you Kina. From what that young man in the Mustang said, it would be worth seeing one or two of them crushed flat by his... what was the term he used? Oh yes, ‘sweet baby girl Jenna’. I do not see how something as big as those machines can be so beloved by the men and women who pilot them.”
“Oh, I know what you mean. You should hear my husband Takashi about his A.P.S. I swear the man loves it more than me at times.” Kina replied with some heat. “He has even named the monster. Moon Light Dancer of all things. Can you even see that beast dancing? Why it would put holes in the courtyard if he tried to do that.”
“You are not alone in your suffering Kina. My Tanaka is just as bad about his own A.P.S.” Gin was smiling as she said it. I could tell that both women truly loved their husbands. They just didn’t understand their love affair with their A.P.S’. I can’t help but giggle as they gossip back and forth. “Did we say something funny Lady Maiha?”
“I’m sorry ladies. It’s just that my grandpa often told me stories of A.P.S. pilots and their love affair with their machines. “I can’t help but smile at their looks of confusion at the thought that I, a teenage girl one who has not even had her first boyfriend, would have insight into what they, who were married and with children, would know what their husbands felt. “Yes, my grandfather imparted to me a great deal about the way the mind of a military man works. He once said ‘There is no greater love than that of a beautiful woman, except for a finely crafted fire arm, to the military man.’ So I can understand how they can love, would love their machines as if they were their children.”
The next thing I knew, I was answering questions being thrown at me by the two of them, in a rapid fire manner. They wanted to know everything from why men would give a feminine name to some things and a masculine to others. Why pilots called the aircraft they flew a ship. Why did the infantry dislike the A.P.S. soldiers and a whole gamut of things. As I answered their questions they worked on my face, then they went to town on my nails. All twenty of them, both finger and toes. When they were done, my nails were a soft plum color and my fingernails were about half an inch longer. They wouldn’t let me see myself in the mirror. They said something about wanting me to see the whole effect at one time. 
Once they were done with the war paint they lead me over to an area that I had yet to see. What I had originally thought was an expansion, was in reality a walk-in closet with a dressing area. As I looked around I could tell that I would be dressed in a combination of western styles for underwear, and traditional Japanese outer wear. Why I came to this conclusion was that I saw panties, bras, and corsets on one side. The other side was an entire wall of kimonos. Once inside the girls, as I’ve started to think of them, moved me into the dressing area after removing the robes I had been wearing up until then. First came a pair of pants that I can tell were made of silk. 
For the first time I notice that I have absolutely no hair below my eyes I decide to ask Dee De what was up with that.
“Yoohoo, Dee De, can you give me a reason why I’m hairless from the face down to my toes??
Sure can, but you won’t like the answer.
“Let me guess. During the reconfigure I burned out the hair follicles, right?”
Close but not quite. Yes, it has to do with the reconfigure, but you didn’t burn them out. You were never given them. You see, if you had hair below the neck line it would interfere with the Armor Skin. When it deploys whatever is next to your skin will be burned away. That is why whenever you deploy it, if you don’t want keep replacing clothes, you better strip.
“So what you’re not telling me is that I will spend the rest of my life looking like an underdeveloped kid. Will I at least age normally?”
………………….
“Dee De? You there?”
Yes I’m here. I didn’t want to bring this up. But now that you have, I'll tell you. All of those nannites are still running wild in your system, repairing whatever they see as damaged. So I believe that no, you will not age normally.
“Ah shit let me deal with that wrinkle later I need to finish getting dressed.”
Once my panties were in place, my great aunts maids had me grab a hold of a bar that had been lowered from the ceiling. Once I had, they strapped my wrists to it, then pulled me up off the floor, stretching me out a good bit. Before I could ask what was happening they wrapped a corset around my middle, then began to pull the laces up tight. Those two pulled and pulled until I thought I was going to be split in half. They tied off the laces and gave me a break. “Excuse me, but aren’t you going to release my hands?”
They had the gall to giggle. “Not until we finish lacing you down Lady Maiha.”
“Just how small are you going make this torture device?” I pleaded.
“Oh, just another inch or two. Let us get your measurement. Hum… you’re at 18’ inches now, so only another inch ma’ Lady” Gin said with a straight face.
“17 Inches!? You are going to make my waist 17 inches?! My god, I can barely breathe now. Much more and you’ll cut me in half. No, I won’t let you do it. Now let me down and remove this contraption of torture. Didn’t you hear me? I said… OUWWW!” I screamed out in pain as my backside was set on fire. As I hung there they each laid into my poor, abused backside, each one taking a swing. Once I was sobbing my eyes out, they stopped.
“Now Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana, will you let us finish you or do we have to repeat that unfortunate scène?” Was all Kina asked, while looking at Gin who was behind me. I shook my head no.
“I will behave and do as you say. For now, but know this... I will get even with you for that. I don’t know when or where, but I will. That I promise.” I told them.
“Oh we do not doubt that Lady Nakatoma. But remember in here, and in your rooms at the estates, we are the ones in charge. Even your great aunt follows this principle.” Came from Gin, as she came around in front of me. “Now let us complete this task and get you down so we can repair your make-up.”
To help with stretching me out they strapped my ankles to the floor with a pair of cuffs I hadn’t noticed before. Once I was stretched out, they untied the laces and pulled and very quickly I felt the sides close, shortly followed by them wrapping them around me, then tying them off in back. Once that was done they lowered me enough to uncuff my ankles. Then they lowered me the rest of the way down and placed a stool for me to rest on behind me. As I sat back, I whimpered. Before I know what’s going on, Gin has me in her arms hugging to me to her breast.
“Shush, it will be ok my Lady. Everything will be alright. Shush. I know it hurts but you must not show your pain. The Head of a House must be strong willed, caring, wise, and deceptive. You cannot show pain or weakness ever, for to do so is to court great peril. Oh, you can shed your tears when you are alone with your personal maids, and in the privacy of your own chambers where no one will see. Now come dry your eyes and find the steel that we first saw.”
Nodding my head and wiping my eyes I look at the both of them. “If my aunt does not take you back when we reach the estates, then I want the two of you as my maids.” For some unknown reason I had started to care a great deal for these ladies. I can tell they want nothing but the best for me.
Giggling, they shake their heads. It’s Gin who answered my unspoken question. “The Lady Dai Etsu has already assigned us to be your personal maids. We’ll be at your disposal any time that you are at the estates.”
“Well if this fancy all-girls school allows personal maids then one, or both of you, will be joining me.” I state firmly. “But we will have a talk about spankings. By the way it has been a long time since anyone has worn out my ass like that. I do not want a repeat.”
While I was consoled by Gin, Kina had retrieved a pair of tights that had toes at the end of the feet. She had rolled them up and was getting ready to pull them up my legs. “We did not enjoy it either my Lady, but it had to be done. You see, I knew that, sooner or later you would balk at what we were going to do. So we were prepared for it and acted swiftly to put down any rebellion on your part. Just as you will have to when the time comes.” And with that she went back to her task of putting the tights on me. They were very pretty. They made my legs look sexy as all hell. Not to mention the way they feel on my skin.
Once they were in place they put the silk robe back on me, took me back out to the salon after repairing my make-up and we returned to the dressing room. I removed the robes, placing them on a hook by the door and headed back to the center where they finished getting me ready. Next came the first underdress that fit me very well. After that came the second underdress. Then finally my very first kimono.
It was dark red with black trim and a gold rope belt. There was a beautiful floral design all over the front and back. It took them the better part of half an hour to get me into all three layers but it was well worth it. From what I could see in the mirrors I would look like a true Japanese High Families Lady. No one will be able to tell that I was once a cranky 97 year old man or the granddaughter of one who had never worn make-up or a dress I just need to figure out how to move around in all of these layers of clothes.
                                               
Now all I needed were shoes and I will be able to step outside in front out the public. “Kina may I see the shoes that go with the kimono before I put them?”
“Of course lady Maiha just one moment while finish with the tying off your obi.”
“Thank you for helping get me ready so I can present a proper appearance of what my family would expect.” I say, as they finish setting the obi in its proper placement.
“Now we just need to put your socks on and you’ll be ready.” Said Gin, who then put action to her words.
“Um … if I need to wear socks with the shoes why did you have me put on those tights, may I know please?” I asked. “I wish to understand so I do not look the fool.”
“So you will not get too cold once you’re outside of the transport where there is no heat. I guess that ships suit was warmer than we thought.” Kina said. “You see, the outside temp on Hades never gets above 45 degrees, even in the summer months at night. But during the day time it will get up into the low 90s’. But that is only in the summer months. Right now, during our fall season, the highs in the day time are in the mid-50s’ and the night time temperatures average around the low 30s’.”
Once my socks are on I see that they are heavy weight cotton. Gin comes over with a pair of geta sandals. Of all the things I expected it was not those. Here they are worried about me being cold and they hand me geta sandals to wear. The look on my face had to give away what I was thinking or they had anticipated my question, because Gin was ready with an answer. “Even if it is blowing snow and 40 below zero it would not be proper for you to wear anything else with a kimono.” It wasn’t the fact they were sandals. No it was that the soles were around four to four and half inches thick with an angled back toe. These were the geta of a geisha, not what a women of noble birth would wear. There is no way I’m wearing those.
“Kina, Gin, do we have a pair that does not have such a tall sole?” I ask.
                                          
It was Gin who answered for them both. ”Is there a problem Lady Maiha? Your great aunt chose all of your clothing, including your shoes. That was why it took us so long to get here. You see, once your aunt heard from a member of the Lord High Marshals Staff that she might have a great niece, she called the O.E.C.H. and told them of the possibility of there being a true heir to the Head of House to the Nakatoma Shogunate. That was around six hours ago. Once she found out that the H.S.C. was involved, she was able to get your measurements from a 1st Lt. Susana Walking Water, who is the daughter of the Commander of our House Troops Col. David Walking Water. With those in hand she assembled everything here for you. Why don’t you like the geta sandals that she picked out?”
As I stand there, hearing all that was said, I realized that my sister-in-law had a spy inside the High Command Staff, at least on Hades. She might even know the truth. I can’t let the H.C.S. go without warning them, but how? Well, first things first. Take care of the shoes, but how do I do this without pissing off my maids. All of a sudden a message flashes in front of my eyes like it was on the head ups display.
C.O.B.R.A.O.S.: SUGGEST TACTICAL RETREAT SEEK DIPLOMATIC SOLUTION THOUGH COMPROMISE.
What the hell? That was the C.O.B.R.A. o.s.! I thought it was in sleep mode? I’ll have to talk to Dee De about that later. Right now I’ll take its advice. “OH no, I did not mean to insult my great aunt. I just do not think I can walk in something like those just yet. I would not want to trip in them. If I were to fall over I know that it will embarrass the Family. I just couldn’t have that on my conscience. That is all I meant by asking for some geta’ with a lower sole. Not to mention I still have to give my farewells to the High Command Staff, and for that I’ll have to do some walking and I would not want to disgrace the Nakatoma name by not being able to walk with some grace.”
“Oh my! Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana, we did not realize that you still had duties here tonight we believed you were done. I will be right back.” Kina bowed and ran back to the dressing room, only to return a few seconds later. “Would this pair be better for what you need to do?”
                                                        
“Oh yes much better, thank you. I promise that once I have time to master the other pair I will, but I need your help to do it.” I said with all honesty.
“Very well Lady Maiha, shall we exit the transport?” asked Gin with a smile.
With a bow for my two maids and a smile on my face, I nod my head yes. Kina pushes a button on the wall to drop the ramp on the back of the M.C.U. And we exit though the back door to descend the ramp. As I exit, Gin hands me a parasol. She has one herself. At my questioning look she opens it before going through the door. Getting the hint I follow suit. Once I had it open I noticed that it matched my kimono. How much do I have to learn to be a High Families Lady? With Gin going down in front of me and Kina behind I felt that I just might be able to pull this off, but right NOW I had to deal with the two faced, lying, spying bitch, Walking Water.
Once we were again on the ground they took up the same position they had earlier, one to each side and one foot behind. As we approached the hanger door I could feel the cold wind as it blew around and across my feet, as well as a little up my skirt. It sends a shiver up my spine, realizing that I will be feeling this a lot more in the future. Maj. Howard runs over to follow us inside.
“Maj. Howard, once we are inside you are to bring 1st Lt. Walking Water to me, along with the Lord High Marshal. Please.”
“At once Lady Maiha. It shall be as you ordered.” Was his only comment to my request. No why or how come. Just ’it shall be done.’ And he signals to all of his pilots who are inside, taking a break from the inside of the Suits. As me and my maids approach the gathered representatives of the planetary government, the looks of awe are a little unnerving. “Gentleman and Ladies, I wish to express the thanks of House Nakatoma and me. Lord High Marshal, I regret to meet you under these circumstances but it is a pleasure nonetheless.” I give him a bow of respect. “But seeing as you are here I wish to tell you that I am taking not only the finest A.P.S. unit in the P.D.F., but a very capable Counter Intelligence Officer, 1st Lt. walking Water. You see, I am able to repay most of those here, but for her. I can at least let her return to the House that paid for her Schooling before she had joined the P.D.F.”
“The pleasure is all mine Lady Nakatoma” he said with a slight bow. “As for 1st Lt. Walking Water, I know that she is a fair officer, but her actual field is Personal Records. From what I understand she is on the Commander's Staff as a favor to an old friend of General Stonewall. I have no problem with assigning her to your new bodyguard unit. I never have subscribed to the practice of placing unqualified people in positions just because they have a mother or father in some high ranking position in some High Family Household.”
“Ah. Here is Maj. Howard now with the young lady in question. Hello again, Lt. Walking Water. I have some great news. The Lord High Marshall has approved of your assignment to my personal staff. Isn’t that fantastic? You’ll be returning home with me as my military secretary. I’m sure that your father, Col. Walking Water, will be overjoyed at the fact that your new assignment is bringing you home.”
From the look on her face I can tell this was a surprise to her. That and the fact that she can tell that I know it was her father who had her placed in the H.C.S. as a spy. I decide to not give her a chance to lie her way out of the fact that her real job was to spy on the H.S.C.
“Gin, do you think you can find the Lt. something more appropriate to wear on the M.C.U. for me? Thank you.” I watch as Gin and Maj. Howard lead the young lady away. Once she was out of hearing range, I lean in close to the General and I whisper to him. 
“General I would suggest that you run a complete background check on all the people in your command staff. I have just removed for you one spy. I don’t know how many more there are currently on your staff. I doubt that they all are spies, or if there are more. What I do know is 1st Walking Water had let my great aunt know that I was here with my grandfather before trying to enroll me at H.M.A. It gave her more than enough time to organize the M.C.U. with everything I would need, plus she was able to get the O.E.C.H. involved, blocking my enrollment into the Academy, and finally to guarantee my enrollment into the Joan Eunice Smith School for Young Ladies. Now that that unpleasant business is out of the way, I understand you were just recently assigned to the Death Gates system.  How do you like your new command?” and with that we began to exchange small talk.
He talked about how Hades was unlike any other posting he'd had, in both clement and culture. One of the things that amazed him was how much of the old Earth Japanese Culture had survived on Hades, a planet named after the ancient Greek God of Death. Well, at this point I find myself highly ticked off. How can any General, or officer, who is a division level or higher not know the history of the planet that they are assigned to? Not only is it disrespectful of the planet's inhabitants, it’s just plain stupid. If you don’t know the people then you don’t know what resources are at your disposal.
For some reason I feel an unexplainable desire to reach out and smack the ever living dog shit out of this man. Kina must have sensed this desire, because she placed herself very close to my right arm, effectively blocking a strike from that direction and, with my left hand holding the parasol, she had disarmed me in a very effective manner. Keeping me from making a severe mistake in planetary politics I decide then and there that, whatever my sister-in-law is paying this woman, it is not enough.
So instead of knocking him into next week, I placed both hands on my parasol and proceed to give the ass a quick lesson on the founding of Hades. “Why General, it's no surprise really at all if you remember that Hades was originally founded by the Japanese, who wished a return to the old ways of feudal Japan from the 1500s’ to the late 1800s’. They were a people who wanted a simpler life with ties to simpler times.
Of the 4500 original colonists, over 4300 were made up of these Japanese. So you see it is little wonder that most of those ancient traditions not only survived, but thrived here on Hades. Those who came in afterwards found a way of life that was more elegant, artistically orientated, and far simpler than what they had left back on their planet of origin. What they also found was a society that did not tolerate bigotry and racism, but they could only stay if they did not try to change the way in which things were done. Most found that, if they tried to fit in, they were not only welcomed, but offered help in whatever was their endeavor. That is why the number one export is handmade crafts.” I could tell just by the look on his face I had shocked him with that little fact.
“I must admit, I only thought that Hades produced and exported the Armored Power Suits that are used in our military and police units. I had no idea that the people of Hades produced more than that.” He was extremely embarrassed by his lack of knowledge. “Lady Nakatoma can you please forgive me my arrogance? When I was assigned here I thought it was the end of my career, so I didn’t bother with learning about Hades or its people. I believed that they had nothing to offer the Galaxy, but the A.P.S. or the civilian construction and framing models. I think I’ll spend some time with the P.D.F. cultural officer over the next few weeks. I believe that I have a lot to learn about your home.”
“I’m sorry sir, but Hades is not my home planet, nor is it my place of birth. That honor belongs to my grandfather’s home planet of Apollo.” I reply. With a small bow I excuse a very bewildered General White. 
As both Kina and I made the rounds to each person who was still there, making my farewells, a Mitsubishi/Rolls hover-limo had pulled up out front. Now I have seen hover-limos and even regular wheeled limos before. But this one was a total awe inspiring sight, a true thing of beauty. From front bumper to rear bumper it was at least 15ft long and 6ft wide. Every inch was pearl white. It could probably hold 8 people in the rear cabin comfortably. I noticed the driver was not alone in the forward cabin; that must be his Shotgun rider.
When they got out I could tell they were highly trained. They took in the entire area with a quick glance before moving. Yes, these were a pair of professionals. Now all we had to do was wait for 1st Lt. Walking Water to join us.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 6
Meeting Auntie
  I didn’t have to long of a wait as shortly thereafter Gin and the Lt. emerged from the M.C.U. and I could tell that Gin had not let her get away with the regular geta that I was wearing. I could also tell she was showing her displeasure in what the Lt. had been doing at the High Command, because poor Susana looked very much like a Maiko. Turning to Kina “Why has Gin turned Susana into a Maiko?”
“Gin is not happy with her niece. You see she never approved with her being a spy in the High Command Staff, even though she was ordered to do it by her father, Gin’s brother-in-law. Gin told her that if she ever came home in disgrace that she, not her father, would decide her punishment.” At her smile I could tell that she had let slip the information about Susana being the one to alter my sister-in-law. I better quite thinking of her in those terms and more as my great aunt. If I don’t, I could slip up and blow everything. 
“Thank you Lady Maiha Mama for doing what you did. Do not feel to upset over this please you see Susana has been trying to get caught for almost two years now. This way she can come home even though to the rest of the world it will look like a reward posting and the Lord High Marshal will have a much more secure staff. You did very well in there a masterful manipulation of everyone involved.”
“More like you getting me pissed off about there being a spy for the Nakatoma Shogunate inside the organization that should have our trust. Just because Gin and Susana are getting something out of this don’t think it’s over.” She could tell by my voice that I was beyond mad. I was in a royal full blown hard-on nail biting neck snapping mad. The fact that I appeared to be the epitome of a serenely calm, young Japanese Noble Lady did not go unnoticed by her. Looking me in the eye, she could tell I was not happy with her or Gin. Looking down with her head bowed and her hands folded around her parasol, she asked to be forgiven.
“My Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana please forgive us. We only saw a chance to help Susana get away from a displeasing task that had begun to take its toll on her honor. We did not think that you would find removing her, or having her dismissed, upsetting.”
“As I said, We will discuss this later. When we are not where there are so many eyes or ears. This is a matter for me and my ladies maids.” Looking at her to see if she got the full meaning of what I said. I continued in a softer tone. “Trust must flow both ways. From Lady to maid and back. It must not be one way.”
Before anything more could be said Susana and Gin had arrived. “Susana you look so much more comfortable in a kimono. Now I know why you looked so on edge in there in your uniform, but I am surprised that one of mine would have fit you, as you are a bit taller than I. How is that?”
“Lady Nakatoma, may I introduce my aunt” she said, gesturing to Gin “Yoduishji Gin Rai, maid and sensei of the womanly arts to Nakatoma Shogunate and at one time one of the finest Geiko in all of the Yo’kai Nohan district.”
“I did not know she was your aunt or the sensei who would be teaching me to be a lady, but how does that explain me having a kimono that fits you?”
“It is not yours my Lady. But mine. My aunt always had at least one of mine handy if she knew that there was a chance I would be able to wear it.” Was all she said. I knew that she was telling the truth, but not all of it.
I could tell that she wasn’t too happy about the Maiko make-up. But that was not my problem, nor did I care. However if she was to be my personal secretary, she will need a more mainstream look. “Well you look very beautiful. However in the future, I would prefer for you to wear a more mainstream make-up and keep the Maiko look for when you are with your significant other. Please.”
“Of course my Lady. I promise you here and now, I will never intentionally cause you embarrassment by look or action.” Susana said, with a very deep bow from the waist. If she went much lower she'd hit her head on the ground.
“Thank you. I accept your promise. Now my feet and lower legs are cold so let’s get in the limo and get this parade on the road. Maj Howard, time to mount up and roll out.”  I yell out to him and his men.
“Yes Ma’am, My Lady Nakatoma.” Turning to his troops he called out in a very military manner “Hell Hounds, mount up, power up, and be ready to roll out in two. Report in when ready. Let’s go people. Move it, move it.” And with that he climbed into his machine.
As we approach the hover-limo, the Shogun opens the rear door for us. I let the others get in first to see how they do it. When it was my turn I followed their example by sitting down first and then swinging in my legs. My actions did not go unnoticed by my ladies maids. Gin just had to comment on the way I entered the vehicle once the door was closed and we were alone. “That was flawlessly done Lady Maiha. One would have thought that all you have ever worn were dresses or skirts your entire life. No one would have guessed that you’ve never worn either before today.”
As I looked around at the spacious cabin, I noticed how the others were sitting. Feet and knees together while pointed to the side, so that only their sides came into contact with the seat back, insuring that their obies would not become wrinkled. I quickly assumed the same position. 
“Thank you Gin. I just followed your example.” A few moments later I felt the hover-limos’ power plant begin to hum as it lifted off the ground. When I looked out the window I saw two of the Marauders’ move along side, one in front, the other in back; both in line with one of the bumpers. “Aren’t we going to take up a lot of room in this formation? I mean, the way Maj. Howard is placing his troops we will take up the entire roadway. Won't the locals get upset with us?”
A small giggle escapes Susana before she can stop it with her hand. Looking over at her I can tell that she knows way more than she is letting on. For one thing, the girl is way too comfortable being dressed as a Maiko. “Alright, let’s hear it Susana. Just what is so funny? I mean, here we are with a full company of A.P.S.s’ just marching down the middle of the road as if we own the thing. If I tried this back home every peace loving and anti-government yahoo for 100 miles would be surrounding us. So please tell me what’s so funny?” By the time I was done all three were fighting to keep from out and out laughing in my face. Kina and Gin were turning red in the face and I could tell Susana was as well, even under the entire heavy, white base that covered her face and neck. Seeing as how I wasn’t going to get any answers till they could control themselves, I turned back to looking out the window.
What I saw amazed me. The local people were coming out of the stores, restaurants and homes even, but instead of throwing things at us, they were cheering us and waving. It didn’t make any sense. Here we were, for all practical purposes, a military convoy, just taking over the road without letting anyone know ahead of time, disrupting everyone’s lives and they’re happy about it. “Why is everyone so happy to see a military convoy like this?”
It was Susana who finally answered my questions. “My Lady Maiha, we were not laughing at you, but the situation. You see, the road that we are on is wholly owned and maintained by the Nakatoma Shogunate. That is why we can do what we’re doing right now. As to why the people are so happy to see a ‘military convoy’ is it has been almost 40yrs since the last time a bodyguard unit escorted anyone down this road. For them to see one again can only mean that the true heir of Shogunate Nakatoma has come, hopefully, home. What that, hopefully means, is there an end to the infighting in sight or it has come to an end. That hopefully, finally, peace has come to our ruling Family at last after all these years.” And with a very happy look in her eyes she points to me saying “You have brought that hope. Everyone on Hades has been praying for a true heir to come to light. Someone who has a direct line of ascension to the Head of House which is you my Lady. Outside of your great aunt, you are the only one to have such a claim. No one else in the family, out of all the cousins, 2nd aunts and uncles, can come close to even claiming as strong a connection the Head of House except for your great aunt, but it was your grandmother who had first claim. Followed by your mother and finally, then you.”
“Ok that explains all the happy civilians, but it does not explain why your appearance is that of a Maiko. Want to tell me about that? Oh and, by the way, you look really cute.” Where upon I started to giggle. Aaaagggggeeee!!! I have to find a way to shut down that behavioral modification program or at least get control over it. If I don’t I’m going to end up being the biggest Japanese girly-girl schoolgirl there ever was or will be. While Susana is thinking up a way to answer my last question I decide to set Dee De on the behavioral program.
“Okay old lady I need your help big time. Have you looked into that behavioral program yet?”
OLD LADY!!! You will pay for that, you little shit, but as to your question, I have. I also am no closer to figuring it out. I have no frame of reference to compare it to. Once I have that I’ll get back to you.
“Dagnabit! You have had over 8 hours to study the programming for that Secondary Reconfiguration. Do not tell me that you don’t have a clue as to what went on. Now quit trying to soften the blow and tell me if you can shut down that program, or give me enough control of it so that I won’t be a brain washed zombie.”
Ok I tried to put this off, but as usual you have to go bulling your way into things head first. From what I have been able to figure out, all of the behavioral programing was written straight into your neural pathways. As far as where it’s information for the behavior of a teenage Japanese schoolgirl, all of it came from the planetary internet. All of the information it gathered was compiled, then broken down into the most feminine and expected behaviors of that group sample, then hard wired into your brain. Because of this, there is no way to override the programing. You, my dear, had better get used to the idea of becoming the biggest girly-girl in the Galaxy.
“Aaaahh Hell!! Why did it have to happen over Hades instead of over someplace like Ares or Jupiter? Some place with a more even ratio of males to females.”
It’s not my fault that the population of Hades has a ratio of 5.86 to1 of females to males.
“Don’t worry about it. Well I guess I’ll just have to deal with it. I just wish I knew how far it will go?”
That, I can answer. One of the few things I was able to dig up out of the code was a model of what you want to look like. Do you want to see, or be surprised?
“Go ahead and show me what my new look will be, thanks to the compulsions.”
Ok here you go. This is the best that I can come up with.
                                                
Idea of Maiha Normal look 1, 2 and 3
Oh boy! From the looks of things I’ll be on the fast track for the girly-girly-girl with no stops for the weak at heart. I have to see if Dee De can stop this before it gets out of hand.
“Good God Dee De! Do something! You have to override that programing. Now!”
Listen to me kiddo. The only way to stop this thing is for me to short out your brain. Do you hear me? We’re talking a major stroke, big enough to short out your whole brain. We’re talking about having to kill you to stop the program. Do you understand now?
“Is there any chance for a little bit of boyishness in there?”
Hold on…… the best you can hope for is this.
                                                                         
Maiha as tomboy 1                             Maiha as tomboy 2
“Well damn. I will still look like a girly tomboy.”
Hey, you better pay attention Susana is talking to you.
“Talk later”.
“……decided that the best way to teach my father a lesson about putting a spy in the H.C.S. was by me showing up as a Maiko like my aunt threatened to do when I was first sent to work for the H.C.S.” she was saying.
“Excuse me Susana. I must apologize for my lack of concentration. What were you saying again?” I asked in my sweetest tone.
“Oh, no problem. I can tell you are getting tired. What I said was that when I saw that my aunt Gin was one of the maids sent to help you get ready, I knew it was my chance to get out of that mess. So while you were busy with Maj. Howard, I let Kina and aunt Gin to blow my cover, thereby giving you the opportunity to out me. This way it’ll look like I’m coming home in an honorable way.” As she took a moment to catch her breath, I looked over at Gin who was nodding her head yes to my unspoken question. “But I could not let my father think he still had an intelligence asset. So that was when I decided that the best way to teach my father a lesson about putting a spy in the H.C.S. was by me showing up as a Maiko, like my aunt threatened to do when I was first sent to work for the H.C.S.”
“So this is just to get him to stop spying on the H.C.P.D.F. here on Hades, correct? What if he tries to use someone else? What will you do then?” I asked.
“That is for you to decide Lady Nakatoma. You see, the only person who can stop him from doing it is the Head of House, because the only way to stop him is to make him retire. Please my Lady, allow him to retire as your commander of the House Troops.” I could see the pain in her eyes. I can tell that her father’s position is slowly killing her family. “If my leaving the service of the House to become a Maiko, and then finally a Geisha, will shame him into retiring then I would do it. That is why I am dressed this way. I have to save my family.” The poor girl was almost in tears.
Taking a deep breath and nodding my head. “I’ll do what I can to help. How much longer will it take to reach the estate?”
“About three hours. Why my Lady?” ask Gin.
“Please wake me when we get there. I’m feeling rather tired and thought to take a little nap... or is there something else you wished to discuss with me?” I asked of them.
“Not at this time Lady Maiha. There is a button to raise the foot rest next to you on the door handle. Sleep well my Lady.”  Kina told me.
Finding the button for the footrest I raised it, leaned back and went to sleep.
Three hours and a little more later……
I must have been more tired than I thought, because I could have sworn I had just closed my eyes when Gin was waking me up. I must have really been out of it. 
“Please! Wake up Lady Nakatoma... Please!” Poor Gin was almost in a panic. 
“I’m up. I’m up already Gin, calm down. Now what’s wrong?” I asked her.
With a visible relaxing of her shoulders and upper body she sighed. “We began to worry when you would not awake when called. So Kina tried to shake you awake and, well, you hit her in the nose. I don’t think it is broken but you started to thrash about. That was when I grabbed you and started to call your name. Only then did you start to wake. We have arrived at the estate compound border.”
“Ok, I am awake now. Is Kina ok?” at the nod of her head I continued. “Now why were you three so worried when you could not wake me up?”
“The Medical team that extracted you and your grandfather had told Suzume Nanami that we should keep a watchful eye on you. So when you fell asleep, we took turns watching you.” The hover-limo came to a stop so I quickly looked around. I saw that Susana was holding a towel to Kinas’ nose. I don’t believe I smacked her in the face, let alone in the nose.
“Oooh! Kina I’m soo sorry. I didn’t mean to do that!” I can’t believe it! I was almost in tears over what I did. “Please forgive me?” I almost pleaded.
Moving the towel from her face, she just looked at me like I had grown a second and third head. “Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana, you do not beg the forgiveness from someone who has grabbed you without reason. I should not have touched you, nor shaken you to wake you up. That was not acceptable behavior on my behalf. I should have waited to get to know you better before assuming such familiarity. You have nothing to be sorry for. Now dry your eyes. You are the Head of House for the Nakatoma Shogunate. Show me that steel I saw earlier, child.”
With a deep breath to calm and center my feelings I straightened my back and sat back in my seat like a true Lady would have done, and I should have done. “Please forgive my un-lady like behavior Kina. I shall always try my best to uphold the standard that you have set for me. It is a very high standard, so forgive me if I stumble every now and then.” I tell her. That is when I see the smile. It is small but it is there. Oh yes, this woman will not be leaving my service any time soon. When I look over at Susana and Gin they both have the same small smile. I think I just passed some kind of test. What that was, I do not know. At about that time something registers in the back of my mind. Gin called Susana by a different name. “Gin what did you call Susana just a moment ago? It was not Susana, I know that much.”
“Oh, I called by her real name, not the English one she used for the Military High Command. For some reason she decided to use a name of English origin. But sounded close enough to her real name. What I called her was Suzume Nanami. You will have to ask her why she changed her name though.” Came her reply.
I was about to ask that very question when I noticed we were going through a gate that had to be close to 80 feet tall and almost 100 feet wide. I mean fracking HUGE, not just big. Each door half had to be close to two feet thick and if I had to guess their weight I would say each one was one to two hundred tons. That was how big they were, but as big as the doors were, what was on the other side was even more impressive. Dee De gave me a quick run-down on what they were. On each side of the driveway was what could only be an Assault Class, Armored Power Suit, both of which were R9-A3 Rhinos. 100 tons 80 feet high and packing twice the firepower of a single Marauder. Those beasts were not to be taken lightly. As one pilot I knew when I was younger once said, “It’s all fun and games until the assault Suits step out to play.”
                            
                                          The Estate Guard's Rhino 
D.D.A.I.: R9-A3 RHINO ASSAULT CLASS ARMORED POWER SUIT
HEIGHT: 80 FEET
WIEGHT: 100 TONS
MAIN WEAPONS: 2 150MM RAILGUNS, 3 150MM PARTICLE PROJECTION CANNONS
SECONDARY WEAPONS: 10 50MM RAPPID FIRE PLASMA LAZER RIFLES CHEST MOUNTED IN THE LEFT & RIGHT SIDES
“My God! What in the world are those beasts doing inside the fence? More to the point, what and why are they even here? I thought we were going to see my great aunt not the P.D.F. Head Quarters?” I asked of my companions with some amazement, only to hear a round of giggles from all three. Looking over at them I can tell that I have said something that has hit a funny bone with them all. I wonder if the conversation I had with my maids in the M.C.U. over four hours ago had anything to do with it. “Were those the power suits of your husband’s ladies?” At their nods I continue. “I see why now you had made the comments that you did.”
“Gin and I did not mean to be disrespectful in our questioning of you earlier, Lady Maiha, but we have never been able to see the beauty in such massive machines. The one on the right, with the dancer in the moonlight painted on the sides, is Moon Light Dancer, my husbands. The one on the left is Cherry Blossom which belongs to Gin's husband. Now do you see why we could not find the beauty in them that you or they do?” Kina asked with respect. Now that I see their husbands power suits I understand their bewilderment.
I am having a hard time finding the beauty in those monsters, but then again that was never a Death Dealers forte. We always believed in stealth over mass fire power to win. We were specialists in guerilla warfare, not head to head front line battles. That’s not to say we couldn’t do that kind of fighting, we just preferred a more subtle approach to war.
“Ladies, I must apologize. I had no idea of what is obviously so apparent now that I see your husband’s machines. I too would find it difficult to find beauty in them, but then again, thanks to my grandfather’s teachings, I have a frame of reference with which to compare and I will tell you this. Those are no ordinary power suits.” As I looked at them I could tell that they wanted to know why. “Those are the power suits that other power suits fear. A friend of my grandfather once said, and I quote, ‘It’s all fun and games until the assault Suits step out to play.’ Until now I had no clue as to what he meant, but I definitely do now.” I said, with no small amount of awe. To see not one, but two Assault class Power Suits, was anything but normal outside of a P.D.F. To see them on guard duty for a House unit was almost enough to short out what little was left of my mind.
“My uncle must have either ticked off the Commander again, or decided to be your welcoming committee along with his lance mates.” Suzume commented.
Looking over at her I realized once again just how sharp of a mind was hidden by the Maiko make-up. This, for me, was still a mystery despite having them explain it for me. I just don’t understand how Susana appearing as a Maiko is going to shame her father. Oh well, not my problem. “Excuse me Lt. How do you wish to be addressed when we reach the main house? I don’t want to cause you any undue problems.”
“Well my lady, now that I have finally left the P.D.F. and the High Command, I will return to using my real name... Suzume Nanami Walking Water.” She started to explain. “I only took the name of Susana because no one could properly pronounce my first name while I was at Central Command back on Earth Prime. Everyone just thought my name was Susana not Suzume Nanami. After a while I got tired of correcting them and just went by Susana.”
“Will you be wearing your uniforms again or are you staying with kimonos’?” I really wanted to know, because I didn’t want to be the only one who was always in extremely feminine clothing. “I just want to know if you will be staying on as my military secretary. That is the position for which you were transferred from the P.D.F. to the Nakatoma Shogunate. I believe you should be in the uniform of the House Troops if you do accept the posting.”
“Oh yes ma’am, I will be taking the posting if my father will allow it. If he doesn’t, I will have nowhere to go. My aunt has already contacted a Geiko for me to be her Maiko.” Then she bowed deeply saying. “I am not your responsibility. No, my future is in the hands of my father. By tomorrow evening I will either be in uniform or at an okiya in the Honshu’ district.”
I can tell you right now that does not sit well with me. No sirree bob. She is not going to be a Geisha, not if I can help it. “I can tell you this much. You will not be going to an okiya. This I promise. Because as of one minute after I take the throne as Head of House, your father is retired. I cannot, and will not, have a man who would go so far as to disgrace his own child by having them become a spy.” With that comment I could see the fire begin to burn in her eyes. She had fully expected to return in dishonor and have to become a Maiko. Oh yes, I now have a true fire brand as a military secretary. I need that fire, that desire in her, because her first job will be to gather intelligence on all of the House troop officers so I can know who to trust.
Before I can say any more we pull up in front of the main house. Now I have never been to my beloved wife’s ancestral home so I was unrepaired for the sight that was before me. I have seen pictures of the ancient homes and castles of Japan, but to see one up close and personal is something no one can be prepared for.  I have crisscrossed the known Galaxy more times than I can count, shaken the same man’s hand twice, I have even seen goats mating in the market place, but in all of my 97 years I have never seen anything like this. I have seen some beautiful buildings in my time but nothing compares to what I'm looking at right now. Before I knew what was happening the Shogun was opening the door and offering me a hand to help me exit. After getting out I opened my parasol and waited for the others. 
Once everyone was out, Kina led the way into the house. No, not house... castle is more accurate. I mean the place was huge. At the top of the stairs we were meet by something I have heard of but never seen. A J8-MS or James butler. These are some of the most expensive robot servants around. The J8 Man Servants run close to five to five and a half thousand credits a unit, and these people are using one as a doorman. Oh man, I am out of my depth here. After I retired from the Military High Command I received a standard retirees pay, plus all the money from the research and development company I started before retiring from that 17 years ago. All that combines to give me a fairly comfortable living, or so I thought. What I saw here surpassed all my wildest dreams. From the solid, real wood doors, to the real hardwood floors, to the handmade hall tree.
                            
As we walk down the entry way I realize just how much I need to learn if I am to be the Head of House for this family. I have to know into what businesses they have invested, what businesses they own, and how much property they have, not only here on Hades, but all the other Systems. “Gin, what is the local time?” I asked more out a need to end the eerie silence that had surrounded us for the time we had arrived. 
“Why do you ask, my Lady?” she replied.
“Because if it is too late in the evening I don’t want to wake anyone who has to work in the morning. So please tell me, what is the time?” I said with a little heat to my voice. I was beginning to get tired of everyone questioning me.
“Oh I am sorry, my Lady. I forget that you are not used to the local 28 hour day. It is just before what would be the middle of the night. The local time is 1330 P.M. 
Yes, most of the household has gone to sleep, but your great aunt is still up and waiting to meet you. That is where we are headed now, her personal chambers.” Came her very quick reply. I guess that they are starting to realize when I ask a question I don’t want a bunch of questions, but honest fracking answers.  I know I should give them a chance to learn how I am about certain things, but right now I’m just too tired and too upset about the lack of control over my life to give a shit.
Plus there is the fact that, in the past 18 hours, I have gone from being a 97 year old man with a decent retirement, with plans to spend the rest of his days relaxing on the sandy beaches of Hades equatorial coast lines, to a 16 year old Head of House to the Nakatoma Shogunate, who just so happens to be a girl. Not just any girl, oh no. She is on her way to being the girliest girly-girl ever. Not to mention having to put up with being enrolled in an all-girls school so, no, I am not in a very good mood. Having to meet with my sister-in-law, who everyone is assuming is my great aunt, in the middle of the night, is not something I want to do.
As we come to the end of the hall, Kina steps up beside me. “My Lady Maiha, this is the entrance to her Ladyships Dai Etsu private quarters. We can go no further without her permission. So from here on out you will be on your own, I’m afraid. Do not show weakness. Let her see the steel in your soul. Stand your ground and do not back down. Go in and claim what is yours by birth.”
“Are you telling me that, even though you are her maids, you can’t enter here without approval?” I asked.
“Yes my Lady. The moment we were assigned as your personal maids we would need permission. Remember, show only the steel that is in you. Remember, you are the rightful Head of House for the Nakatoma family.” And with that she moved back to stand with the others.
The J8 knocked on the door and waited. At the sound of a very soft voiced, “Yes?” it opens the door. Then it stepped back and waved for me to enter. Taking a deep and calming breath which, for some reason, I’m having to do a lot here recently, I straightened my back, squared my shoulders and then headed in to face the one woman who can blow all of our planning to Hell in a hand basket. Once I was passed the door, the J8 closed it behind me. I stopped to quickly scan the room, looking around for Dai Etsu and any surprises she might have planned for me. 
I know for a fact that the woman never did like me when I was married to her sister and would have gladly driven a stake through my heart, given half the chance.  There was no love lost between us, because I will also freely admit to having the feelings about wanting to gut her with my bare hands. From over by the door, to what must be a balcony comes her voice. “I see that you are as distrustful of me as always James, but please come in so I can get a better look at your new appearance.”
I continued in, but I was still scanning the room, not realizing that I was doing so. “I understand that you are my great aunt. Is that true?” I asked, once I had come to a stop in the middle of the room.
A soft laugh came from her as she stepped back into the room from the balcony. “Please let us be honest with each other, in here at least. You and I both know that Cpt. Ohmie Owens-Steel Heart, daughter to my dearly departed sister Matsue Nakatoma-Owens, had no children and we both know that she detested the Gift of Life Banks. Then, there is the way you carry yourself. No one for a hundred Light years can copy that icy stare and commanding presence. No one can match your personality, my dear. Far from it I would think. For someone to be able to even come close to it you would still fail if you were someone other than the one and only Commander James Jessie Owens, Death Dealer, and the only man to ever be called Death personified, honored and feared by both his enemies and friends.” When she steps in view I can tell by the look in her eyes she knows, but what does she want? I mean here she is holding the winning hand, a Royal Flush, while I have been trying to bluff the world with a lousy pair of threes. Just what is she up to?
Deciding to acknowledge the fact she had the upper hand I bowed to her, saying; “Very well Dai Etsu. Yes I am, or was until earlier this evening, your bother-in-law J.J. Owens. Now that it is out in the open, what is it that you want? I know you never approved my marrying Matsue. I also know that the two of you had a fight over something that caused a rift that never healed. As it stands right now you have it in your power to destroy everything the two of us ever built. So let us not play games, shall we?”
“Yes James, I agree. Let us not play games. I knew that the Military High Command was trying to cover something up by posing someone as my great niece, thanks to Suzume, but I didn’t know why. So I decided to send the O.E.C.H. to investigate. On the off chance there was a true heir to the Head of House seat, I needed some control over the situation. So I had all chances of you trying to slip an heir past us by enrolling them into one of the academies. Once that was in place I sent my two most trusted maids with the M.C.U. to get her dressed as befits a Head of House heir, and then bring them here to me. What I was not expecting was to see my former bother-in-law getting out of the hover-limo in the body of what could only be a true blending of my sister and niece.” She paused for a moment to look directly in my eyes. “What I do not know is how this can be? Would you care to explain it to me? I have laid all of my cards on the table, as you so often put it. I believe that it is time for you to show or fold, as it were?”
I always knew that Dai Etsu was a shrewd and cunning woman. I also knew that she could be ruthless in handling anything that she saw as a threat to her family. I knew this from personal experience as, at one time, she considered me a threat and was the target of her sharp and focused mind.
Maiha, I think that we should tell her everything. Starting with Secondary Reconfiguration Protocol and all it entails.
“If we do, then the fact that you are active will get out and then where will we be?”
I don’t know kid, but there is one thing I do know. We need her AND she needs us. I have been checking on the families fortunes since our maids and secretary told you about the infighting of all the other members’ branches. The fact that your daughter never had any children has led to most of the branches being almost wiped out. With Dai Etsu not having any heirs because of her vows as a priestess, it has put the Head of House up in the air for whoever has the strongest claim to grab. 
“Just how strong would my claim for the Head of House be if someone tried to challenge it?”
Well if we go off the premise of you being your granddaughter, then no one would be able to upset your claim. Seeing as how Dai Etsu chose to be a priestess, you would have a clear path to the seat.
“Thanks love. As usual, you have just given me the ammo I need to win a fight.”
“Very well Dai Etsu. What you and the rest of the civilian populace do not know is this.” And I proceeded to tell her all about the Secondary Reconfiguration Protocol and everything that it entails. During this time she had taken a seat on one of the few chairs that were in the room, waving for me to do the same. For some reason this woman, who always gave me the cold shoulder, was treating me as an equal. So, for the next hour we sat there with me giving her a blow by blow description of how I came to be to the image of her niece that never was. Once I finished she just sat there looking at me. After a few moments she sat up and looked at me.
“You could be the very thing to save this family, but before I agree to this, would you mind showing me this, what did you call it? Oh yes your Combat Configuration. Please?”
Nodding my head yes I stand up and start to undress. “Why are you taking off your clothes young lady?” 
Giggling, I reply very shyly. “I do not want to destroy this beautiful outfit. You see when I activate the Armor Skin anything next to my skin will be burned away because of the way it deploys.”
“Oh my. Here, let me give you a hand since that kimono is worth several thousand credits.” She said, as she put actions to words. Eventually I was down to my tights, panties, and corset.
“If these under garments are not that expensive I could activate my Combat Configuration now?” I asked I really didn’t want to strip all the way down in front of her. I know that we are both female now, but it still felt wrong for me to be nude with her there.
Dai Etsu looked at me for a moment then nodded her head yes. She must have felt my reluctance to be naked in front of her. “Armor Skin engage.” I could feel the fast tingly sensation as it rolled across my skin. There was a flash and everything that I still had on was gone. I could feel every component come on line, from the C.O.B.R.A. o.s., to the Armor Skin, to finally the weapons systems. The feeling of all that power at my command was enough to make me realize why so many went insane when waking up from the cocoon. Every inch of me was a weapon. I had truly become the very personification of Death.
                                                        
Dai Etsu fell back into her chair with a very frightened look on her face. Trembling she quietly asked, “What will you do now that you are free of the Military High Command? Are you going to kill me now? You obviously have the firepower to do whatever you want? I highly doubt that even one of those Assault Class Power Suits out there could stop you. I see in your eyes once again the craving for power. To put right what you see as unjust and wrong in the world. At last you have truly become Death. An unstoppable force of nature. Well Commander? Will you not answer me, or do you plan to right the wrong you believe done to your wife by me and this family all those years ago, with all that destructive power at your disposal by killing me?”
Looking over at her I finally know what the fight was about between her and my wife all those years ago. The very fact that she was a Priestess and therefore a pacifist, never played into my mind while I, on the other hand, was everything she hated. The fact that I was a Death Dealer and a soldier who only killed as a last resort didn’t play into it. No, what the problem was, was that her sister Matsue had betrayed her faith by marrying the very man they called Death. 
Right now I have choice to make. I can either try to heal the rift that our marriage had caused, or destroy the last member of my wife's family, whose opinion ever meant anything to her. Enough so that she would fight her to prove her wrong about me. I send a silent prayer up to my wife. 
“Disengage Armor.” I feel my armor turning liquid and flow back over my skin returning to where ever it comes from. Once I was once again only ‘human’ I walked back over to her to stand naked in front of her. Looking down at her and in as calm of a voice as I can, “Priestess Nakatoma Dai Etsu, I stand before you as bare as the day I was born. I give to you my most solemn vow of honor. Neither you nor this family shall ever have to fear me turning the power you have just seen against you. I know that you find my very existence abhorrent so, if you wish I shall only ask for a pair of sandals and spare robes to wear, and then leave you and your family in peace. If I have to, I shall enter into a shrine as a novice, to prove to you that I hate violence as much as you do.”
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 7
The colonel’s retirement
“Well Dee De, what do you think she'll do?”
Hon, I honestly don’t have a clue. When it comes to the human way of thinking I have always been at a loss to understand them, especially the females of the species. I have an easier time understanding the thinking of a Gorkonite. 
“The fact you would even find it easier to understand a Reptilian race over the human race says a Hell of a lot for your abilities as a sentient being and not just an AI.” 
I don’t know how long I stood there, waiting for Dai Etsu to say or do something. It could have been just minutes, but then again it could very well have been hours for all I know. What I do know is that I am not going to make the first move. Nope. That is all on her. I will not be the one to start hostilities. After what feels like hours she finally looks up at my naked form. I still do not move or say anything. Finally she stands and leaves the room.
“Looks like we’re walking out of here bare assed to the nearest temple or shrine. Dee De, I hope you don’t mind.”
I bloody well don’t think so. I will engage the Armor Skin before I let you freeze our collective ass off, and don’t worry about the oversize tin cans out there. We are more than a match for them. Between our speed, agility and our own firepower... well let’s just say we don’t have to worry.
“Look, if and I mean only if we have to fight, it will not be within the grounds of this compound. I gave my word of honor to Dai Etsu that I will bring no harm to this family. Do I make myself clear on this?! Well, Do I?!”
Yes ma’am, I understand. I was just saying that we could take them is all. 
“I Don’t Care! We will not engage unless they fire first, and then our only action will be to evade, not returning fire. Clear?”
Clear.
As I turn to walk out the door, Dai Etsu returns. In her hands are a floor length silk robe and a pair of socks. Looking at me, she says the words I never thought to hear from her. “James Jessie Owens. I have failed both you and my sister Matsue in my calling as a Priestess. I never tried to see you for the true Samurai that you are. All I ever saw was a destroyer of lives and worlds. I did not see the loving husband and father who would do all in his power for his family, including going off to war so others did not have to, but always with the hope that each time would be the last time.”
Then she did something I would never have expected. Dai Etsu Nakatoma wrapped her arms around me in a hug. Then she kissed me on top of my head. She followed all of that with a blessing. In all the years I have known her I have never heard her apologize once, nor admit to making a mistake. Once she is done, she wraps me in the robe and puts the socks on my feet. “Come with me dear. I wish to show you to your rooms. Oh, by the way, what is your name? I don’t think that James is a fitting name for such a beautiful flower of womanhood as you.”
Smiling up at her, I reply, “My name is Maiha Mana Owens-Steel Hart, but from what Kina and Gin Have told me, plus Suzume Walking Water, my name will become Nakatoma once you approve of me.”
“A very beautiful name for my very beautiful niece. Yes my dear, I know who you were and that, my dear, is all that matters. The Goddess has given you and me a second chance at what should have been, but was not. Now you and I both must do all that we can to save, first your beloved wife’s family and my own, but it is now yours as well. I know that, inside of you resides the power of the God of Death. I have seen it with my own eyes, but you do not crave that power, as I once thought. In fact, you hate it with all of your heart. Yes my dear, you are now and forever Deaths Own Daughter.”
She had a sad smile on her face. I could see the pain of loss in her eyes and hear it in her voice. The constant infighting of the rest of the family had taken its toll on her soul. This small, but proud woman was made from the finest of material. In her, a Steel of the finest quality. This is no woman to play with. I can see in her the role model I will need if I am to become the Head of House for this shattered High Family.
“I see in you a blending of your wife, daughter, and yourself. It is this blending that I speak of that makes you a truly new and wondrous person. One who will do great and fearsome works in the path that is her new life. You will be the salvation of not only this family, but the Human race. The Goddess has shown me this and I will do all that I can to make sure you are ready. Now, enough dilly-dallying. It is late and we all need our sleep, as the sun will be rising on a new day in a few hours.”
With that, she opened the door to her rooms and led me out into the hall. Once there I saw neither my new maids nor Suzume. At my questioning look Dai Etsu told me she had given orders to the J8 for them to go on to bed, as she did not know how long we would be and that she would see me to my rooms when done. We walked down the hall to an intersection and, once there we turned to the left and continued down that hall until coming to a door that would give a power suit pause.
Seeing the look on my face, Dai Etsu placed her hand on the handle and, with a gentle push, opened the door as if it weighed nothing. Leading me inside, she showed me my rooms. First was the sitting room, or as some call it, the receiving room. This one room was as big as the apartment that I had planned to rent while on Hades. Next was the bedroom, which was almost as big as the sitting room. Off to one side was a changing or robing room, with more clothes than I think I could wear in a lifetime, all of which were kimonos of one type or another, and all the undergarments to go with them. Just beyond that was a bathroom that was big enough to handle five or six people at one time.
When the tour was done and we had returned to the sitting room, Dai Etsu turned to me and said. “James, from this point on I shall only refer to you as my niece Maiha Mana, the heir of your daughters’ and wife’s blood lines to the Head of House Nakatoma and the Nakatoma Family. I will also treat you as what you appear to be, a teenage girl who was raised in a household with no female presence. Please do not hold this against me. It is for your own good. You will have to appear as a young lady of breeding, a member of the Ruling Family and, most importantly, the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family. Now if you will forgive me it is late and I am not as young as I once was. I will see you in the morning. Your maids will come by to wake you and prepare you for the day. Until then, sleep well my dear.” And with a kiss on my check she headed for the door.
“Goodnight and pleasant dreams Reverend Mother. May the morning find you in good health.” I tell her and then, when see she is looking, I place my hands together and bow from the waist.
“We will work on your bow tomorrow young one. While the depth and duration is good, your form is sloppy. It shows me you have spent too much time with your grandfather's people. I know your grandparents would not accept such sloppiness from you and neither shall I. Now, good night.” were her parting words to me.
I stand there with my mouth hanging open. I thought I did it perfectly. Then again, that woman always could find something wrong with whatever I did when it came to my manners. The infuriating part was she was always right. Both she and my wife could do that to me with little or no effort. It has always driven me crazy. Well it looks like she finally gets the chance to teach me the correct way after all these years, and with that thought in my head, I get ready for bed.



The next morning
I must have been a whole lot more tired than I thought, because the last thing I remember is saying good night to my great aunt, then climbing into bed. Now I hear Kina and Gin talking softly. They are wondering where the kimono and underthings I was wearing last night are.
“I know that I double knotted the laces on her corset. There should have been no way for her to get out of it without help. I highly doubt that her Ladyship would stoop to help someone remove a kimono, let alone a corset and underthings.” That was Gin. 
“But where are they? I can see her getting off the kimono, socks, tights, and panties, but she would have had to remove the corset and she is neither wearing it, nor is it anywhere it to be found.” Chimes in Kina.
“Will you two be quiet? If you wake her up after the day and night she had yesterday we’ll all catch hell, and trust me aunties, we  do not want that young lady over there pissed off at us. You have not seen, nor had her anger pointed at you. Believe me. That is not something you want to face.” And there is Suzume. Bless the child for trying to protect her aunt Gin. Wait a minute... she said aunties, as in plural, more than one. Could Kina also be her aunt? 
“I have dealt with far more of these High Families brats then you, child. I have yet to see one that needed to be feared. Once you have tanned their hide once or twice, they all understand who is really in charge. It will be no different with this one, you’ll see.” Now that is an unknown voice. Just who the hell is in my rooms?
I decide to put an end to this conversation by rolling over. I sat up, and then stretched. “Mmmmm…. Good morning Kina, Gin and Suzume. Oh, hello. Just who might you be? Well just don’t stand there. What is your name? Come, come you had the spine to call me a ‘High Families brat’ not a moment ago. Where is your bravado now woman?” Yup. I was mad and in no mood to put up with B.S. As I sat there waiting for this woman to tell me just who she was, I decide to put on the robe I had taken off and laid at the foot of the monster that was my bed. For some reason, being naked in front of these women doesn’t seem to bother me. 
“Dee De has that fracking behavioral programing done some more rewriting of my brain?”
Ok honey, I think I have a handle on what it’s doing. Whenever you do something that you will be expected to do, or you act in a certain way for the first time, the behavioral program picks it up and then, when you go to sleep, it hardwires that behavior into your mind. This way it becomes second nature to you. Such as your being naked in front of your maids during certain times.
“Ok I can deal with that now that I know. Thank you.”
I had climbed out of bed by this time. All I had on was the robe, which my great aunt had loaned me last night. I walked up to the woman who was the current target for my anger. I watched as my three ladies from last night all backed up out of the way. I can tell that they want to see how either I, or she, will handle this situation. “I asked you a question. Now either answer it like you should, or see if you can, as you put it ‘Once you have tanned their hide once or twice they all understand who is really in charge’. Well? I’m waiting.”
Hey. What did I tell you about using the combat mode when dealing with your maids?
“Don’t worry I won’t need it, but I have to set an example for the household staff, and this bitch just earned the right. Now back off and let me deal with this my way.”
 Ok. Just don’t kill her.
Yup. I just knew she would go for the heavy handed approach. As she reached out to grab my ear saying “Now listen here missy! I will not have you disrespecting me with that tone of voice. I am Morine Nia Gemma but you will call me Misses Morine do ……Yaaeeeeiiii!” was all she got out. The reason for this was due to the fact that I had grabbed her hand and flipped her. Once she hit the floor, the impact knocked the breath out of her.
Looking down at her, I tell her very bluntly “Nia, you are fired. Once you have regained your ability to breathe you will go to your quarters and clear out all of your belongings. I will give you until 1430 this afternoon to be off the estate. If you have not done so by then, the guards will have orders to shoot you on sight. Do I make myself clear?” I asked her, rather sweetly. The only one to have heard me use that tone before was Suzume, and she had to fight to keep from wincing. With that I walked away from Nia, leaving her on the floor. I saw Gin begin to go give her a hand, but I put a stop to it before it started. “Gin? Do you wish to join your sister in seeking new employment?”
I headed for the bathroom to take care of my morning toilet. After taking care of business and having a hot soak, I returned to the dressing room. When I entered I was greeted by all four of them from earlier. I did not like where this was going, so I decided to put a stop to it right now. “I thought I had informed you of your dismissal earlier Nia? Why are you still here? Did the three of you think to persuade me to show leniency? Well? Speak up! I want answers and I want them now!” Oh yeah they can tell I’m pissed now, as they are all wincing at the tone of my voice.
Shaking, Nia speaks up “Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana, I beg your forgiveness. My sister and niece both tried to tell me how you were not like the others I have had to deal with in the past, but in my arrogance I thought I knew better. I assumed you were just another spoiled child who has been sent to her great aunts for a few months to learn some manners before being shipped off to some temple. Can you ever forgive me? I see now that you are no ordinary child of the High Families.”
I noticed that the other three are standing behind her. With her head bowed, she does not see me look at each of them in turn. They each nod their head yes. Suzume has an almost pleading look in her eyes, so I know that something is up. Well, if they want her here then I will know why. “Alright. Suzume, I can tell from the look in your eyes you all have a reason for me giving Nia a second chance. So spit it out.”
Suzume steps around her aunt, who tries to stop her from speaking, to stand in front of me. “My Lady, the reason that I would ask of you to give my aunt Nia a second chance is that she has nowhere else to go. She has lost all of her family in the service of the Nakatoma Family. Her husband was a House Troop A.P.S. pilot who died defending Hades from a pirate attack twenty years ago. Her only son left for the North American Military Academy ten years ago, only to die here on Hades protecting Lady Dai Etsu from an assassin sent by one of the lesser members of the Family. Finally, her own daughter who was born within these very walls, died shortly after her eighteenth birthday, while protecting her Ladyship. So you see my Lady, all she has left is her service to Family Nakatoma.” As she finished she bowed to me, then stepped back behind her aunt.
Suzume had used an argument that would appeal to my sense of justice. Yes, I would give this woman a second chance, but it would come at a price. One that I think Nia is more than willing to pay. “Nia, I am willing to forgive you and to keep you on as one of the maids here in this House, but there is one thing you must do first. If you are willing to do it you can stay. What is your answer?”
“I will do whatever you wish mistress. What must I do? How many fingers must I cut off?” was all she said.
So she was of the old school Yakuza. Perfect. Just the one I need to deliver my message. “Apologize.” That was all I said.
I swear, I thought her head was going to pop off of her neck. “Excuse me my Lady, did you say apologize?” At my smiling nod she bows to me saying “I am deeply sorry Lady Maiha. I should not have assumed that you were like the others. I wronged you in that assuming. Please forgive me?”
“You are forgiven. Now do you see why your niece told you not to get on my bad side Nia?” I asked of her.
“Yes I do Lady Maiha. Not only will you put the one who angers you on their backside, you will gladly show them to the door as you do it. If you were a Yakuza Oban they would rule the world, but if you were the commissioner of police you would be a Death sentence.” She replied with a bow far deeper and more formal than any I have seen yet. Bingo! I found my teacher, or I should say, one of my teachers.
“Shall we get me dressed ladies? I need food and coffee, and I don’t think my aunt would approve of me going down to breakfast in just the clothes that my maker gave me at birth.” That drew a giggle from them all.
It was Gin who answered for them. “No. She does require all who eat in the dining room to be properly dressed.” This brought even more giggling, and so began what would become my daily routine. Wake up; take a bath, followed by fifteen to twenty minutes of being stretched out for my corset, then make-up and finally whatever I was to wear for the day. For now though it looks like kimonos will be the only thing I’ll be wearing for some time to come. After I was dressed and my ladies pronounced me fit to be seen, they decided to let me go get something to eat.
Now I will say this... I have never been a morning person, and my sudden jump across the great gender divide, and age regression, has not changed that one flipping bit. I think that was what finally got through to my ladies that, if I didn’t get some food and coffee in short order, one and all would be unemployed. That or it might have been me throwing the nail file at the J8 when it had been sent to see if I would be joining my great aunt for breakfast. I don’t know, or care. All I knew was I was finally on my way to eat. 
Maiha honey, will you quit terrorizing the help? It’s going to be hard enough teaching you to be a LADY of means, let alone a Head of House. I need some help here. So play nice, damn it. You didn’t have to stick the nail file in the J8s forehead. It was only doing its job you know.
“HEY I am playing nice. If I did what I really wanted to do, the household would be in need of a new J8 and, most likely, a carpenter for the hole that would be in the wall behind it.” 
What do you mean by that?
Oh that's simple. I want to find out just how powerful that miniature P.P.C. is in our right arm is, as well as the P.L.R. in the left. I figure the rest of our weapons can take out your standard armored infantryman without too much trouble.”
 
Do you mean you would have used something that was designed to take out AI tanks and A.P.S. units? Look hone, I know that you’re feeling a little down right now, but you have to get a hold of yourself.
“You calm down and get a hold of yourself. I go to bed last night thinking one way only to wake up thinking another. Than I have you tell me that, for the rest of my life, that fracking behavioral programming’s dump is, for all practical purposes, rewriting the way I think, or have you forgotten that little detail?”
For some reason she left me alone. Hey, I know that I went over aboard with the nail file and the threat to use the P.P.C. or P.L.R. on the J8, but I wasn’t too far off the mark either. I’ll also admit that there was more than just being hungry and a lack of caffeine or nicotine right now. Ever since Dee De gave me the news that the behavioral program was more than just a set of instructions for behaving like a girl that is hardwired into my brain. It was also a learning program that would take whatever that learned during that day on how to be a lady, and turn it into a compulsion. This was not something I wanted happening to me, but there was something else that was bugging me and for the life of me I couldn't figure out what it was. I knew it had something to do with yesterday but what?
As I enter the dining area I am brought up short. There in front of me was the entire household staff, as well as my great aunt and, from the looks of things, they were waiting for me. The reason that I came to this conclusion is, the only seat that is open is the one at the other end from my great aunt, who is seated at what appears to be the head of the table making my seat the foot, and the second most important place at the table.  I quickly realized that they have held the meal waiting for me. This was not what I wanted. As I step up to the table, I copy the form I had seen Nia use earlier in my chambers. 
“Forgive me for making you wait, Reverend Mother. I had not known that you were holding the meal. If I had known I assure you I would have been here sooner.” I hold my bow, waiting for her to say something. I have placed my fate in her hands as to how this meal will go. 
“This is not your fault child. You had no way of knowing at what time the house sits to eat. I see though, that the time was not wasted. Your form and execution of your bow would do a Priestess of the first order credit. I take it that the J8 surprised you during your practice this morning?” She asked, with a little smile. Yup she was giving me a way out and a way to explain why that an expensive piece of household kit had a nail file imbedded in its forehead.
“Yes ma’am. I am not quite used to having servants to help me with getting ready for the day. So I was able to get ready faster than I or they thought. So I thought I would use the time to practice the form of my bow. When the J8 walked in on us, I grabbed the nail file from my make-up table, as it was closest, and threw it.” I straightened up as I answered her. From the look on her face I could tell that she wanted to laugh at the stupidity of the whole situation. She knew that I wasn’t caught off guard by the J8 and I know that we will be having a very long conversation about my beating up on the help.
Gesturing for me to me to take my seat, she replies. “Well my dear you will have to take that into account from now on. You see, there will always be one or two around you at all times now.” After I had taken my seat she continued. “ As the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family you will have at least two Ladies Maids with you at all times plus a personal secretary, two to three bodyguards when outside of the main House and of course, until you have mastered the fine arts of ladylike behavior, a sensei of womanly arts. Yes I know, you are probably used to just running around with no one to keep you from behaving like some ragamuffin or worse yet, a tomboy, but now those days of carefree living must unfortunately, sadly, come to an end. You now face a challenge that, if you had spent your entire life practicing it, would be difficult, but now I must say near impossible.”
Looking over at her I tilt my head to the side. “May I ask what that might be? Because I have no clue as to what I have literally landed in here. Yesterday all I had hoped for was to graduate from the Hades Military Academy in the next four years. Now though, I have at least two Ladies Maids, a secretary, and a full bodyguard unit assigned to me by the High Command from the P.D.F. and not just any unit either... their finest A.P.S. Company. I know that we will reimburse the Military for their service, but all of this is so new to me that I am lost as to what to expect.” I say with all honesty. As we talked we were served our breakfast. I stopped the young girl who was acting as my waitress. “Excuse me, but I would like a cup coffee with cream and sugar. Please?” You would have thought I had just taken a shit on the House temple's altar from her reaction. She actually looked at my great aunt to know what to do.
I started to get pissed. Thankfully my great aunt interrupted me before I said anything. “Maiha I am sorry. I did not think to include coffee on the menu. Su Mia, please tell the cook to put on a pot of coffee for my niece. I had forgotten how much her grandfather would have drunk throughout the day. I am sure that she grew up drinking that, more than tea. Thank you.” With a quick bow the girl returned to the kitchen to place the order.
“Now, as to your question my dear. The answer is really right there in front of you.” At my blank look she took pity on my poor addled mind. “You my dear, have to save our family from itself. As I said, a difficult task for one who is prepared for it all of their life. For you it shall be an uphill battle.” Was her reply, but I also saw something else in her eyes, a hint of what she knows I could do. I was after all a former Commander of the Death Dealers.
Oh yes I can see it now. She was counting on my past and experience with politics to stop the in-fighting of my new family.  Oh yes, she truly wishes for me to become Deaths Own Daughter and then the Head of House Nakatoma. If this is what she wants then so be it. Looking her in the eye I give her a seated bow of acknowledgement and go back to eating. As the meal progressed I was introduced to the heads of the different sections of the households. There was housekeeping, cooking, maids, engineers, and finally the commander of the House troops. Ah yes, the man I need to remove from office this morning. 
“Excuse me Lady Dai Etsu,” I began “but did you know that there is a problem in the house troops?” 
“No. I was not made aware of any problems with the House troops. Colonel Walking Water, do you know what my niece is talking about?”
“Lady Nakatoma Dai Etsu, I can assure you that there is no problem with the House troops. Personally I think that your niece, though being raised by the man most people called Death, has taken his teachings and misinterpreted them. She just does not have the experience to understand the placement of A.P.S. units.” Was his very smug reply and then he looked at me with the contempt of someone who thought they were superior. Well, at that point I looked at my great aunt to see how she would handle it. What she did was to gesture for me to handle it.
Before I can begin though, Su Mia returned with my coffee. Once I had it, I used the time to fix it to my liking, then having a good drink of it. Yes I was stalling, but it put Walking Water on edge enough that he growled at me. “Well little girl, do you have proof of a problem in my command, or do you just think you have proof.” He demanded of me.
Yup just like I thought. He did not respect me or my aunt. It’s time to remove him from the command of the House troops. “Colonel Walking Water, I do not know if you realize who you are talking to. So I shall enlighten you. I am the Rightful Head of House for the Nakatoma Family, not my great aunt, the Lady Nakatoma Dai Etsu. As such, it is at my sufferance that you serve in your capacity as the head of my House troops, not Hers.” I paused to take a drink of my coffee before continuing “Now, as far as my ability to command the respect of the troops, all you have to do is look to the unit that volunteered to be my bodyguards. If you haven’t I shall again enlighten you. They are The Hell Hounds A.P.S., commanded by Maj Howard. Now as far as the House troops go I have no problem. My problem is with you. For you see, I do not, and will not condone the placing of spies inside of the Military High Command or the Planetary Defense Forces.” Once again I had to pause or I would lose my control over my temper. Before I can continue though, the Colonel decides that attacking me, instead of hearing me out was the better plan.
“Young Lady. I have served this Family since before you were even conceived, let alone born.” He started to raise his voice. “I will have you know that I do not answer to you! As far as I can tell you have yet to prove who your mother is, and until then I and I alone, will decide how to conduct affairs with the P.D.F. and .H.C.S. Not some schoolgirl!”
That did it. I had tried to be diplomatic, but this ass clown has to be stopped now. Not with politeness, but cold hard action. “You are relieved of duty Col. You can clear out your desk and be off the estate by 2030 hours today. Do I make myself clear? You are done at House Nakatoma. I am sure you can find employment elsewhere. Now get out of my sight before I have you taken out back and shot by the troops you have placed in positions that would have disgraced them if they had been found out. That’s right. I gave orders last night for all of your spies to return home.” I stop to take a drink. “Delivered by your very own daughter sir. Maj. Howard, you can come in now. As I am sure you have heard, the Col. is no long employed here. As such, it leaves a hole at the top. I need an officer I can trust to run the House troops, you're it until I find someone better or you’re dead. Now escort the Col. out please.” And with that I returned to my breakfast and my great aunt. I watched as Maj. Howard got up and walked over to carry out my orders. I was hoping that Col. Walking Water would not make a scene. I was wrong.
“Lady Dai Etsu, are you just going to let this child talk to me in such an insulting manner? Surely you’re not going to let such disrespect go unpunished?” So far he had yet to move from his seat. “Lady Dai Etsu, why aren’t you saying anything?”
My aunt looked at me, and then smiled. “From what my niece, the Rightful Head of House for this Family has pointed out to you already. I do not have a say in your employment status with the Family. I believe you were just dismissed. However, I believe if you apologize for your rudeness, she might just might show you leniency.” She gracefully said with a seated bow toward me.
The look of horror that was on his face, as he finally realized he had overstepped his authority and station, was as plain as day. He now understood that I was the one with the authority to decide who would and would not serve at the Nakatoma Family, and from the looks of things, so did the rest of the household staff. Yes I think I have made the point very clearly that the old ways of doing things have come to an end.
“Lady Maiha if I may explain my actions on the behalf of House Nakatoma I….” he starts to say, but I have had enough of his arrogance. So I just cut him off.
“Colonel Walking Water, there is nothing you can say to explain to me your unjustified act of placing spies in the P.D.F. or the H.C.S. All that shows is a lack of trust and competence on your part. Now I believe that you have been dismissed from your duties and from your service to the Nakatoma Family. You may leave now.”
“Please Lady Maiha …”
“I said you may leave. Now get out of my sight. Maj Howard, if he does not make a move to leave in the next ten seconds, you have my permission to remove him by force.” I said, with a great deal of heat in my voice. I now had the full attention of everyone at the table.
As he stands up he looks me at one last time. Mustering what dignity he had left. He makes a plea for leniency “My Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana please give me a chance to prove my loyalty to you and the Family. I know I can redeem myself.”
“Very well. You have one, I repeat, one chance to persuade me to show leniency. That is all.” I reply pulling myself up to my full height.
“Please Lady Nakatoma Maiha, forgive my insolence. When I was told that you were here I had assumed that you were another young daughter of the family, who was sent here to study the ways of the Priestess of the Goddess with your great aunt, not to be the Head of House. For that assumption I beg your forgiveness, but I still feel that you lack the experience to make military decisions. Although Maj Howard may be a competent A.P.S. unit commander, his own superiors have not shown him to have the experience, or ability, to handle the demands of higher command.” Was his argument. Now under normal conditions this would be a valid point, but these are not normal circumstances.
“Well Colonel, I would normally agree with you, but I have a problem that I cannot, and will not, overlook when it comes to the way you run things and your attitude toward the women under your command.” I reach over to pour myself some more coffee. I let him think about what I have just said and implied. Thanks to Suzume, I know all about his lopsided practices of promotion and reward in the House troops when it comes to men vs. women. “Now I will tell you I have never expected to be rewarded for someone else's work, but I will not have someone else rewarded for the work that I have done, because they are my commanding officer and male. The days of women being treated as inferiors to men are over. Do I make myself clear to everyone here? As for you, Colonel, you may retire with full pay and benefits form House Nakatoma here and now, or you can step down as the commander of the House troops to become an advisor to the new commander who, I believe, you have already met, Maj. Howard. The last option is still open to you, which is your forced removal and disgrace as you are escorted off the compound. The choice is yours to make, but one way or the other you no longer in command of the House troops, do I make myself clear?”
I sat back and watched as he realizes that no matter what, he would no longer command a military unit with the prestige of the Nakatoma House troops. Even if he could get someone to take a chance on him at his age, the prestige wouldn’t be there. Then the true military man that he always was rushed to the surface. He realized the tactical retreat I had offered him in being the advisor for the new commander. Then there was the possibility of being able to finally retire. After all, he has been in service to the house for over 30 years, but there was one thing that was clear as a glass of air and that was that he would no longer be in command of the Nakatoma House troops or its Military Advisor, That time had come and gone. “My Lady Nakatoma if I may I would like to continue to serve on in the position of advisor to your new Commander of the House troops.”
With a look from my great aunt, I give the man his out and let him off the hook. “Mr. Walking Water. You are more than welcome to stay on as an advisor for my Commander of the House troops. I am sure that Maj. Howard will welcome your counsel on the different House units that are currently stationed with the other three High Families here on Hades.” With a wave of my hand for them both to return to their seats I continued with my introductions to the department heads for the household. I highly doubt any of these people will leave the table with the same attitude they had at the beginning of the meal. From the looks on their faces I have gone from some unruly daughter of some minor family member in need of an attitude adjustment, or to be trained as a novice Priestess to the Family’s Goddess, to the last person on the face of the planet they wanted to piss off. That last little bit of information had just been shown to them with unmitigated clarity. At the end of the meal my great aunt gestured for me to follow her as we left the dining room.
Once we were alone in the hallway she giggles like a schoolgirl. “By the Goddess, child you were perfect in there.” For some reason I found her happiness infectious and started to giggle just like her. “My dear I have seen and heard a good many High Family Ladies and Gentlemen give a dressing down to one of their staff in the past. You, for someone who has supposedly never been trained in the running of a household, were absolutely perfect in the way one should behave when dealing with a retainer who has made a mistake. Plus the entire time you gave off the proper appearance of a true born High Lady, both regal and beautiful with just the right amount of arrogance. However, I was not lying when I said that we have a great deal of work to do.” With that she turned and headed down the hallway with me quickly following behind. “This morning I will give you a tour of the estate grounds followed by a light lunch at 1400 o’clock. After that we will spend a few hours going over what will be expected you in your behavior as the Head of House for a High Family. I will do my best to instruct you in all that you will need to know. Now please pay attention to what you’re doing. A true Lady does not just walk like that. You are moving as if you are on a parade ground marching in formation. Here let me show you how.”
She had me stop and watch as she walked a short way down the hall and back, but she didn’t just walk, it was more like she glided across the floor. She moved so smoothly it was as if gravity had no hold on her. As I watched her my mind raced back to when I was a young officer still on active duty, to the first time I saw my beloved Matsue. She had that same graceful style of movement. The pain of her loss came crashing over me like a tsunami and for the first time in years I broke down and cried. Before I knew what was happening, Dai Etsu had me in her arms rocking me.
“Come now child I did not mean to upset you so. You are doing very well in your behavior. All you need is a little polish to be as graceful. You’ll see. Why are you so upset dear?”
Try as I might, all I could get out as an explanation was one word. “Matsue,” before completely losing control. Her response was as quick as it was unexpected. “Leave us. NOW. I would be alone with my niece. I will call when or if I need you.” and with that we were alone, all the servants running from the room. She guided me outside and into the courtyard behind the house. Once there she led me to a bench where she sat holding onto me and rocking me as I let out years of pain and loneliness. When I finally calmed down she looked me in the eyes and said with a great deal of compassion.
“Your love for her was as deep and wide as the oceans. The day she left us the whole of my world dimmed with her passing, but it is bright now that you have come to take her place. Once again I see a bright and beautiful future. Now tell me what was it that I did to bring out such pain please?”
Sniffling, I wipe the tears from my face and I explain to her how, as I watched her show me how I should move when walking, it took me back to when I first laid eyes on her and her sister all those many years ago. Taking a handkerchief from somewhere and wiping at my tears, she continued. “Come little one. I wish to show you something that I think will help you to put all of your pain to rest.” With that we proceeded deeper into the center of the courtyard. Once we reached the center, what I saw there truly helped me put to rest all of the pain I felt at the loss of my wife and daughter.



Chapter 8
Letting off steam
There, in front of me, was all the proof I needed to let me know that my loved ones were not forgotten. Before me was the Nakatoma family shrine and, in a place of greatest honor, were the portraits of my wife and daughter. Turning to me, Dai Etsu said.
“Your loved ones are still here with us, and soon there beside them will be placed the portrait of your grandfather, Commander James Jessie Owens. Yes dear, you too must be honored as a member of this family. Your actions, in the past alone, demand we should place it here, but additionally, the fact you are Matsue's husband and my bother-in-law that would give warrant to your portrait being placed here.” With that she led me away from what would one day become a place of peace and tranquility for me in times of unease.
As we left the courtyard I watched how she moved and tried to copy her movements. I noticed that everything she did seemed to be centered on her moving from the hips and not her shoulders. Each foot was placed one in front of the other, almost as if she was walking on a railing. It was all very graceful and elegant. Not thinking I said.
“She moves as if she’s made of water. She just follows from one point to the other. How in the name of the Goddess does she do that?” Realizing that I had said that loud enough for her to hear, I said. “I meant no disrespect Reverend Mother, I am sorry if I offended you” I quickly apologized. 
Turning with a small smile playing on her lips, she replied, “I thank you for the complement child. It has been a long time since someone has said that I move that gracefully. Now I heard you wondering how I can move as I do. If you truly wish to know I will teach you.” As we continued on the tour of the estate she began to do just that. First she had me place my hands just inside the sleeves of my kimono holding onto my wrists’. Then there was the motion of placing each foot one in front of the other. She instructed me to barely lift my foot off the ground and to slide it forward before setting it down lightly, as if I was walking on rice paper and not wanting to tear it. I was told to roll my hips. It was in this manner that I learned to walk like a woman.
About halfway through we came upon an area that had the look of a military practice range. “Maiha, from what you showed me last night in my chambers I assume that, in that form, you have weapons as well. I would prefer for you not to have them, but I also realize that you are Samurai, and for you to not practice with them is to invite disharmony. So you will come here, to this place, for our house troops to hone your use of those weapons. Please be careful when you do? You are the last of my immediate family and I have buried too many already.”
“Reverend Mother, great aunt Dai Etsu, I give you my word to be as careful and safe as possible. I too do not want to get hurt. I find the experience of pain to be less than pleasurable.” I said, with a small giggle. After our small exchange we continued on.
The next stop was the barracks for the house troops who were single. A beautiful four stories tall building that fit in with the traditionalist style of the compound. “Remember child, you are now the one who must house, feed, clothe, pay and see to the training for the samurai who will defend both our home and the planet. We, as the ruling members of our society, have a duty to the people who support us. To quote an ancient saying, 'Heavy hangs the head on which rests the crown.' Pointing to the barracks, “Your great, great, great, grandfather first built the barracks before us. Since then, each member to claim the title of Head of House has improved upon it.” And with that we moved on.
The next area we came to was for the married members of the house troops. What I saw floored me. Instead of an apartment complex, there were individual houses, each one having its own family dwelling. “I see that you are surprised that we have homes for the families of our married samurai inside of the estate compound. Once again it was one of your ancestors who saw the need for this. Now, when one of the house troopers takes a wife, those who serve with him build their new home here. We only supply the materials. We have found by doing this the new family feels a part of the community.”
From there it was on to the communal areas for the whole household, as well as the living area for the household servants. All the time we were touring the estate compound grounds she would correct me on the way that I walked. The final area of the estate was the Shinto temple that was dedicated to the Goddess Inari Ōkami. Of all the buildings in the compound this one alone should be classified a work of art. Its appearance was as if it just grows out of the ground. The follow of the lines seemed to just defy the hand of man in its construction. To say I was awestruck and speechless would be an understatement of epic proportions.
As I followed my aunt into the temple I became aware of how much her position as the Reverend Mother went against her being able to truly be the Head of House for our family. “Reverend Mother, is there someplace where we may have a few moments to ourselves before going further?”
Nodding her head she led me to a small room off to one side. “What is it you wish to know child?”
“Nakatoma Dai Etsu I, James Jessie Owens, owe you an apology on behalf of my wife and family for placing you in a position that you had no right to be placed in. You are far too kind and caring to be the ruthless and calculating individual that one must be as the Head of House for a High Family. By training and inclination you are a Priestess first and foremost.” Taking a deep breath to calm and center myself I continue. “It should have been Matsue and I as the ones to take over from your father, not you. It was my unjustified hatred of the High Families that took her away from her duty to you and your family. I had felt that you could do the job. They didn’t need us. I was pigheadedly wrong. How can you ever forgive me?”
“Once again James, you have shown to me the depth of your sense of duty, honor and integrity. If there is one thing the High Family has been missing for a long time it is that.” Then, with a look that says more than her words, she continues. “But first forgive yourself for the past. Then be the Head of House that your beloved wife, my sister, would have been with you at her side as her Defender.” With that she leads me back out to the central part of the temple. As we walked though I saw novices moving about, preforming their daily duties, but they did not seem hurried in any way. All of them moved the way my aunt did, as if made of water and gliding on air. 
Here in this temple is where she had learned such grace and ease of movement when she was younger. I can only hope that I can be half as graceful as her or even one of her novices. As we come to the altar I receive a lesson that I was not prepared to receive. My aunt showed me the correct way to pray in a Shinto temple. I had never thought that there could be a right or wrong way to pray. I mean I’ve prayed before in the past, but it was the prayers of a soldier, not of a true follower. As we left I found a feeling of intense peace and calm descend upon me. From where this came I did not know nor did I care. For it has been an extremely long time since I last felt this way.
With the tour of the grounds complete we returned to the main house for a full tour of all the rooms there. We started at the front of the house and worked our way to the back. First was the grand entrance, followed by the receiving room, then the great hall where I would hold court for the territories that were held in trust by the House Nakatoma. It would be here that I would hear disputes, complaints, and hand out judgments for both civil and criminal matters within the borders of those territories. Now I have, as a Commander of Death Dealers, had to hold a courts marshal and send men to prison for breaking the regulations, but this would be totally different. 
“Excuse me Reverend Mother, but will this school I will be attending teach in the laws of the civil justice system?” I quickly asked. At my question my aunt turned to me for a clarifying reason. “I know about the military justice system and where to find answers for what kind of judgment to hand out, but there is a great difference in how civil matters are handled. If I am to be Head of House I want to be a just and fair one.” I said as explanation.
At her smile I can tell I had said something right again in her eyes. “Before I give you the answer to that question I must address something first, child. My title is Reverend Mother, however you do not have to call me that all the of time, only inside the Temple area will I require that of you. That being said, and the fact we are portraying you as my great niece, I would love for you to call me aunt Dai Etsu or auntie. Would you do that for me?” In answer I just walked up and hugged her. 
“Now my dear niece as for your schooling you will not be taking the standard curriculum. I have told them that you have already completed all the requirements to graduate from primary schooling. So what you will be taking are all college level courses, to include civil law, constitutional law, parliamentary procedure and of course social studies in the fields of economics and politics. I know that you have Masters Degrees’ in both science and military history. So I know that you can handle all that they will throw at you.” Then she gave me a sly smile. “Plus when you add in your little friend, the D.D.AI, well let’s just say I have every confidence in your ability to succeed.”
I swear the way that woman’s mind works would give even a trained profiler nightmares in trying to figure out what she’s thinking. Hell, even a trained mind reader would have problems. A corkscrew would get lost with all the twists and turns. For her to put all of this in to motion in just a short amount of time is staggering.
“Dee De, I think we have a security problem. Run a full diagnostic on your systems. I think that we have been hacked, but I don’t know how or when. This is a priority one situation.” 
Running it now hon.
D.D.A.I.: Level 5 Full Diagnostic ……………………
D.D.A.I.: Level 5 Full Diagnostic Complete.
D.D.A.I.: Security breach found classified transition of activation of C.O.B.R.A. o.s.
Oh Bloody Hell! Maiha, your sister-in-law has known about you from the get go. From the moment I came back online and the activation of our secondary reconfiguration protocol, all thanks to the C.O.B.R.A. o.s. I’m sorry hone, you trusted me and I failed you.
“Hey, forget about it. You are not to blame you followed the programing guide lines when those protocols were activated. Right now I need to deal with my ‘aunt’.”
“How did you know about Dee De’s reactivation? The only people who should know are the Military High Command or those who have the need to know. Shit, I didn’t even know that she could be reactivated. I sure as FRACKING Hell didn’t know of the secondary reconfiguration protocols. While the members of the H.C.S at the Space Port, who helped me to set up this cover story know. They all also understand that if they talk about this they end up at the bottom of the darkest well, on the dark side of a moon, in the darkest system, on the farthest backwater part of the Galaxy with only dust bunnies for company. The only persons from the Space Port who know about me and Dee De are Suzume, who owes me for bringing her home with honor, and the commanding officer of my personal bodyguard unit and I know he won’t betray me. The same goes for all the men and women in his command. Each and every one of them owes their lives to Ohmie and Richard for what they did at the Battle of Four Points on Heavens Mist, to save as much of the 3rd ACR. who survived” 
I had to calm down. I need answers that only she can give. I heard someone enter the great hall and looking around, I saw four of the house keeping staff carrying cleaning supplies. “Leave us! And then make sure that no one enters here until I have called for you! Do I make myself clear?” I ordered. The poor girls literally ran for the room. “Now auntie, tell me how it is that you know first about Dee De, and then the fact that she was reactivated. I would know everything.”
My aunt, seeing my anger, bowed to me before replying. “Maiha, please understand. While I will be the first to admit that I have known for a great deal of time about the Death Dealer AIs, and that you were implanted with one. I have known from the time of your courting of Matsue.” The look in her eyes tells me she is not lying.
“Our father was told by the Lord High Marshal at the time, all about you. The reason for this was because of your courtship with Matsue. Ever since then the Head of House, or the acting Head of House for the Nakatoma family, has been aware of all active Death Dealers of Command level or higher, that are within the Death Gates system. This policy is because of the simple fact that we own the manufacturing facility of those very systems and everything that they entail.” With a heavy sigh she finishes. “That includes the C.O.B.R.A. systems as well. I would never have wished for you to go through that experience, even if it meant the destruction of our family. I saw how traumatizing that was to those who went through it. What we did not realize was that over 90% were, at the time, brain dead. That is why no Death Dealer for the last twenty years has had those protocols. It was on my orders that they were removed. Now you know the darkest, most shameful secret of the Nakatoma family. The one that has almost destroyed it.”
“So you’re telling me that once Dee De went back on line, you received a notification from the drop ship I was traveling on while it was still on approach?”  At her nod I continued. “Did you try to manipulate the data that the secondary reconfiguration program gathered for my new form?” When she shook her head no I went on. “So you had no way of knowing how I would turn out, is that correct?” Once again she just nodded yes. “Then can you tell me why the Military High Command would want an active Omega/Assault Class 1, Death Dealer here on Hades?”
“Unfortunately, the answer to that is yes. You see, while I was the acting Head of House I learned all I could about the local Politicians and the Lord High Marshal for this system.” Once again I was marveled by this woman’s ability to adapt to her surroundings and learn to survive. “What I have found has been a constant, but steady corruption of the local Government by certain High Families representatives. The most notable of which is currently sitting in a cell over at the Space Port, under armed guard, whose loyalty to the Security Chief over there is unquestionable.” Looking over at the digital on the far wall I decide to take a break.
“Auntie, it is almost lunch time. Why don’t we continue this in the privacy of either your rooms, or in mine, while we dine?” I asked her, and when she smiled, I could tell that I had done something that would be in line with who I was supposed to be. As we left the great hall I found the house keepers I had chased out earlier waiting patiently off to one side. “You may go in now. I’m sorry for yelling at you earlier, but my aunt and I were having a very private conversation. I did not wish for us to be disturbed. Oh, before you do though, could one of you please have a light lunch delivered to my rooms?”
Once we had retired to my receiving room I noticed that our maids had joined us once again, and it wasn’t just my ladies maids, but hers' as well. This made me a little nervous as I didn’t know what I could or couldn’t say in front of them. Upon seeing my nervousness my aunt put forth an answer to a question that had been bugging me since last night. “Maiha, of all the people in the world you can trust it will be, is, and always shall be your ladies maids and personal secretary. Their first, and foremost duty, is discretion. They will never discus anything that is said in front of them with anyone, except among themselves. For you see they are also the most trusted advisors you have. Now let us eat our lunch before it turns cold.” And with that we sat down at the small table in my room.
As we ate we covered all that I had seen that morning. Everything from the courtyard to the temple. Something I did notice though, was that four of the novices from the temple were acting as aunties’ ladies maids. At my questioning look she explained. “Maiha, as the current Reverend Mother, one of the perks is the attendant novices. As they act as my ladies maids they learn how to be a guiding influence as a Priestess of the temple.”
Once we had finished our meal and the dishes had been removed, we returned to the conversation of the great hall. “Now Maiha, one of the first things that was brought to my attention was the higher costs of shipping that were beginning to be applied to a lot of the off world materials we used in some of our manufacturing facilities. At first it was a gradual increase. It started after the former Lord High Marshall, General Alexzander Willington Stonewall, was appointed to the system with the Vic. Lord High Marshall, Reginald Blackstone, of the Blackstone Royal Family.” As she stopped to take a drink of her tea I can tell that what would follow would upset her a great deal.
“About twelve years ago a consortium of local government officials started to push through a series of laws that would force the local High Families to place over fifty percent of our manufacturing business on the stock market to be traded openly with off world. Much to my shame I did not know how to stop them. Thankfully I was able to stop any of the military manufacturers from being listed. As such we still control those outright.”  I could tell that there was something she was not telling me. So I asked, as politely as possible. Her answer was, “I fear that I only angered those who are trying to gain control of our planet through economic means by buying up control of our business. And in doing so the local parliament and Hall of Lords along with them. As it stands right now I would have to hazard a guess that 45 to 50 percent of both houses of government are in the pockets of off world interests. People who do not have the best interests of our people at heart. These are greed driven, soulless corporations. The biggest of them is the Kiel and Blackstone Shipping Consortium.”
My anger at hearing that name must have shown on my face, for everyone in the room including my aunt, started to back away from me. All I could see was that smug bastard profiting off of the pain and grief he had caused when he got my daughter and her husband killed on Havens Misty. When I looked up at them I realized I was frightening them, so I got up and walked away from them. As I entered the bathroom I was shocked to see that my eye color was now golden with targeting crosshairs overlaying the pupils. Before I can question Dee De I receive a message from the COBRA o.s.
C.O.B.R.A.: Do you wish to initiate planned operations for the termination of selected targets?
“Who are you, and what did you do with Dee De?”
C.O.B.R.A.: I am the computer operated, battlefield, reflex action operating system. The Death Dealer operating system is still online, do you wish to query?
“Yes. Dee De... you ok gal?”
Hey. I’m fine As a matter of fact I think I can work side by side with Charley here.
C.O.B.R.A.: Query, Who is Charley?
That would be you, the cobra o.s., seeing as how you are a male AI system then you get a male name.
“Hold on here. Dee De... Did you just say that the cobra o.s. is an AI system?” 
Yes I did. The reason why I haven’t been able to get a handle on how it operated until just now was the fact that I was treating it as a standard operating system program, not as an AI.
“But how? I would need two different micro-processers or a divided hard drive in my head for that to happen.”
I was programed to perform the necessary modifications to primary host during reboot and repair sequence. At the present time Commander there are a primary and secondary set of micro-processors and hard drives in the cranial cavity of this host.
“So when I had Dee De place you in the sleep mode, what were you really doing?”
Learning.

“Learning what, Charley?”
How to interact with the primary AI, Dee De, and when and where it is appropriate for me to activate my full capabilities.

“Ok so now that you have learned this why are you painting the crosshair on my eyes?”
I did not do that. You were the one to activate the active targeting system Commander.

“WHAT? I did this myself?” 
Yes I believe so. It seems to be in response to your emotional state.

I told you Maiha that you have to keep calm. Every time you come close to losing control of your anger some part of the combat mode activates.

I took a few minutes to calm and then center myself. When I look back into the mirror I see that my eyes are still a golden color, but the targeting crosshairs have gone away. Well, that’s as about as good as I can get right now. I am way too pissed off to look normal. I need to get out and let off some of this steam. I think, between the new hormones, and the fact of all that I have gone through the past 24 hours have begun to catch up to me. I wish I could feel the peace and calm that I felt when we left the temple again, but that won’t happen right now. So I decide to put a quick and dirty plan of action into motion that will let me get back in control. Stepping out into my receiving room I commence to pass out orders.
“Lt Walking Water, you are to go over to the House troop H.Q. and inform Maj Howard to have the A.P.S. range up and running in one quarter of an hour.” I said to her, quickly.
“Hai Commander. What level do you wish for it to be set?”  Was her quick but very military response.
“Start off with infantry suppression and anti-insurgent tactics, then go up from there until they score a killing blow. I will have Dee De relay all system stats to the control tower.” Once she had her instructions the young lady moved out with a purpose. Turning to the others I stated, “I will need your help to disrobe in the next 15 minutes ladies, let’s go. Auntie, if you will please forgive my untimely exit I would greatly appreciate it. I am afraid that I am in need of a rather unusual method to calm down to a point where we may continue this course of education.” My aunt just smiles at me, then stands up and comes over and proceeds to help my maids strip me down to the skin.
Her only comment was, “Go Maiha Mana. Become your name. Become the beauty of the Dancing Waves with Divine Power. Go child, and claim your right as Samurai and Defender for the Nakatoma Family. I will watch you from the control tower. I will face my own demons as you release the power that has come to you as the true Daughter of Death.” Once I am naked she has the rest stay and watch as I call up full combat mode. I feel the rush as all of my combat systems come on line.
                                                        
Welcome home First High Lord Owens what is our mission?
“No mission as of yet Charley. This is a training run to get a feel for all of the upgrades. Additionally, the name is no longer James Jessie Owens. My new name is one that will come to be feared by all those who would misuse the power of their position in society as members of the ruling Families. From this moment forward I am Nakatoma Maiha Mana, Head of House for the Nakatoma Family and it Defender.”
Hai Commander. I will carry your honor on to the battlefield as if I was one of the Dragon sets of old. For you see we have all three blades. The tantō is our anti-personnel lasers in the figures; the wakizashi is our Plasma Laser Rifle in the left arm and finally the katana in the right arm that is the Practical Projection Canon. I am a full set of full tang Dragons.’
“Ok Dee De, you still there, girl?”
Yup, sure am, but right now I’m in the passenger seat. Charley does the driving when in this mode Maiha.

“Very well. Let’s turn it loose and see what we can do, shall we?”
With that, I leaped from my balcony to the courtyard below, leaving my maids and aunt to rush though the house. I get on the house troops TAC frequency to give the Maj. a heads up. ‘Maj. You up and running, or do you need more time?’ I was just hitting my cruising speed of 85 mph.
“Can you give us another 10 minutes? For us to set this up the way you need it is taking longer than expected. Over.” Came the Maj’s’ reply.
“Sure. I’ll lap the compound and come at the range from the 180 position in 17 minutes. How copy? Over.”
“Good. Copy you’ll approach from the 180 in T-17 and counting. I make your speed at just under 85 mph, is that right? Over.”
“That’s a roger on that. My standard cruising speed is 85 mph with a sprint of 110. Pretty cool Huh? Over.”
“Ma’am, I’ve said it before and I’ll say it again. When you go full combat mode you can scare the very Gods themselves. I can't wait to see what you do on the course. Over”
“Well, in T-14 you will. Over.” And with that I started my loop around the estate grounds. I passed everything we did this morning, but this time I got a whole different point of view on everything there. This time I got a full technical readout on all the buildings. I knew their lengths, heights and widths. Material make ups and occupancy ratings. When I passed the temple I received a breakdown on the number of novices, Priests and a listing for the Reverend Mother. As I rounded the guard post at the main gate I got the complete tactical read out for the two A.P.S. units on duty. The two Mustangs were truly eye awakening. I had no idea that those light scout power suits had that much fire power. 
I must have gotten lost in thought, because after I passed them I looked up at the countdown time on my heads up display. It read T-1:45 and counting. I had less than two minutes to hit the range and I was over a mile and a half away. I kicked up my speed to max and keyed up the radio. “Ok Major Howard, this is Nakatoma Maiha Mana in-bound at 109 mph, from 180. Start my attack run in T-1:30. Over.”
“Good. Copy. Happy hunting Short Round!” I don’t know what to say to the call sign, but it won’t be that when I break the start line. I drop my speed to 95 when I realize that I'll cross the line too soon. I hold it that until the countdown reads T-10, 9, 8, 7,6,5,4,3,2,1. At -10 I floored it, crossing the start line at 114 mph. I called out over the radio “Wave Dancer on the attack.”
Charley took that moment to activate the rest of the secondary systems from the reconfiguration. The radar targeting and tracking displayed 14 hard locked infantry targets and had my arms swinging to engage before I knew what was going on. Within mere seconds all 14 were destroyed. The next ones didn’t even get a chance to rise up to their full height before being knocked down by my anti-personnel lasers. This was followed by a group with light armor support. The a.p.s took out the ones on the ground while my P.L.R. destroyed the vehicle.
About half way to the next set a wall about 10ft. high popped up between them and me. I didn’t even slow down as I jumped to the top with a burst from the jump jets. Once I cleared it the t&t locked onto a light armored scout tracked vehicle and an AI controlled medium tank. Charley hit the scout track with the P.L.R. and the tank with the P.P.C. Talk about a shock. I thought that, at most, it would have blistered the paint. The damn thing blows the turret off before coring into the engine compartment, but I didn’t slow down to view my handiwork, I kept moving.
The more targets I destroyed, the madder I had become. All of the pain and misery that had been caused by those greedy bastards, started with the deaths of my family. I no longer wanted justice, I wanted revenge. Once the hatred was out in force there was no stopping me. I just kept going. Tanks, armored personnel carriers, halo attack craft and finally, the big boys came out to play. First came the light weights, the scouts, four up, four down. They didn’t stand a chance. I was too pissed off and, because of this, all of my reflexes were beyond those of a human being. I had become Deaths own Daughter. Nothing less than something that could challenge a God was going to give me pause.
Next up was the middle weights that make up the support element for the infantry teams. They fell just as fast. The heavy weights came next, with their heavier armor and greater fire power. They slowed me down enough that, when the assault class stepped out, it was almost over with. But every last one of them would know they had been in a fight for their lives if it was real.
 When the buzzer sounded for the end of the run, all of my anger had left me. By all rights I would be dead, but the exercise showed me why the High Command and the Space Port Security had taken such care when they found my cocoon. If I had come out of my cocoon with all of the anger I had just shown here. Sweet Mother of God, no wonder they outlaw the secondary configurations. If this was the type of damage one of us can do when we’re pissed off and hurting mad, I wouldn’t want to see one of us without a human mind to control that kind of fire power.
Now, Nakatoma Maiha Mana you see why I have spent so much time learning from the Dee De AI.

“You mean to say that if I had not been able to control myself when I first came out of the cocoon, you would have followed what you had perceived to be my orders that would have been based on my emotions?”
That is exactly what would have happened. That is why there are no others such as myself, who are active. All others had to be destroyed for the greater good of others. It is a sad destiny to be the last of a race.

As I stand there, hot, sweaty, tired and spent, I thought over what my combat AI had just told me. All three of us were the last of a dying breed. There would never again be a secondary configuration Death Dealer. No, if there was ever a need for a weapon system to be banded because of its destructive power this was it. I lost control out there. I let my anger take over. It not I controlled the cobra AI. I used every weapon I had to destroy the targets. Not just to disable or immobilize, but to totally destroy everything in my path. It took a full lance of assault class power suits to finally stop me. Even then, I had destroyed two of those and disabled the third.
Hey kiddo, you alright?

“I don’t know Dee De. I’ve never lost such total control like that. What the hell happened?”
From what I can tell, when we enter into the full blown combat mode the last emotion that you feel is amplified over two to three hundred times. Focusing everything into your combat operations for maximum impact.
“Thank you Dee De, and you as well Charley. For everything the two of you have done. I’ll take back control for now.”
Maiha you have had full control since the exercise ended. I have merely been keeping you from falling over from exhausted. Would like for me take us back to your room’s ma’am?  
“I didn’t realize how tired I was. Yes please, but take it slow. I think a nice slow walk would be good for me.”
As I turned toward the far end of the range from where I began I was amazed at how far I had come. Keying up the radio, I called, “Hey Maj. Do you think you could maybe send the range car for me?”
“Wave Dancer I’ll send you a car if you promise me one thing.”
“I’ll bite. What?”
“That the next time you decide to go for a run on the range, you let me know four days in advance.”
“Would you care to explain why Maj.?”
“Sure Wave Dancer. I’ll need that long to come up with something for you that won’t require me having to send out the entire House Guard troop to stop your ass. That was as terrifying as it was amazing to see. The other night you said that you would be as terrifying as one of the A.P.S. in full combat mode. You were wrong. You put all of us to shame ma’am.”
My mood just dropped another notch. That was not something that I wanted to hear. For my own house troops to be afraid of me was not something I wanted, but of all the things to hear, what came next lifted them to the very heavens. “Matsue always told me that you were far from some ruthless killer and she was right, Maiha. You have become, for all to see, the true blending of a Samurai with his Dragons. You have done nothing to be ashamed of, child. Now when you have returned to your rooms and you have bathed and been appropriately dressed we shall have dinner in the main dining room. So be sure to instruct your maids that dinner is a formal affair. Until then, Dancing Waves of Divine Power.” And with that the radio went silent. 
I saw the range car coming hard and fast over the ground. I could see a young Sergeant behind the wheel. Once he had pulled up beside me and stopped, I quickly climbed in. “Thank you for coming after me Sergeant I wasn’t expecting to be this far out on the range when I finished. I had thought that the farthest I would have been was the infantry engagement zone. You know a quick, but glorious death and all that?”
The young man sat there for a moment before bursting into all out laughter. He was laughing so hard that I thought he was going to hyperventilate. Seeing the concerned look on my face he finally gained some control. 
“Oh ma’am if there is one thing I know now, it's that you definitely have a sense of humor. I take it you have never cut loose like that before, correct ma’am?” At the nod of my head he continues. “I was on Hyfaha during the Colleen Rebellion of a few years ago. We had a Death Dealer by the name Sorenson in charge of the P.D.F. We were being overrun by the Rebel A.P.S. units when he took a direct hit to the chest. We all saw him go down but he went down fighting. Seeing that made us fight back and hold the line, while H.Q. got off its dead ass and found us some reinforcements. About two, to two and a half hours later, the sorry sons of a Horbathainin night crawler struck again. Only this time they came in with a full two companies of AI Assault Tanks. Normally we wouldn’t have had any problems but we had lost close to seventy five percent of the unit in just holding the line the first time. I figured we were done for. 
“Then, out of nowhere, in the middle of the fight, comes this blinding light. Then, all of a sudden there’s someone running amongst those AI Tanks, getting right on top of those fracking monsters. Then blowing them to Hell before moving on to the next one to do the same thing, again and again. I was the only one who got a good look at who it was doing all of this destruction. It was a young girl who could have been Sorenson’s kid sister. That was the first time I ever saw a secondary configuration Death Dealer, and it wasn’t the last. I saw two more, but they just looked like younger versions of themselves.  But back to what I was saying, that Death Dealer gave up his life so we would still be alive today.” 
Looking over, I notice that the Sergeant was actually closer in age to thirty-five than the twenty to twenty five I had originally thought. My shock must have been evident on my face, because the man just laughed. “No ma’am, I’m not saying I would want to fight you secondary’s going full out, with no brakes, but those of you who I have fought alongside of... Well, that there's a horse of a different color.”
From the sound of his voice and the look in his eyes, I could tell he was proud to have served with those Death Dealers. “Thank you Sergeant for telling me what you just did. Do you understand that, as it stands right now, I believe I am the only active Secondary Configuration Death Dealer who is currently active?” I ask the young man sitting next to me.
“Ma’am, I know that you’re the only one to be successfully activated. The others have all died doing their last duty to others. I know that, and so do all of the Hell Hounds. Don’t you worry about your secret getting out from us. We all owe you too much, and have far too much respect for you to ever let that happen.” Came his very intense reply. “Oh, by the way, thanks for winning me the pool. I had fifty credits on you to make it to the assault class A.P.S. lance. Nobody else, except the Maj., thought you would make it past the AI tanks.” I could tell by his grin that he was looking forward to collecting his winnings. I just couldn’t help it I busted out laughing. They were your typical G.I.s, sitting there, placing bets on the range run of a commanding officer as to where they wound up dying in the mock battle. It took me back to my days as a lowly front line troop. Back before all the medals and promotions, back before the loss of so many dear friends and family. God it felt good. And then out of nowhere, that sense of peace and calm I had felt earlier that day, returned. As we pulled up to the range tower I see Maj. Howard standing at the bottom with the company's 1st Sergeant. As I climbed out they both walked over to me. I can see the smiles on their faces, so I must have done well for this type of reaction from them.
“Well ma’am, do you want to know the area scores, or just the total overall score?” was all the 1st Sergeant asked. Thinking about it, I told him the area, followed by the total. I needed to know where I had to improve if I wanted to be able to control all this power. 
“Very well. As far the standard infantry/ jump infantry zones you have a 97.3% kill rate. For the I.F.V. Area, with both mounted troops and dismounted, you have a 94.9% kill rate. For the I.F.V. with AI tank support, 84.7% kill rate and 100% disabled or killed rate for the AI Tanks. For the heavy and assault AI Tanks, 100% full kill rate. Now comes to the fun part. You destroyed two Mustangs, one Fire star and one Wasp. You followed that up with one Stryker, two Kell Hounds and one Wolf Hound. All of this before you got to the heavy A.P.S. class suits. To put it simply, you took out one scout lance and infantry support lance before lining up to have our four Marauders as the main course. Only one had a chance to limp away, the other three are scrap. Following that, it took a Rifleman, a Highlander, a Battle Master and finally a Rhino, to stop you. Of those, only the one hundred ton monster that is the Rhino left the field under its own power. Now if this had not been a holographic battle field, I would have to ramp those numbers up because of the fact you used everything in your arsenal.” The 1st Sergeant looked at me with a lopsided grin. “If I could figure out how to score those sonic blasts of yours, I know the score would be higher, and as far as those nasty little fracking blades of yours go... Well, let’s just say I pity the first young man who so much as looks at you wrong. So, all said ma’am, your overall scoring is off the damn charts. I don’t know where to put you.”
I know I shouldn’t have, but I giggled. I don’t believe this! I just giggled like a school-girl in front of the 1st Sergeant. Oh God, just kill me now. The longer I go, the more girly-girl I get. “Thank you for the complement, Top. Did you get in on the pool?”
“Now little lady, that would not be something a fine upstanding gentleman such as myself would do.” The 1st Sergeant replied with a smile.
“In other words, I started my run-in before you could get the odds on the long money.” I laughed at the hurt look on his face, knowing that it was just as false as my innocent act. “Come on Top. You don’t fool this old grunt. I know for a fact that any Top Sergeant worth his salt goes with the long money, just to teach the youngsters not to gamble.” At which he proceeds to laugh right along with me. But before I could say more, my time to play with the house troops and just be me, came to an end. All three of my maids had arrived with a robe and sandals for me to put on for my return to the house. It would not be proper for the Head of House to be walking around dressed as I was.



Chapter 9
Becoming head of house
So saying good day to them, I deactivate my armor, slip on the robe and put the sandals on. With my maids falling in behind I head back to the house and to the problems that awaited me as the Head of House. To be precise one Vic. Lord High Marshall Reginald Blackstone and those who would be his friend and find profit through treachery against my Family.
Oh yes, with my head clear and my anger held at bay. I now know why my aunt wanted a Death Dealer here as well as the High Command. It was time for justice to return to the Death Gates System and Planet Hades. I only had one problem. How in the name of all that’s holy and damned was I going to get anyone to take me seriously? Especially when I look like a teenage school-girl. On top of that, thanks to the cover story, I can’t use my old rank or status of being the First High Lord of the Death Dealer Divisions for the Delta sector. As far as anyone outside of my aunt, maids, bodyguards and the Military High Command, Death Dealer Commander (R) James J Owens is dead. Died of a heart attack when his drop ship was attacked by pirates at the jump point of the Death gates system over 30 hours ago. 
Well as one of my instructors was fond of saying ‘When you have more than one problem at a time handle them in the order that you can. But first identify them in order’. With that thought firmly in mind I proceeded to do just that. But unlike my aunt I have the help of one, no two, of the most powerful AIs to ever have been develop by the human mind. Time to put the gang to work.
(Giggle) “Attention! All AIs report in for duty.”(Giggle)
 Thank god, child you finally decided to pull that lump of granite you call a mind out of your ass and ask for help?(Dee De)
At your service Commander. Is it time to form a plan of attack? (Charley)
“Hay give me a break here I just now saw I had a problem. Or I should say problems. First we need to list all of our objectives here and then I need a break down on all the obstacles that are either real or perceived”.
I’ll work from the civilian point of view Charley. (Dee De)
Then I shall work backwards form the military point of view (Charley)
“Thank you both once you have everything compiled get together, compare notes then give me a full report.”
With Dee De and Charley working on getting me list of all possible problems I felt confident that I will be able to come up with a plan of action. I must have been more distracted and tired than I thought because when I look up we’re back in my rooms and my maids are helping me into a hot bathtub to wash my rather stinky body. Startled by this fact I almost jump out of my skin.
(Giggle’s) “I see that you decided to rejoin us Lady Maiha. We were afraid that you would have fallen asleep in the tub and drowned had we turned our backs on you.” Said Nia trying very hard to suppress the giggle fit she was having. “You seemed rather distracted for the past half hour or so. Are you ok or are you just over tired from your playing around on the combat range course?”(Giggle’s)
Looking at all of them standing there I can tell that while worried for my well-being they could see I was fine. “I know I’m going to regret this but how did I get back here so quickly?”
“My Lady you sort of walked back with a little help from us. We merely kept you from running into anything that could cause you harm.” Was Kina’s reply. “You seem as if once you left the range to fall asleep while walking. I think that little exercise run of yours took more out of you than you realize.”
“It is as Kina and Nia say, Lady Maiha. But I think I know what it is. I have seen the same thing with my husband Tanaka when he has done extremely well but pushed himself too far.” Gin commented with the same repressed giggles. “You should be proud of what you accomplished today. No one in the past forty five years has ever pushed the combat simulator as hard as you have. Why the House troops thought that you wouldn’t even make it past the first group on infantry.”
“Oh how I loved the look on their faces when 1stLt. Wolf placed that fifty credits bet, in gold no less, for you to not only clear them but reach the AI tanks before having to slow down.” This came from Nia as she scrubbed my back. “I think that young Sergeant from the infantry support lance was the big winner though in the pool for how far she would go.”
“Oh yes quite true. But did you see how all of Lady Maiha’s bodyguards were placing their bets at the far end of the course? It was as if they knew that nothing but the heaviest of forces could stop her? It almost seems as if they were betting on one of the Rhinos or Battle Masters that make up the House troop assault class A.P.s’.” Suzume chimed in with. 
I have to find out how they knew about all this. I mean the betting on the pilots of the A.P.S.s’ was not common knowledge. I was worried that if this got out how it would affect the way the people of the compound would see me. I needed to find out where they were during my run and now. “Excuse me, ladies, but how is it you know all of this? It sounds as if you watched it with the house troops.” At their looks of embarrassment I could tell that they had. If that was the case it would also be inappropriate behavior for the Ladies Maids of a Head of House. Yup black mail material if there ever was and they just handed it to me. Could it be any more perfect?
It was Suzume who answered for them. “Lady Maiha it was my idea to go over to the observation room that the House troops use when they have their practice runs. I thought that it would be a good idea for your maids to see what you can do in your Yokia form.”
“What? Wait. What do you mean by my Yokia form?” I asked quickly.
“Oh. Well when you first engaged your armor here in your rooms none of the others had ever seen you in your combat mode till then. When you just flew off the balcony like you did, they all thought that you looked like one of the mythical Yokia from out of the past.” Suzume was looking at me like it should have been obvious to me. How I would appear as a demon from out of some faraway legend come to life. Now that I think about it I kind of did. At my nod she continued. “So after you left I talked the House troops into allowing them to watch from their observation / training room for the range course.” The smile that played at the corners of her mouth was threatening to break lose into full blown laughter. Oh yes I am going to have to keep an eye on my personal secretary. That girl will be the one to get my little ass in trouble in a big way then happily watch as I literally blow things into little bitty pieces. “As we watched your run through it became every apparent that you have a great deal of fire power at your disposal. Fire power that you control in the way that a Samurai wields his swords.”
Looking at Suzume I could tell that there was something she wasn’t telling me. And I think I know what it is. So instead of avoiding it I went straight for the point. “So tell me how much did you lose young lady? Am I going to have to cover your losses? Come on Suzume you can tell me. After all you are my personal secretary after all. I can’t have you being in debt to the bodyguards now can I?”
The look on her face was one of great amusement. For some reason I think I might have it wrong on her owing the guards but the other way around. “Uh my Lady it is they who owe her. Not her owing them.” said Nia. 
Looking over at the rest of them all they did was nod their heads to support this fact. “How bad did you fleece the House troops and bodyguards Suzume?”
“Let me just say that for the next month I will not have to pay for my alcohol or meals out on the town.” She was smiling as she answered me.
Maiha I just got the full score posting from our run. I know that as a Death Dealer we should have posted decently on the infantry portions. But we blow past all of that and landed in the A.P.S. score charts. (Dee De)
Yes we placed quite high even for being an older model. (Charley)
Just what the HELL do you mean by calling us an ‘older model’ there buddy? (Dee De)
Exactly that Dee De. We are one of the first D.D.AIs to have the secondary configuration protocols. As such we didn’t have the modifications that the later units had. I have researched this and found that the ones who came after us had far more destructive capabilities. (Charley)
“All right everyone calm down here. Dee De let’s not get our nose out of joint by the fact that there was units that came after us who were faster stronger and better armed. Charley no more comments on our age please. Dee De gets upset when she’s called old.”
Hey I don’t need you to stand up for me. (Dee De)
“Back off girlfriend. I was stating facts. Now what was our finial score?”
Between the two portions we have a total of 1397. Well over what anybody could have expected. (Charley)
“My God! That would be better than anything but the assault class A.P.S. scores.”
“Just do me a favor here. The next time I do this stay out of the pool please? By the way what was the reaction of the troops?” I really wanted to know how they felt. I had started to get out of the tub but was pushed back in by Gin and Nia.
“You still stink; we’ll let you know when you’re done Lady Maiha. As to how the House troops reacted. Well let’s just say you have reached legendary heights as the Head of House of our House. After the score was posted with, what did you call it Suzume her call name?”
“Call sign aunt Nia. It’s called a radio call sign.” Suzume supplied.
“Thank you, child. Yes your call sign. Oh by the way it is one of the most beautiful ones on the wall. Wave Dancer such deep meaning is implied with those words. It is your name as well as a description of your power. Any way the Head Cpt. Pointed to it saying ‘That is the sign of a true Samurai. She is either a Yokai or she is Shinigami himesama.’ It would seem you have become more than just a Head of House to faithful Samurai for the Nakatoma House troops. You might want to spend some time later on in the next week over at the House troop quarters.” Said Nia as she continued to scrub me from the top of my head down to my toes. I swear she must have hit every part of me at least twice before she was satisfied that I was clean. “Now you may exit your bath my Lady.” Now last night I figured that I would have one or two maids as the Head of House but three. I just couldn’t get my head around this fact. As I got out of the tub Kina and Gin began to dry me off as Nia walked out to the dressing area. Seeing her do that reminded me that aunt Dai Etsu said dinner was to be formal.
“Oh Nia aunt Dai Etsu said to tell you that dinner was formal tonight. Do you know what that means?” 
“We had guessed that it might be so when the cooks began to make dinner. From what we could see there shall be at least twenty or more people at dinner.” Came the reply form the dressing area. Oh boy!!! Now I’m really worried. Over twenty people for one dinner that is ridiculous.
“By chance did they say who would be joining my aunt and me?”
“No only that they were told by her Ladyship Nakatoma to prepare for large appetites.” Kina said.
“Come with us Lady Maiha. We have to finish getting you ready. We only have an hour and a half. We don’t have time to dally.” states Gin.
And so I let myself be led into the dressing room one time this day. Laid out on the staging self was all my under wear. Everything from panties to corset to tights and socks. Over on a display rake was a kimono of the most beautiful design I had ever seen. Before I could ask any questions my maids began getting me dressed. It wasn’t long before they had me stretched out like a noodle once again. Pulling me between the floor and ceiling so that they can fit me with a damn corset again but I don’t complain this time I just fallow their orders like a good little girl. I learned last night that in here they were the ones in charge.
(Giggle)Oh wow you can teach an old dog new tricks. (Dee De)
“Bite me Dee De you tin plated bitch. This shit hurts. I don’t know if I can even breathe. I swear if I never have to wear one of these confounded contraptions again it’ll be too soon for me. As is I know I’ll be wearing them till I can get out from under aunties loving eyes.”
(giggle)That maybe a long, long, time in coming. (giggle)(Dee De)
“And why is that? In two weeks we’ll be at that boarding school for girls. Once there if I have these three with us I’ll just put my foot down and inform them that in no uncertain terms am I wearing a fracking corset.”
(giggle)I hate to tell you this honey bunny. But I just got through with the schools uniform requirements download. One of them is that all students and faculty most have enough corsets for a twenty seven hour period of wear. In other words one day corset and one sleep corset for everyday of the weak. Like I said earlier get used to it. Your about to be as girly as a girly-girl can get. (giggle)(Dee De)
“I don’t believe this not only do I have to deal with that behavioral mind dump but the school will be out to make me even more of a girl. AAAAWWW SHIT!!!”
Commander I am sorry for the unwanted behavioral modifications that were programed directly into your brain. That part of the reconfigure I had no control over or the population integration program either. Both of those protocols run independent of my own core programming. This was done so that Death Dealers who had gone through the secondary reconfiguration could blend in with the population better. (Charley)
My attention is brought back to what my maids are doing by them lowering me to the floor. They quickly place the nagajuban around me and belt it in place. Then they place a pair of tabi socks on my feet. They give me a moment to collect my thoughts before taking me over to the make-up table and doing my face and hair. Fifteen minutes later we were back in the dressing area to put on the kimono. It is truly beautiful. It was a deep blue back ground with light blue and with flowers printed on it. It had a deep purple Obie sash. Needless to say this was no ordinary kimono. I could tell that this one was special. Once everything was in place I asked them if there was something special about the design of this kimono.
                                    
“Tonight you shall be ordained as the Head of House for our Family Owens-Steel Heart Maiha Mana. Those are your coronation robes. After dinner the Captains of the House troops with their Head Captain, the bodyguard units with their commanders and the entire Temple as well as the house hold staff shall watch as I first give you my blessings as the Reverend Mother. Once I have done this you shall stand before the Seat of Power in the Great Hall and take the oaths of first the Head Captain, to be followed by the individual Squad Captains of the House troops. Once this is done each of the commanders of the bodyguard unit will come forward with their own officers to give you their oaths.” Turning to see my aunt standing in the doorway of the dressing room I saw that she wore a similar kimono. It was then I realized the significance of its coloration and pattern. They were the colors of House Nakatoma and the Nakatoma Head of House. The flower blossoms were the sign of the female line. “I see that you realize the importance of your kimonos’ color and pattern. Very good Maiha very good indeed. Now as I was saying after all of the Samurai have given their oaths you will then take your seat on the Seat of Power and give your oath of service to all those who are present and through them to those who are not. Once that has been done there will be no turning back for you. Because at that point going forward you shall be the one and only Head of House and the Nakatoma Family. Are you sure you want to do this?”
I can tell this is a test of my resolve. She is giving me the chance to back out without losing face. “Yes auntie I am. You have for too long done that which you were not meant to do. Shall we go to dinner?”  With a gesture of my hand pointing to the door. With a smile and nod of her head she turned and walked to the door leading out of my rooms. As I followed her I notice that my maids didn’t stop me to put on a pair of shoe or sandals. It was then that I realized the only time I was wearing anything like that was when I left the outside of the house. The rest of the time I just went around in stocking feet. It felt strange but good. As we walked down the hallway I notice that the housekeeping staff was hard at work in the Great Hall. As we entered the dining room we greeted by the entire chain of command for the military members of the house hold. Maj. Howard was there with the three Lt.s’ and 1st Sergeant from the Hell Hounds all in full dress Gray’s uniform plus two more Lt.s’ in the dress blues of the infantry. Standing with them was another group of five officers that appeared to be my aunt’s bodyguard by their uniforms. They were black with purple trim. I could tell that these men and women took their position as bodyguards very seriously. But it was the five Captains and sixteen Lt.s’ that caught my undivided attention. I could tell by the uniforms they were wearing that these are the House Troops. Deep blue with purple trim the crest of the Nakatoma Head of House on the left breast. Each of them had a katana and a wakizashi in the obis’ that warped round their waist. In total there was thirty one officers in the room all of who you could tell did not trust the others. This was something I was going to have to deal with and now. Not later when I might have more time. No I cannot have this big a group of the military component of my Household at odds with each other.
With a bow of respect to all those here “Ladies and Gentlemen thank you for joining me for dinner. I see that you are all getting to know each other. My grandfather Commander James J. Owens would have been proud to see how the different units of this House in such a short time have come to trust each other. I mean here are the bodyguards for my great aunt welcoming their counterparts who have just been assigned here for the P.D.F.” smiling I turn to the House troops. “And of course anyone with half a brain could see the loyalty of the house troops by the proud way their officers display the House and Unit crests on their uniforms. I look forward to being able to watch as you train and teach each other your unit tactics and customs.” I know that I just dropped a cat into a dog show but sometimes it is better to stir the pot than let it simmer. I could see that my subtle hint was received loud and clear. They knew I would not tolerate any discourse amongst the House military not now nor in the future. They also knew this was unconditional. I could tell that the standard House troops weren’t too happy about it but I didn’t give a rat’s ass. They either got with the program or they can hand over their resignations. I won’t let a few old guard ass clowns bring down this House’s military anymore. The days of one unit being held above the others were over. Seen a few who didn’t get the hint I decided to spell it out for them all. “Ladies and Gentlemen let me make this very clear for all of you here. I will not tolerate any disharmony or infighting amongst the Military component of this Household. If I hear of anything of that nature happening I will personally kick the ever lovin’ dog shit out of the ones who are causing it. Do I make myself clear? Or do I need to demonstrate my ability to back up my words with actions? Make no mistake here people I can and will follow through.” After my little speech I could see I had reached all of them. But it was the Head Captain for the House troops that answered for them all.
“Lady Nakatoma;
I do not doubt that you will do as you have said. I give you my word that the samurai of the Nakatoma House troops will not be the ones to cause problems. If one of my people does so then I not you shall deal with them.” And with that he bowed first to me then to the commanders of the body guards. I looked over to the two bodyguard units. As one the two commanders returned his bow and then turned to me and bowed again. Both of them said at the same time as if they had rehearsed it to me. “By the Honor of our Blades we will honor your wishes Lady Nakatoma-Steel Heart. The Personal Guards will not cause disharmony.”
“Very well then I will leave it to you, the commanders, to solve any disputes that arise among your troops. Now shall we set down to eat the food is getting cool and I hate cold food.” I smiled and move to the table to where my aunt was standing with what appeared to be a very happy smile on her face.
Once we all had sat down the household maids began to serve us. The conversion during dinner covered every topic one could imagine. From the political doings of the Royal Court and the High Families, to who was dating who in the household, to the announcements of engagements, and even what the halo-vid stars were doing on Earth Prime. I watched as my aunt moved the conversion around the table so that all were included. She talked to the Captains of the House troops, the Majors who commanded our bodyguards, and all of their Lieutenants never missing a one. But the real shocker was how she even included to two 1st Sergeant’s of the bodyguards. I watched as she turned all of these different but yet proud military men and women from a House divided into a solid cohesive unit that anyone would be proud to lead. I have to learn how she did it just by being a charming hostess. We must have sat there eating for almost an hour and a half before she signaled that the meal was at an end. Standing up we made our farewells and told them that we would see them in one hour in the Great Hall.
After returning to the receiving area of my rooms. As I followed my aunt in I saw she had something that she wanted to ask me. I saved her the embarrassment of asking I knew what she wanted to know. “Nakatoma Dai Etsu a little less than two hours ago you asked me if I wanted to do this. I shall not change my mind now or later. I told you that you have been doing for far too long that which you were never meant to do. This is my duty to perform. An ancient philosopher once said ‘Honor is light as a feather. Duty is as heavy as a mountain.’” Pausing for a moment to collect my thoughts I wanted to make sure that she knew that her time of being the acting Head of House was over. That from this moment forward all the problems that went with that position were now mine to deal with and not hers. “Last night you challenged me with the destruction of my wife’s family. I swore to you then I will not be the one to bring that down on what is now My family. So please put your mind at ease. I will tell you this however I will move the very Pillars of Heaven and Hell to save this family if it is the last thing I do in this life. This I so swear on my honor and life.”  After that I just stood there waiting for her answer. I watched as she slowly walked around the room looking at all the little things. As if they could give her some idea of what to say. Finally she stopped by the door to the balcony. 
As see looked out the door she took a deep breath. “Maiha Mana you have once again shown me that it is right and true for you to become the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family. I will have to ask you one more time when we are in front of the Household at your coronation. But that is just a formality as of this moment you are Nakatoma Maiha Mana Head of House for the Nakatoma Family and its Defender. It has been over sixty five years since the last time that both of those titles were held by the same person. Tonight that honor shall fall to you my dear. It will give me great pleasure to hand to you the blades of this family. It is almost time. Let your maids repair your make-up then meet me in the hallway.” And with that she gracefully glided past me exiting my rooms leaving me to the care of my maids. Nia, Gin, and Kina quickly gathered me up and hustled me over to the make-up table to repair the damage done during dinner. Ten minutes later I was leading them out the door and toward the entrance to the Great Hall. When we arrived I found my aunt and her attendant novices waiting for us.
“Maiha, from this point forward until the end of the ceremony you must be on your own. You can only enter the Great Hall by yourself. No one may accompany you. It must be this way as it has been for as long as our family has been on Hades and acted as the ruling High Family. All of the Heads of House have done this. Now, so shall you. I will give you this piece of advice. Show no fear and be true to your inner self. Show those here what I have always seen. Remember you are Death’s Own Daughter. No one else can be.” And with those words she and the novices walk into the Great Hall heading for the far end. Gin Nia and Kina each gave me hug as they passed me heading inside to watch the ceremony. Once I am alone I think about Dai Etsu’s parting words to me. What was she trying to tell me? Then it hit me like a drop ship on a high G entry attack burn. If I was to gain the respect of all those here as the Head of House then they needed to see not Maiha Mana Owen-Steel Hart walking down that isle but the one who was known as Death by both his enemies and friends. The true core of my very being. I needed to show all those here that I truly deserved the title of Head of House. With that thought in mind I took a deep breath; then center myself. Once I had reached that calm place in my mind where I always went when it was a time of action and not words I turned to enter the Great Hall.
As I entered I watched the heads of all those present turn to watch me as I moved down the aisle. I did not glide as had my aunt and her novices did. No I walked with my head high shoulders squared and looking straight ahead. I moved as if ready to strike any that would stand in my way. As I passed each officer of the house troops I looked them in the eye. Every last one turned away before I moved on to the next one. When I got to the Captains I merely glared at them all. You would have thought I walked on their graves from the way they reacted. Next were my aunts bodyguards. Only one held my gaze for more than a moment and he was the Major who commanded them. But it was my own bodyguards who surprised me. As one they bowed as I passed. I knew then and there that if anyone and I do mean anyone challenges my right to the title of Head of House they would have their head ripped off, used as a toilet, and then handed back to them on a platter. I do a quick count of their number. For some reason the number that I came up with doesn’t match the number of pilots for a standard A.P.S. company. I need to talk with Maj. Howard when I get the chance and find out just how big his unit is. Once I have reach the end I can tell that the way I had entered was what my aunt wanted me to do. Despite the serene look of peace I could see a smile playing at the corners of her mouth.
With a slight bow to me my aunt asked me one more time. “Do you Owens-Steel Heart Maiha Mana willingly take up the title of Head of House for the Nakatoma Family? Remember this is your last chance to refuse.”
“Yes. It is my desire to be the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family.”
“Then may the Goddess smile down upon you. May her wisdom come to you in times of need. May her peace fill you when anger fills your heart. May her guidance come to you in times of indecision. Now child of my sisters and husbands lines take your place amongst our ancestors as the rightful heir to the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family.” Next she took a small mortise from a bowl of water that was in one of the novices’ hands and sprinkles me with it.  “Will the Captains of the House troops come forward?” as we waited for them to come forward I notice that only the Head Captain would look at me. It was as if he was expecting something in return for giving me his oath. “Will you now give your oath of office Head Captain Ishii Isao to the new Head of House for my family?”
“I will gladly give it once she has declared who shall be our new Shogun.” He said with arrogance that bordered on outright insult.
“Lady Nakatoma Maiha how do you wish to answer the Head Captain?” was all my aunt said. I could tell that everyone here was waiting for my answer. Personally I was sick and tired of all the Bull Shit. I was going to give everyone here an answer that would get my point across that I would no longer tolerate the constant posturing, back stabbing, and infighting that had been going on. With a speed born from battle on more planets than I care to name I removed his katana from its scabbard and plunged it into his heart. The man was dead before anyone could react. “Hear Me now!! The days of challenging for higher office are over. I and I alone am the Head of House here; do I make myself clear? Or do I have to remove the heads of each and every one of you?” I screamed at the top of my lungs. I waited for a few minutes before turning back to my aunt and giving her a bow of deep respect. “Reverend Mother I beg your forgiveness for what was done here before you and all those here. I should have tried to find a more subtle way of getting my point across. But I am through with all of the game playing. Shall we continue or has my actions disgraced the family too much for me to be the Head of House?”
“No child you have not disgraced your family. The Head Captain was the one to bring dishonor to this day by his actions. He should not have put forth the challenge here in front of all to see if he could not stand behind it with his own blades. Captain Takeda will you challenge as well or do you wish take the oath of office?”
The young Captain of the House troops stepped forward. Bowing to first my aunt and then me “I Captain Takeda Jiro Jun do swear to you Lady Nakatoma Maiha Mana my sword and body in your honor and defense.” After that he stepped back and waved over two of the House troops who standing around the room. “Take this pile of trash out back. Then find his family and tell them he has dishonored them for the last time. Let them see to his funeral. The House troops will not.”
As the troopers were picking up the body of the former Head Captain I stopped them. “If his sons and daughters complain, send them to the Temple to see the Reverend Mother in the morning. As for his wife if she is still living have her come to me in the morning.” And with that I wave to them to continue with the task given to them by the Captain.
My aunt then turned to the rest and asked “Who else will give their oath of office to the Head of House for this House and Family? Or are there more who wish to challenge her right to be Head of House? Speak now for if you do not the next time she will not be alone. Because after this night if you wish to be Head of House through the right of Trial by Combat she will have more than just what you see here. She will have the full power of her grandfather behind her. The power of the man called Death, my own bother-in-law Commander James J. Owens who was my sister’s husband and who would have been the Head of House here before their granddaughter.” She waited a total of ten minutes before continuing. “Let us finish with the oaths shall we?” and with that she waved forward the next Captain of the House troops. One after another they came forward and repeated the same words of office as Cpt. Takeda. After them came their Lieutenants each one was as honorable and sincere as Cpt. Takeda. During their oaths I decided that it would be Takeda who would become the new Commander of the House troops and Cpt. Ojima who would become Head Captain. I would have their Lt.s replace them in their current posts.
Once all of the House troop officers had given their oaths, came my aunts’ bodyguards. Each one bowed first to my aunt then to me. As they gave their oaths I saw how much they respected and loved my aunt. These men and women would give their very lives for first my aunt then for me. Their loyalty will always be to her first. I cannot fault them for they have been at back for over fifty years. First it was their mothers and fathers now they themselves. This unit had deep roots here. By all that is holly no one shall ever replace them. I stop the Commander after he had given his oath of office. “Maj. Fujiyama I know I should have asked earlier at dinner but what is the name of your unit?”
“Why do you ask my Lady Nakatoma? We are simply your aunt’s bodyguards.”
“Because no unit that has shown the dedication of watching one person for more years than I have been alive should be without a name to Honor its dead with. Now please what is the name of your unit?” I asked again.
“We are called the Wolves of the Mountain my Lady.” Was his reply with a great deal of pride.
Turning to my aunt “Reverend Mother before you stand some of the finest Samurai I have ever had the pleasure of meeting. I cannot in good conscience take them away from the duty that they and their families have been dedicated to since before most of them were even born. Let it be known that The Wolves of the Mountains shall from this day forward be the Guardians for your Temple and all those who reside there in. Do you Maj. Fujiyama accept this duty for you and yours?” I can tell that he was not expecting this. To have his whole unit declared Guardians of the Temple was beyond anything he could imagine. But then again to declare an entire military unit as Guardians was unheard of. You could have heard a mouse fart at the back of the Great Hall. It had become that still and quite.
Finally the man stepped up to take my right hand in his “My Lady you have honored me and my troopers with the highest reward anyone could have bestowed. Know this as the Goddess Inari Ōkami is my witness as long as the Wolves hold this duty no harm shall come to those that call it home. If that should happen then it will be our duty to seek out revenge.” And with that he kissed the back of my hand. When he stood up I could see a tear in his eye. I had given them more than just a duty to perform but a cause to defend. I motioned for him to join my aunt. Once he was out of the way it was time for my bodyguards to give their oaths. As one the approached me from where they had been standing.
“Maj. Howard, I do not require of you or your troops to give an oath of office as you are all members of the P.D.F. and were assigned by the O.E.C.H. to be my bodyguards. If you or any of them wish to return to your old command I will not be offended.” I tell them all.
“No offence ma’am but you ain’t getting rid of the Hell Hounds that easy. Before you are the men and women of all five combat lances and the officers of the infantry support teams. Each and every one is here because of your actions yesterday afternoon. For us not to repay the life debt that we owe your mother and father as well as the one owed to your grandfather for clearing our names would be unforgiveable. So, no ma’am, you’re stuck with us come Hell or high water.” He said after his bow to me. He knew that I would give them the chance to leave. I had to do it or I just wouldn’t feel right about myself. “I believe that we were to give you are oaths of office?” at my nod he proceeded. “I Major David Logan Howard pledge my life for your life, my blade is your blade, and my honor is your honor. No one shall bring harm to you or yours before first going through me and mine. I so swear.” Good God! The man went overboard with that oath. If the rest of them follow in the same manner I’ll have a pack of ‘War Dogs’ that once unleashed will rain down death and destruction on who ever pissed them off. I will have to keep them in check at all times. But before I could say anything about the oath my aunt steps forward with a smile on her face and a twinkle of mischief in her eyes I could tell they were up to something.
“Major Howard for one who is not samurai you speak and act as one.” She turned to face the far end of the Great Hall and gestures for a group of men to come up. As they approached I saw that they carried a very large table between them. I couldn’t tell what was on it though. They had covered it with a white cloth that reached to the floor. With a quick yank to remove the cloth my aunt showed everyone there what was on the table. Reaching over she removed a match pair of swords consisting of a wakizashi and katana. “I have taken the liberty to correct this oversight. Your blades Maj.” was all the explanation she placed them in the sash at his waist. “There is one set for each of your bodyguards. Now take their oaths and declare them samurai my niece.” And with that being said all I could do was fallow her instructions. One be one each pilot of an Armor Power Suit came forward and gave their oath of office. Each one saying the same thing as their commander and each one receiving pair of blades and being acknowledged as a samurai.
Finally after what seemed like days but was only a little more than two hours my aunt gestured for me to set in the only chair in the Great Hall. The Seat of Power for the Nakatoma Head of House. This was my last chance to back out. If I took that seat then I was the H.B.I.C. (Head Bitch In Charge). If something went wrong I was the one who the blame would fall on. No one else would be at fault. For me it was time to put up or shut up. Taking a deep, deep breath I turned and took my seat. My aunt walked in front me and asked for the last time if I was sure. At the nod of my head she said “Repeat after me ‘I Nakatoma Maiha Mana swear on my blood, my life, and my honor. I shall protect and defend the people who are beholding to this House and Family and their possessions. I shall not waist the lives of our Military personnel in useless acts of bravado. I shall never seek to be anything other than true to myself and my beliefs. No one shall cross the doors of this our home with anger toward those who live here without first facing me in the field of honor. May the Goddess help me’?” Once she had finished I looked deep into her eyes and repeated back to her every word with all the conviction and determination that I could muster. When I had finished she turned to one of her attendant novices holding out her hands. The young girl bow so deep to her I thought she would bang her head on the floor. As she straightened up I saw in her hands a set of swords. Three in total a full set of Dragons with full tangs’. As my aunt took them from her I watch as she kissed each one to bless them. “It has been over eighty years since the last time the swords of our ancestors last saw the light of day as anything more than decorations. Not since the time of my father has the Head of House and its Defender been one and the same person. Nakatoma Maiha Mana with these blades you also take on the mantel of Head of House. Wear them with honor. Now please stand so I may help you with their placement.”



Chapter 10
Preparing the house foundations
As she placed the swords of her ancestors in the obi at my waist I had an unbelievable flash of insight to what she was doing.
“Dee de please tell me she is not doing what I think she’s doing.”
I don’t know what you think but I know what I think. For the last eighty some years no one from her family has been able to wear the swords of her ancestors. That is until now. Matsue was not a warrior and therefor had no claim to the title of samurai. She as a Priestess has taken a vow against violence of all types. So the only person who can wear those blades and has a right to wear them was Matsue’s husband and their daughter Ohmei. As James J. Owens is dead as well as Ohmei Owens. Well you my dear are the only one left who can hold the bag. After all you are now the Head of House as well as being someone who can hold the title of samurai as well to be a warrior. (Dee De)
“Oh boy I hope I don’t frack up so bad that only my death can appease the gods’”.
Do not worry Maiha, if there is one who can defy the will of the gods it is you. After all your own bodyguards have called you the daughter of Death. (Charley)
“Great just great. Now I’m getting advice from two tin plated pains in the asses.”
Once my aunt had finished with the seating of the swords of her ancestors she gave me a look that said more than any words. What it said was yes in great big all capital letters she knew exactly what she had done. Where I had intended to use a set of my own and not endanger her family’s’ honor she had gone and placed it squarely back into my hands. Very well then if this is how she wants it then that is what she will have.
“Aunt Dai Etsu, I do not feel worthy of the honor you have shown me with these swords, but I will do my best to live up to the expectations of those who have worn them before me.” I bow to her and then turn to face what would now be my responsibility. The people of the House Nakatoma “I stand before you all as the first Head of House, who is also your Defender, is there any who would challenge my claim? Speak now for this is the last time I will ask this of you.” I stand there waiting for the next ten minutes. When no one steps forward I clear my throat “I declare these proceeding closed. I ask but one request of all those gathered here. Allow me the time to fit in and find out what I’m supposed to do here before dropping any life or death emergencies in my lap. Thank you all for coming tonight. Be safe on your return home. Goodnight.”
I lead my aunt and her novices along with Maj. Howard and the rest of the bodyguards out of the Great Hall. As we walked down the hallway toward my rooms all four of my girls step in behind me. I notice that only Maj. Howard was still with us. Once we reached my rooms I told my aunt’s attendants that they would have to wait out in the hallway as I had topics to discuss with the commander of my bodyguard first once he had left then they were more than welcome to rejoin my aunt at her side. I did not give any of them a chance to argue. Once inside I walked over to one of the few chairs in my receiving area and set down. My feet are killing me I knew I should have not put on those god awfully tall geta sandals. Waving for my aunt to join me in the other seat I turn to Maj. Howard and get straight to the point “Maj. Howard when you accepted the assignment to be my personal bodyguards you said that you had called in the rest of the unit for support. At what point in time were you planning on telling me your unit consisted of an A.P.S. Calvary troop with two full armored infantry platoons?”
“Um… Lady Nakatoma I thought that you knew. I mean it was Lt. Walking Water who suggested that I bring in the rest of my Combat Team. When you saw my officers and 1st Sergeant in the hanger last night I thought it was obvious. I had the leaders of all five lances present.” He was looking at me as if I had grown a second head. As if the makeup of an A.P.S. unit was common knowledge. It takes all of my control not to pound him into the floor.
Target lock confirmed. How shall I dispatch the target? (Charley)
“WHAT?? Whoa hold on there. Charley we are not going to dispatch anyone. Got it?”
I knew that commander but I thought you could use the distraction to calm down. (Charley)
“Of all the under handed dirty no good…………”
He got you good honey. Now just calm down and think about it for a second. In today’s military it probably is common knowledge. (Charley)
If the was one thing I didn’t need right now it was those two playing games in my head. So taking a deep breath I turn to my aunt. “Excuse me auntie. But do you know how many pilots are in an A.P.S. unit?” At the shake of her head I turned to my maids. “How about you three do you know?” When they also shook their heads no. I looked to Suzume who only followed suit. As I asked them all in turn the Maj. showed the good grace to not interrupt me. But upon seeing their reactions he must have made the connection and realized his mistake in assuming. “Well Maj I see that it’s not exactly common knowledge. So would you care to enlighten us?”
The man was embarrassed by his mistake. “Yes ma’am. What I brought to House Nakatoma with me is what is known as a Cavalry Combat Team. A CCT consists of one Cavalrytroop of A.P.S. lances and two armored infantry platoons. Now the A.P.s Troop is made of five lances each of four suits. Normally all five lances would be in the same weight class, but as a CCT we get to have one lance in each weight class. So what we have is one lance of scout suits, one infantry support class, one heavyweight class, one assault class, and finally a fire support class. The two infantry platoons each have four squads in IVFs’.” As I sat there and listen to what the Hell Hounds are composed of I feel the blood drain from my face. The amount of fire power at this man's command is ridiculous. I cannot strip the P.D.F. of all that much needed firepower.
“Maj. Howard if your unit has that much firepower you must return to the P.D.F. I will not strip them of what could ever will be a good portion of this planets defense.” I state with all honesty.
The Maj. starts to laugh along with just about everyone else. Turning to look at Suzume “You were right Lt. I’ll pay up on at the next payday.” Looking back at me with a smile on his face “Lady Nakatoma that is not a problem. You see here on Hades that is the standard unit lay out. All A.P.s Cav. Troops are set up as CCTs. The reason why they can do this here is because of all the weapons manufacturing that happens here. So you see you are not hurting the local defenses by having us here.”
“Dee De, Charley can you two access the P.D.F. records and verify that info for me please?”
Working on it now honey. How you doing with the security firewalls Charley? (Dee De)
Need another few seconds. The P.D.F. server is trying to block our access codes. (Charley)
Get a move on it Maiha needs to know if what the Maj. has said jives. (Dee De)
If you will leave me alone I would be done by now. (Charley)
“No fighting, children. I need you two to work together. So play nice.”
Yes mama. They both popped off with.
D.D.A.I.: Planetary Defense Force standard unit make up 
1 Calvary Combat Team consisting of the following
1 Scout A.P.S. lance
1 Infantry A.P.S. support lance
1 Heavy A.P.S. support lance
1 Assault Class A.P.S. lance
1 Fire Support A.P.S. lance
2 Infantry Fighting Vehicle Platoons with 4 squads each 
Each Squad Has Ten Men and Assigned 1 IFV
That’s the standard here kiddo. No wonder why no one has ever been able to take this planet without being have pounded into hammered dog shit. (Dee De)
“No joke. Ok I feel better now about Howard’s troop being here.”
“I take it your AIs just confirmed my statement about the P.D.F. Lady Nakatoma?” asked Maj. Howard.
Nodding my head yes I asked him about the oaths that he and his pilots had given. “To be honest ma’am I had only spoken for myself. The fact that the others followed suit kind of shocked me. I know that I had expected at least for the Infantry Lt.s to want to go back to the P.D.F. I don’t know what changed but I’ll find out for you.”
“No, that’s ok Maj. But there is one thing I do want to ask of you. I know that I had dropped the role of Commander for the House Military in your lap when I removed Col. Walking Water form that posting this morning. What I would like to know is do you think that there will be any more challenges to my authority or yours? I would hate to have to replace more of our core officers.”
“No. I highly doubt that there will be any more challenges like we had earlier. I knew that the former Head Captain wasn’t happy when he was not named to replace Col. Walking Water,but I didn’t think he would go so far as to actually challenge you at yourcoronation a time when you are not allowed to be armed. If I had known, I would have saved you the trouble and removed his head earlier this afternoon.” I could tell that he was pissed over what had happen. I think that he thought it was his fault for not stopping the Head Captain before the ceremony. I decide to put his mind at ease.
“Maj. Howard neither you nor I could have foreseen his actions this evening. Far from it really. I should have put a stop to this bull shitof challenging for higher office this morning, butI failed to see the danger of just removing Col. Walking Water.” I could see he was relieved at not being held responsible,but it would always bother him that he had let someone get that close without at least trying to stop it. “Do not worry Maj. I think my little demonstration got the point across. Well I hope so any way. Now it is getting late.I’ll see you at the morning meeting and breakfast.” 
“Then I bid you and your aunt a goodnight Lady Nakatoma.” And with a bow of respect he turned and left us.
“Maiha I must say that you handled yourself quite well this evening. When the old Head Captain basically demanded that you turn over the control of the House troops to someone else I thought that you would have capitulated. I never even saw you lose your temper. You just snatched his own sword out of its scabbard then planted it in his chest.” I look over at my aunt in shock. For her to condone an act of violence like she just did had unbelievable importance. “You are shocked I see that I a Reverend Mother and a devout pacifist would condone such an act. I know that goes against all that I stand for. While this may be true I am also a Nakatoma first and foremost. For far too long the men in this House’s military have used their positions of protectors to dictate how it was run. Because I was unable to stop them our House and Family has suffered. Now we have a chance to once again rise back to the position we once held both here on Hades and in the Royal Court back on Earth Prime.”
I could see a fire in her eyes that was not there last night. These men had used her vows against her. They had come close to destroying this beautiful woman of peace. But now well now there was a true Head of House that would not stand for having some ass clown trying to push her around by using some bull shit challenge over their right to lead because they were a warrior and she was not. Like being able to fight was the only way to solve a dispute.
“Yes my dear I know I have dropped you into the deep end of the proverbialpool,butthere is no other way. I will do all that I can to help you with the problems that will rise from our family but the one in Parliament. Those you must deal with on your own,I’m afraid.” The look on her face said more than her words. She truly regretted what she had done by basically leaving me to the political wolves of Parliament. I must have started to smile at this. “Maiha, why on earth are you smiling at having to face those treacherous bastards of our planetary legislature?”
I can’thelp it. I finally startto giggle, then chuckle before laughing out right. I’m laughing so hard I start to cry. I couldn’t help it. My aunt has just given me the one thing that I needed to bring down those ass wipes Stonewall, Blackstone, and the Planetary Governor. Away to bring all of their corruption to light. Also the very tool to enforce my will on the ones who would try to destroy our Family. But first I needed someone to act as our House representative. And I have perfect choice right now staring at me as if I’ve lost my mind. Not only willshe be the perfect foil for my revenge, it would also allow me a little pay back for getting me stuck with this mess. Oh yes Lt. Suzume Nanami Walking Water it was time for your comeuppance. Gaining control of myself I look over at Suzume and smile.
“Suzume I hope that you put your time in at High Command learning as much as you could over spying.” At her confused look. I decided to explain. “It is like this Lieutenant. You are now the Parliamentary Representative for House Nakatoma. Your first duty will be to inform them that the old ways are dead and the former Shogunate is disbanded. All and I do mean all decisions from this point forward will be made by the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family. If they have any problems with this then I will be more than happy to discuss it with them face to face. Forthwith, if they want to continue with the old ways I will be more than happy to meet them at their choice of field of Honor to settle it in whatever manner they want. However, remind the over-inflated self-important ass hats if they want to play games with me I will march the entire House compliment straight to their very door.”
The shocked looks on all their faces said all I needed to know. To do what I just threatened would be the same thing to out-n-out revolt. Oh yes I was no longer playing around.
Nakatoma Maiha Mana if you were to do this it would be an open act of war. You do realize this? I only ask because if that is the course of action you wish to fallow we would have a one in four chance of failure. (Charley)
“Charley did you just tell me that if I wanted to form an armed revolt that I stand a better than a seventy five percent chance of succeeding?”
Yes commander that is exactly what I’m telling you. With the current political climate even the civilian populace would rise up under your banner and fallow you if you were to overturn the current political regimen. (Charley)
He’s telling you the truth here kiddo. For the past twenty years while your aunt has tried to protect the populace the Parliament has done nothing but take and take from them. First it was by forcing the selling of fifty percent of the business that have been the sole possession of the family that founded it for over a hundred years. Then theincreased taxes on personal property to force those who
would not let allow their family futures to be placed in the hands of outsiders. If it was not for the fact that the Nakatoma Family held so much political and Military power things would be much, much worse. The fact that your aunt was able to stop the forced public sale of the military manufacturers on the open market off world is a testament to this fact. (Dee De)
“So if I send Suzume to Parliament with my demands I can expect at least some blow back correct?”
Affirmative Commander have you decided on a diplomatic solution over a military one? (Charley)
“Let’s just say that a military solution is not off the table ok? I want a full battle plan laid out before we go that route.”
I will begin to work up a full war plan to include all military options. (Charley)
“Lady Maiha you can’t be serious. If I tell them you are willing to go to war we will have to deal with the entire P.D.F. as well as the House troops of the other Houses on Hades. We just do not have the firepower or troops to handle an all-out war.” Came her very shocked reply. I can tell she’s scared. I mean here I am telling the governing political body that I will blow them into a black-hole if they didn’t pull their collective heads out of their asses.
“I highly doubt that we will have to face off against the P.D.F. as a matter of fact it will be the other Houses who should worry about that. You see we have an ace or two maybe even three up our sleeves. You just deliver my message verbatim. Let me worry about anyone who wants to try me. Now you need to go get packed. Oh and I want you to wear your uniform. I will not have the military secretary for the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family dressed improperly. Make sure you swing by the Quartermasters office and get your new rank as well Captain.” Once again I’ve caught her off guard. Yup, I’m going to enjoy my next little bomb shell. “You also need to find Mr. Walking Water and inform him that you will need his services as advisor in your new roll of House Representative to Parliament.”
“Did you just promote me to Captain, Lady Nakatoma?” was all she asked. It hadn’t even dawned on her yet that I had just given her the entire might of House Nakatoma's military assists plus the P.D.F., to back up her place in Parliament. I think it will hit her around about the first time some High Family ass clown tries to ‘put her in her place’. Oh how I would love to see that, but unfortunately I will be in high school again. Oh well, into every life a little rain most fall and all that b.s.  Looking up at her I nodded my head yes to her question. “My Lady Nakatoma I don’t know how to thank you. I have been trying to get promoted for more than seven years to Captain. I will give you my very best as your Representative. I don’t know why you choose me though, but you’ll get my very best.” And with that she bowed to me and my aunt then exited my room.
Once she was gone I looked over to my aunt. “Auntie would it be improper for me to have only two ladies maids?”
“No, but it would be unheard of. Why do you ask child?” she said looking at me in amusement. I think she knows what I’m about to do. When I looked at Nia all she did was nod her head while smiling.
“Morine Nia Gemma, your family has sacrificed a great deal in your service to this House. I would now ask of you for one more sacrifice but before I do I want you to know you can refuse. Do you understand you don’t have to do this right?” when she nodded her head yes I continued. “You are to go to each of the local yakuza Oban’s where you will broker a peace treaty. Explain to them that you are my voice in all matters concerning yakuza. They can either have me as a friend who will only step-in if their activities cause harm to the populace. If they want me as their enemy remind them of what you said to me earlier. Because know this I will not let anyone hurt the people of this system anymore. Do I make myself clear?”
With a very faint smile playing at the corners of her mouth Nia bowed to me. “It will be my pleasure to pass-on your wishes to the local Oban’s my Lady. Shall I also inform them of the fact that there are three companies of highly trained and dedicated infantry at your disposal with which to enforce your decrees?”
“Do whatever it takes to make them understand that they would rather have me as a friend. I do not wish to fight the whole planet and install a dictatorship, but I will if it is the only way to put an end to the corruption that has reached all levels of society here on Hades.” When she nodded her head in understanding, I continued. “Give them no more than forty eight hours to have a reply. After that, you are to inform the Captains of the situation of where you are then move on to the next. They will deal with those who do not want a peaceful existence by sending them to their ancestors.”
My aunt got my attention by standing up. “Come, it is late my dear. You have set in motion a plan of action that is sure to upset the very foundations of government on this planet and the surrounding system, but you have had a long and trying day. You will need your rest if you are to get anything done tomorrow. Gin, Nia Kina do not let her argue with you as you put her to bed.” With a kiss on top of my head she and her attendants left with a parting goodnight.
“Come Lady Nakatoma it is well and truly past what would be considered a normal bed time for all of us. Let us get you ready for bed and then we will see to ourselves. It is already close to the mid-night hour and you have as of yetnot, gotten used to our twenty eight hour days.” Was all Gin said to me as her and the other two led me into the dressing area. Where they began the quick tasks of changing out my kimono and underwear. When they had me stretched out and the corset off I got a real surprise as instead of letting me down like I thought they would they wrapped an even longer corset around me. 
“Hay wait a minute I am not going to sleep in this thing. Now take it off.” At my command to remove the corset they merely looked at each other then pulled the laces tighter. It was as if they were trying to cut me in half literally.
“Dee De I know that I promised I would fallow their rules when it comes to my appearance but this is ridiculous. Now give me full access to my armor and weapons.”
Not going to happen kiddo you have less than two weeks to get used to wearing a corset for a period of more than five to six hours at a time. Remember at that school they require corsets twenty seven hours of the day. (Charley)
“Charley override her and get me my armor and weapons. Do it now before they kill me with this torture device.”
I am unable to comply Commander as this is not a tactical situation as such I cannot go against my core programing (Charley)
“Just what the Hell do you mean by that?”
In the words of my counterpart “Get used to it” I will not endanger our ability to blend in with our surroundings and place the host in unneeded danger. (Charley)
“So in other words. I have to put up with all the bull shit of being a Lady of Means and all it entails. Right?”
Affirmative. (Charley)
Got it in one kiddo. (Dee De)
After letting me down I stopped them before they could go any farther. “Why in the world am I wearing a corset that runs from the top of my chest down to the middle of my hips when I’m just going to bed?”
It was Gin who answered for them. “Lady Maiha you promised that you would not fight with us about your appearance. You said that you understood that in here WE are the boss. Are you going to fight with us over your sleeping corset now?”
“No I’m not going to fight with you over it. I just want to know why I have to wear one.”
“Oh is that all. I am sorry my Lady we had forgotten that you weren’t raised to be a High Lady. The reason for the sleeping corset is help train your waist to proper size.” It was Kina who answered for them. “You see, whenever you remove your corsets your body wants to revert to its old proportions. Now, with a sleeping corset, all of the work that we did during the day will not be lost. We know that they are not comfortable but please bear with it, the results will be stunning. Also if we can get you use to it before you start school in a few weeks the better off you will be.” And with that they dropped a night gown over my head and led me to my bed. I swear I felt like a little girl as they put me to bed. “Good night, my Lady.” And with that they were gone. As they left they turned out the lights.
As I lay there in the dark I came to a realization. I may have been at one time the most feared and respected of the Death Dealers but all of that was in the past. I was nolonger that individual. I was now a sixteen year old girl who just happened to be the Head of House for the ruling Family of this world. So what if I had over ninety seven years of life experience. I was now seen by the world as a little girl. Who cares if I can destroy three quarters of a Cavalry Combat Team with only the most powerful, heavily armed, and armored Power Suits being able to stop me if even then. I was once again a minor. What did it matter that at one time I commanded thousands of Death Dealers,seven whole Divisions. I had the respect of both my enemies and friends. I told the Heads of State for planetary systems what to do. All of that was gone now. What I did have was all of that experience to draw on. I was not alone in this, but I would be the one out front with the target on her ass. For some strange and uncontrollable reason that excited me to no end. I rolled over and went to sleep.
The next morning………
For some strange reason that pesky fly would not leave me alone. I swat at it again. A few seconds later its back. I swat at it again. For some strange reason this time I heard a giggle. Wait a minute did I just hear a giggle?I swat at the fly again. I hear the giggle again this time, I’m sure of it. That wakes me up faster than anything else. Rolling over I see Gin and Kina both trying for all they are worth to keep from laughing. That’s when I see the feather in Kinas hand. Oh are they going to pay for this. As I start to go after them I found I was hampered by my sleeping corset.
Now I was pissed,which just made things worse. Before I knew what was happening I found myself landing on the floor on my chest. Frack! That hurt! As for my,ever so loyal Ladies Maids,well when they saw me land on my tits they promptly burst out laughing. That did it I was officially pissed off, but before I could engage my armor and burn off the offending clothes both Dee De and Charley blocked my access.
“Damn it you two give me my armor!” I was past pissed. I was royally ticked off.
Sorry but no. Not until you calm down. (Dee De)
Once again I will stand with Dee De on this. You are not in a tactical situation. So no ma’am not until you have control over your emotions. (Charley)
I couldn’t believe it two of the most powerful AIs ever designed that were supposed to be working for me one of which has been with me for over seventy years are treating me
like a spoiled brat.
Then quit acting like one and just go along with the joke you little shit. (Dee De)
I concur as my counterpart would say ‘get it over it’. (Charley)
Taking a deep breath I look up at my maids who are still giggling uncontrollably I realize just how stupid the whole thing is. Once I did I started to first giggle then slowly losing control to the point of outright laughter. I can’t help it I was laughing so hard it started to hurt. When Gin and Kina see that I am in pain from way to much exertion they descend on me like mother hens. “Oh Lady Maiha are you alright?” I could tell they were really worried about me. Once I got control again I nod my head yes. The two of them helped up off the floor. After they had me standing though it was time for payback. Before either of them could stop me I popped them on the rear end bringing out a pair of startled squeaks from the both of them.
“That’ll teach you to tickle my nose in my sleep.” I told them with all the snootiness I could muster.
The looks on their faces showed that I had gotten one up on them. “We shall remember this lesson Lady Maiha. It was well and truly delivered. With striking clarity.” Was all that Kina said in reply to my challenge.
Before she or Gin could say anything “Now ladies let us set some ground rules here before we go any further. Rule one is that there will be no actions taken in the bathroom and dressing room. We don’t need one of us getting hurt. Second all pranks shall only affect us and no one else do we understand each other. Lastly no pranks where it might cause either of us undue embarrassment. Are these terms acceptable ladies?”  They looked at each other smiled then nodded their heads yes.
“Very acceptable Lady Maiha. Now shall we get you ready for your day?” Gin said while leading me to the dressing room to begin my daily routine.
An hour and a half later I was dressed and heading for breakfast. As we walked down the hallway Gin commented on how well I was walking compared to yesterday. “Lady Maiha I must say if I had not seen how you moved yesterday to today I would swear by all the Gods and everything holy that you had to have been raised in the Temples.”
Kina chimed in with “It is as if all the grace of the Reverend Mother and her sister the late Lady Matsue had descended upon you in your sleep.”
It brought me up short. I didn’t even realize I was even moving in such a manner. But to realize that these two women knew my wife shocked me to my core. “Do you mean to tell me that you both knew my grandmother?” I asked trembling.
The look of horror on their faces as they realize what they had just said made me stop. It took all of the restraint I had learned over a lifetime of dealing with the different personalities from different branches of the Militaries across the Galaxy. “Please tell me how did you know her?” I was almost begging for the information.
“Lady Maiha I first meet your grandmother when I was just a girl as you are now. She was my teacher at the Temple along with your great aunt.” Was Kina’s answer.
“I first met your grandmother also as a young girl here at the Temple but I was not a student or a novice. I came here every day to pray for my father and his men as they fought on those faraway battlefields and for their safe return home.” Gin told me.
I had always known that Matsue had been a teacher here on the Family estate but I did not know that it was for the Temple. My God! No wonder Dai Etsu was so mad when I married Matsue. First was the fact that I was the man called Death. Secondly I took her away from the Temple. Dai Etsu’s true home the one she had hoped to share with her sister. Finally there’s the appearance of Matsue giving up her vows of peace for a warrior. To Dai Etsu she had betrayed everything she had stood for. “Ladies thank you for telling more about my grandmother and her time here before she married my grandfather.” With a bow to them I turn and walk as quickly away from them as I can so they don’t see the tears in my eyes. When I enter the dining room for breakfast my aunt can see I’m upset but at the shake of my head she leaves me alone. But I can tell she will bring it up later when we are alone.
This morning we are joined by the department heads for the Household staff. Maj. Howard was there as the new commander for the House troops. As the meal went on I learned more of how the household worked. I was amazed at how each department was dependent on the others. I sat back and watched as each one aired their grievances with the other then work out a way for each to solve their problem and still get something out of it.
The only time that either my aunt or I stepped in was if the two parties could not reach a mutual agreement. But then once we had gotten both parties to explain why a problem should be solved the way that they each wanted and were able to come to the compromise that would work everyone was happy. When the meal was over I asked for the head of engineering to join us for lunch. At his startled look I explained that I wanted to talk to him about building a wall that would enclose the living area of the estate. He said he would be glad to and he would have the preliminary figures for a wall that would match the estate wall in height thickness and that would surround the living area of the estate plus an additional hundred square acres. I thanked him but told him to also include the Temple area as well. With that in mind he left us. Once we were alone we headed out to the courtyard.
“Now child we are alone. No one will interrupt us unless it is a true emergency. What was it that had so unsettled this morning?” she asked with great kindness.
I took a deep breath centered myself to find the calm that I would need for this. Once I had reached it I began to tell her about this morning’s revelations by my maids. “I’m sorry for the heartache that I caused you when I took your sister from this place of great peace and love. I never truly understood what she had given up to be my husband or the mother to my children. I do know that she never wanted Ohmie to join the Military. She had always hoped to return here but she could not as long as she remained married to me. I know she was happy as first my wife but then as a mother. However it was not until this morning that I found out about her time in the Temple. She never told me. Now, now though I understand why you so hated me and our marriage. When I first came here you said that you failed us in your duty as a priestess. Well I failed you as a brother. I did not try to understand what this place and its Temple mean to you. I have never had much use for religions. As a warrior I always believed that I would spend eternity in purgatory for the lives that I took. That was the price I had to pay to protect the ones that I loved and those who couldn’t do that for themselves.” I was fast running out of steam and control. So I paused for a few minutes to regain that which I was close to losing. “Can you ever forgive my own short sightedness’?”
With all the love that one would show a child that has just confessed to doing a great wrong she wrapped her arms around me. “Maiha we were both in the wrong I in my belief and you in yours I know that she taught you the exercises that you use to find your center and calm. You were a man of great honor and integrity. You stand true to the belief that not all problems could be solved through peaceful means. And unfortunately you are right, but you also learn to respect the beliefs of others from her. My sister tried on more than one occasion tried to explain to me how you saw the Universe. She was still a great teacher even after she left us. But it was I who failed to learn. Now that you Maiha have come I have that chance again to learn why a true warrior does what they do and to look beyond just the way that they do it. As I teach you, you shall teach me. Now come child it time for your lessons in the ways of being a lady and Head of House for the Nakatoma Family.” And with that she began to teach me all of the myriad ways in which a young lady of the High Families should behave. We work on all of these little things until time for lunch.
When we broke for lunch our maid’s met us at the door to my aunt’s receiving area where she had lunch waiting for us. When the head engineer arrived to join us he was surprised to be eating in Lady Dai Etsu the Reverend Mothers private quarters. Once lunch was over we discussed the new walls that I wanted erected. When my aunt asked me why I wished to enclose the whole living area plus the Temple compound with such a wall I explained it for her. “As much as I like the wide open feel of the inside of the estate wall being only on the property line I do not like the fact that the entire backside to the living area is so wide open. It is too easy for someone to sneak into this area and cause harm to those who live here. I know for a fact that at least three members of this householdhave been killed by assassins. I know that a wall will not stop them,but it will give the House troops a much smaller area to control and patrol. Making it easier on everybody as well as safer.” Turning back to the engineer “Also sir I want you to sit down with Maj. Fujiyama and design a separate barracks and family area for the Wolves of the Mountains as they are now the Guardians for the Temple. I believe that they should be closer to where they shall perform their duty.”
“Maiha child do you realize that in a matter of days you have found more problems for this Family and put in motion ways for correcting them than the last three Heads of House?” my aunt
said. “You are truly a formidable Head of House. I no longer worry about the safety of our family. The ones I feel sorry for now are those who were ignorant enough to have incurred your wrath and the ones in the future who will try your resolve. I believe that your response shall be truly terrifying in its effectiveness.” I can tell by the fire in her eyes she was happy with me. Oh yes she maybe be a pacifist but she still loved her family and cared for the people that they were responsible for. It was this fact that all of her advisories have exploited and twisted to do what they wanted for their own greed.
For the last twenty years the Parliament and the Hall of Lords for the Death Gates System have been able to push my aunt around in the halls of power. Well no more. As of this morning My Representative should have arrived with a very shrewd and cunning advisor who would make sure she would have whatever Intel was needed to put a stop to the ass clowns. And if that didn’t work there was always the ‘American’ solution.
Commander have you decided on a name for a Military solution for the current political situation? (Charley)
“Yes Charley I have all Military operations shall fall under the title of ‘Operation John Hampton’.”
Commander your sense of history and humor must be without equal. To name an armed revolt for a man almost forgotten to history who was known for his pushy diplomatic solutions but also for his demand for just and fair treatment.(Charley)
Charley believe me our girl has a twisted sense of humor in every way imaginable. (Dee De)
“Bite me Dee De. I only see the funny in all things.”
“Why auntie you say the most flattering things. You’ll give me a swollen head if you keep this up.” I said with a giggle. Oh god that’s it I’ve finally surrendered to my inner girly-girly-girl. 
“Dee De Charley how far has the behavioral programming gone?”
It has reached a one hundred percent integration commander. I’m sorry if this upsets you,but it cannot be helped. Once it began there was no way to stop it. If either I or Dee De had any control over it we might have been able to direct its formation. Unfortunately that program was setup to run independent of either AI systems by its creators. (Charley)
I hate to say this kiddo. But we are now the biggest girly-girl now on Planet Hades. (Dee De)
“Aaaawwww! Shit! I knew I should have done something to put a stop to it before things got out of hand. Oh well nothing to do now but deal with it.”
“Mr. Ito thank you for coming this afternoon. Now I’ll let you get to work on what I have asked of you. If you should run into problems please seek me out.”
“The pleasure is all mine my Lady. You have given me a task that most Household engineers can only dream of. The securing of an entire Household compound. I will give you my fullest in this endeavor.” He told me as he first bowed to me then my aunt. “I wish you good afternoon Ladies” and with that he left.
Turning to my aunt “Well auntie what shall we do for the rest of the day?” I asked. 
“Lessons.” Was all she said.



Chapter 11
Serenity, Embezzlement, arrests and assassinations.
Damn it, when will I learn to keep my mouth shut. “Ah, what shall we be learning this afternoon, auntie?”
The look on her face was as serene as a calm lake in the early morning hours. If I could show that face to the world no one and I mean no one would be able to tell what I was thinking.
“I see that you have grasped the lesson for this afternoon all ready. Very good, child. You have to learn how to conceal your emotions behind a mask of calm that no one can penetrate. For the next few hours I shall endeavor to teach you the ways of this,” she told me as we left her rooms and then the house for the courtyard. As we walked around the courtyard she explained to me the secrets of how to show the world a face of peaceful calm while wanting to tear the head off of some jack hole in desperate need of a lesson in manners. What I didn’t understand was the ‘why’ for needing this. Oh, I could see the advantage in being able to keep my emotions hidden on occasion, but all the time didn’t make any sense. “I see that you are having a hard time at understanding the ‘why’ of this. You see, as the Head of House for our family, all of those around you; those that look to you for guidance only see what you show them. If they see fear they become afraid. If they see anger they do all they can to avoid you. If they see sadness then they want to do all they can to remove that sadness sometimes to their detriment. But if you can show a face of peaceful calm, well then no matter what emotion is driving you at that time it will not affect those around you. They will see a calm and in control person who is their Head of House. You shall find that this ability will be one of your greatest weapons in your vast array of diplomatic tools.” With this explanation firmly in mind I set to my task of learning to show that peaceful calm at all times with a new and greater vigor.
As we worked on my ability to present a face of peaceful calm throughout the afternoon, I found that it was almost impossible to do. Yet it was always so tantalizingly within my reach. Every time I would get close but I would fail at the very last moment. I was getting frustrated and this was affecting how I was feeling. The longer and harder I tried the more upset I became. Just when I was ready to say the Hell with it all, my aunt brought the lesson to a halt. “Come child it is time for dinner. We will pick up where we have stopped in the morning.” As she led the way back to the house I forced myself to calm down. I was not going to show up for a meal pissed off at the world. I had to get control. Once back in the house I left my aunt to go get ready for dinner. When I entered my rooms I went straight for the bathroom. What I saw in the mirror did not make me happy. The cross hairs were painted over my eyes. I will master my emotions. I have to master them. I wasn’t thinking when I slammed my fist into the wall. I heard wood shattering and plaster crumbling. My fist didn’t stop it just kept going until it was on the other side.
Maiha, please! You have to calm down. If you don’t not even Charley will be able to override your combat mode.(Dee De)
Commander! Commander Nakatoma this is not a tactical situation. Please regain control of your emotions.(Charley)
With the two of them yelling at me to calm down I realized just how close I was to losing control. Standing there looking at my fist buried in the wall. All of the frustration of the day came boiling to the surface. The next thing I knew I was crying my eyes out. No that’s not right; I was bawling like a baby. Why couldn’t I get control over my emotions? At one time I was called the coldest son of a bitch alive. Battle hardened troops turned from my gaze. But now I can’t even keep my emotions in check long enough to go one day before coming close to losing control and going on a killing rampage. I don’t know when they got there or how they got me out to my receiving area, but both Gin and Kina were holding me in their arms rocking me till I calmed down. Taking out a handkerchief from somewhere, Kina wiped the tears form my eyes. “Lady Maiha please calm down there is no need to be upset over a little temper tantrum. I’ll have the engineers here in the morning to repair the wall. They have had to deal with worse in the barracks of the signal troops. Now what was it that upset you so?”
How can I tell these two women that I no longer had the control I once had? They can’t know about my past; it’s for their own good. Before I can come up with an excuse though Gin takes that away from me with the truth. “Lady Maiha we both know that at one time you were Commander James Owens; the Lady Dai Etsu’s brother-in-law. Do not worry it was she who told us. When we upset you this morning talking about your wife and didn’t tell us why we asked her. She told us everything about how you came to us. Now please tell us what has upset you like this?”
Sighing I look at the both of them. “Very well then. My aunt was trying to teach me to only show that always peaceful calm appearance of hers and just about every student who ever went to the Temple. But no matter how hard I tried I just couldn’t find that tranquil calm to be able to do it.” I start to shake as I tell them of my failure. Before I know it I’m crying again. “I don’t know what’s wrong with me. I used to be one of the most emotionally controlled people I knew. Now I can’t even remain calm enough to go one day without my combat mode rising to the surface. If I don’t learn control soon someone will get hurt because I lost it.”
The both of them immediately said; for someone of my back ground to be unable to control my emotions was just short of unimaginable. “Lady Maiha, please understand that it took all of us and that includes your beloved wife and her sister more than just one day to master the peaceful calm.” Gin said while rubbing my back. “Why I remember my lessons in that same technique. Your own wife was my teacher. I would look at that serene look on her face and it was all I could do to keep from slapping her.” The thought of my beautiful wife driving someone to the point of violence was beyond anything I could think of. Just the thought of her doing that was so far beyond me that I started to laugh. This had to be a joke; had to be. “You think that I am joking? She could make a monk lose control. I swear to the gods above every time we had that lesson I would try my hardest to find the calm that was deep inside me and every time I failed. It wasn’t until I was ready to quit and walk out did she give me a hint. What she said made no sense to me at first. All she said was ‘Don’t try; just be.’ See what I mean by being infuriating?”
If I had been one of those ancient 2-D cartoons from the middle of the twentieth century I would have a light bulb going off over my head. It was so simple. The answer had been right in front of me all the time. Matsue had been telling me the secret to finding inner peace was to always be true first to one’s self  and then to one’s beliefs and lastly to one’s power. Why didn’t I see it earlier? Every time that I needed to calm down it was her teachings that showed me the way. Why couldn’t I see it earlier?
Because you were looking in the wrong place for the answer that was always right in front of you. You are so used to using a pound of high explosives to remove a problem when a scalpel would work instead.(Dee De)
Commander you think like a military man not like a politician. Your first thought to removing the current government was not a peaceful political take over but by brute military force. While this is possible, it may not be the best way.(Charley)
“Ok you two I get the hint. You don’t have to beat me over the head with it.”
“Thank you ladies, you have given me the answer to my problem. Now I needed to get cleaned up for dinner. Excuse me please.” And with that I got up and went into the bathroom and washed my face and hands. When I came out Kina and Gin helped me to repair my make-up. Once I was done I went to diner. Along the way I looked deep into myself and found what I was looking for all afternoon. Once again I felt that deep sense of calm descend upon me the first time I was leaving the Temple.
It must have shown on my face because I had no sooner entered the dining room than my aunt, a woman I had once distrusted, but now owed so much to said. “I see that Matsu has once again beaten me in showing someone the way of truth. Congratulations child; now you will be able to always find the peaceful calm.” All I could do was nodding my head and take my seat at the table. Nothing needed to be said. After all it was the truth. It was Matsu who had first taught the technic for remaining calm. I just never really understood half of what she taught me. To finally have her teachings explained to me is something that will bring her closer to me. “I take it that she had begun to teach you how to find your center before joining our ancestors. May I ask what else she attempted to teach you?” the smile playing at the corners of her mouth was the indication of her true feelings. No, she wasn’t upset, just surprised.
“She had begun teaching me the ways of your Temple’s philosophy. But I will admit to not understanding a good deal of what she said.” I couldn’t help the little giggle that escaped. For the love of God what I wouldn’t give to be able to find the asshole who thought up that fracking behavioral program. And show my great displeasure. I think I would start with his toes and slowly work my way through each and every joint one at a time by dislocating them. “Forgive me, auntie. It would appear that I’m still finding little pieces of the behavioral programing are causing me problems.”
“Do not worry yourself over the little slips every now and then. They are what remind you that your still human child. But seeing as how they bother you we will work on them together. Now shall we eat?” at my nod the maids began to serve us. We were by ourselves for dinner tonight. It was rather enjoyable. Our conversation covered everything from her time at the Temple with her sister as young novices to the day she became the Reverend Mother. As it was only the two of us I told her of the life Matsu and I had together. How we each took part in Ohmei’s up bring. I even covered the teachings that Matsu had given me all those long years ago. At times we laughed and at others we cried a little. But all in all it was a very enjoyable meal. When we finished we bid each other goodnight and left each other to go our separate ways for the rest of the night.
Once back in my rooms I spent the rest of the evening going over the Household books. What I found did not make me happy. Not by a long shot. What I found was that the books were cooked. Either that or the price of living was through the roof on Hades. I better get with Dee De on this before I jump down the Household managers, I thought.
“Dee De am I missing something here? I know that some of these prices are way too high. I mean if these prices are this high what are the less privileged doing? Going without?”
Give me a minute hon. Ok from what I have been able to gather this is what I have found. The local tax rate is anywhere from forty to sixty percent higher than in other systems. Especially for any item that has been shipped in from off world. But what is even worse, people are paying a ‘Local Business Association’ tax for anything that is grown or made on Hades. That makes the price the same as the imports.(Dee De)
“What the hell? Did you just say that there is a tax on all the locally made or grown food and products to push the price to be equal to the import goods?”
I believe I did. (Dee De)
“Where the hell is all that money going?”
I don’t know but from what I can tell it all goes to a central fund for the promotion of the local manufacturers. It doesn’t make any since. The money goes in but doesn’t come back out except for the occasional pay out to some fund called ‘Greater Planetary Occupation Relief’ which then makes a payment to an organization called ‘Freedom For All’ which in turn makes pays to something called ‘Higher Profits for All Foundation’. But I can’t find anything on any of these organizations. No board of directors or oversight committee, no office headquarters, no property nothing. Like I said, it doesn’t make any since. (Dee De)
“Yes it does. It’s all one great big con. But who is the money going to? Charley’ hack into the Planetary Revenue Office and trace down that is on the receiving end of all those taxes.”
I have already been working on it Commander. I believe that I have found where all those funds have been going. And I highly doubt that you’ll like the answer. (Charley)
“Well don’t keep us in the dark. Which one of our Planetary Government Officials is lining their pockets with the money of our hard working citizens?”
The former High Lord Marshal, his Vic High Lord Marshal, the Planetary Governor, the Secretary General for the Planetary Parliament, its First Speaker, half of the ruling party, the First Lord for the Hall of Lords, and the entire Counsel of Lords for the Hall of Lords. (Charley)
“Sweet mother of god! Can you tell how long this has been going on?”
I got that for you Maiha and if that last bit of information upset you this is going to blow your top. Ever since General Stonewall and Blackstone were posted here nineteen years ago and your buddy Blackstone took his seat in the Hall of Lords as the rep. for the Blackstone and Kiel Families. (Dee De)
“YOU HAVE TO BE KIDDING ME! That son-of-a-Harconain night porter. I will have his balls for breakfast and his ass for dinner. Dee De get me the Provost Marshal at the P.D.F. Head Quarters.”
Give me a minute. (Dee De)
“Get me the Head of Space Port Security Charley I want this to be a conference call.”
Doing it now commander. (Charley)
While I waited for them to make the connections I went over in my head the possible amount of credits that could have been syphoned off by all the parties involved. The number that I came up with was staggering. More than two hundred and seventy billion Gold credits. Almost a full one third of the planetary income for the past seventeen years. If those greedy sons-of-bitches had managed to get the military manufacturers placed on the open market like the rest of the planets manufacturing base it would have been closer to two thirds. Oh shit! I sent Suzume into that snake pit with only her father for backup. “Kina I need you in here right now with Gin please.” I yelled out.
While I was waiting for them I began to write out orders for Maj. Howard. I knew I could just send him the orders over the house net but I didn’t trust that it hadn’t been hacked. Or that someone wouldn’t sell off the info in this order to one of the opposition. If I was right even though we were paying top dollar to the House troops and the Household staff they were still squeaking by.
“You called for us, my Lady?” asked Kina.
“Yes. I know it is late but I need you the two of you to carry a message to Maj. Howard for me. Please don’t argue with me. I don’t want the two of you going over there by yourselves. I have a feeling that at least one or more may be in the employ of one of my enemies if they were to see the two of you by your selves in that area it will raise suspicion. Ladies Maids just don’t enter a military compound by themselves. Now here you go and be careful.” Was all I told them before I sent them on their way.
Commander: I have the Space port head of security online (Charley)
And have the Provost Marshal. (Dee De)
“Thank you.”
“Gentlemen I am sorry for the late hour of this call. But the reason for it is rather important. You see some information regarding a very sophisticated form of embezzlement has come into my possession. I will be sending the two of you the file; once you have it down loaded and then printed out as a hard copy.” I told them.
“How does this involve the Military ma’am?” asked the P.M.
“It’s involves the former High Lord Marshals for this system. It would appear that they have been receiving pay offs from certain members of the Civilian Parliament.”
“What may I do for you, Lady Nakatoma?” asked Plaint.
“Chief, I need you to stop any and all members of the local government from leaving the planet and there for the system. Can you do that or will you need help from Col. Campbell over in Space Command?” I told him.
“I got it taken care of Lady Nakatoma.” Was all he said. Then he signed off.
“Lady Nakatoma, you have leveled some rather steep charges against the members of Parliament, Hall of Lords and the Governor as well. Do you have any idea of what this could do to the Hades government?” asked the P.M.
I was beginning to doubt his loyalty to the P.D.F. so I decided to be up front with him. “Yes I do, sir. I believe that with the arrests of the corrupt individuals who are raping this planet the people who live here will have a better life. Without having to give up more than fifty percent of their income for taxes. Now are you going to be part of the solution or part of the problem? I hope the former but if it the latter I will have no qualms about having you arrested for mutiny. Do I make myself clear sir?”
“By what authority do you have the right to have me arrested little girl? From what I understand you have not been appointed as Head of House or even graduated from high school yet?” came his rather snide reply.
That was it; I had had enough. It was time to put this ass hat in his place. “You want to know by what authority very well then. By High Command order 801b, sub section 5, as pursuant to combat personnel in the field under unusual circumstances, and as the recently appointed Head of House for the Nakatoma Family by First Lady Nakatoma Dai Etsu I am assuming command. Authorization Delta 7219, Beta 6 Code word Hell Fire. Understand you self-righteous ass hat. If I have to I will relieve the enter P.D.F. High command and have each and every one of them along with you in irons before sunrise. Do I make myself clear? I will cut out the corruption in this system it is the last thing I do. Now fallow your orders Col.” I know it is a gamble to try using my old codes. But I have to get this guy either on my side or out of the way.
A few seconds later he came back to me. “Lady Nakatoma, please forgive me. I had no idea that you were a First Lord of the Death Dealers or that you had been appointed to the Head of House for your family. Of course I will give you my full cooperation in this matter. What do you need me and my command to do?”
That was more like it. It also seems that my rank as a First High Lord has been given to my ‘granddaughter’. I think the High Command on Earth Prime is going to back any play I make in this system. It also tells me that they know something is up in this area as well. What I don’t know. But I will find out. But first I had to get the political situation under control and returned to the people of this system. Start by arresting the corrupt members of the government. “Col. I need you to swear out arrest warrants for the people on that list. Then execute them in the morning. Don’t worry about the Lord high Marshal; I will inform him of what is going on myself.”
“Very well, my Lady I will get on right away. Good night.” And with that he signed off.
Dee De get the Lord High Marshal on the line for me please.”
Working up the connection now. (Dee De)
I know I am pushing the situation but I have to stop those ass hats before they can cover their tracks.
“General, please forgive the late hour. It is unfortunately necessary. I am sending you a file that you should download then print out in a hard copy format. What I have discovered is that the corruption I uncovered with your predecessor goes far beyond just the local H.C.S. and the P.D.F. I have taken steps to have the individuals on that list arrested for treason in the morning.” I waited for his reply. I could hear his printer in the back ground. A few seconds later.
“My Lady Nakatoma, if you have any I repeat any grief or aggravation from my command let me know. For the past four years I have been trying to find a link between the people on this list and the corruption that has run rampant on this planet.” I could hear the excitement in his voice. “To finally be able to put a stop to it has been a goal of mine for a while. When I was promoted to Lord High Marshal one of the first things I did was to run the Back ground checks you had suggested. Because of that there are now nine new members of the ‘Stonewall platoon’ over at the stockade awaiting trial. You will have the full support of this chain-of-command Lady Nakatoma.”
I was a little shocked by the fact he was already investigating the corruption on Hades. “General were you sent here by the High Command on Earth Prime to investigate what was going on here on Hades or the entire system?”
“No ma’am I wasn’t. Hades is to be my retirement posting, but as I traveled around in my duties what I saw sicken me. So I started digging on my own. However I kept hitting road blocks in my investigations. I had just about given up on it. Then two days ago I get handed all the power and authority I needed to tear down those road blocks by rising to Lord High Marshal. All thanks to you.” Boy was he happy. No wonder he came out to the port the other day to thank me personally. I had given him the key to solving half the problems here on Hades. Ok that gets him in my corner. Now to go in for the kill.
“Lord Marshal I have to ask but how do you feel about the High Families here on Hades? What I mean is, are there any besides House Nakatoma that you feel we can trust?”
“That is simple, Lady Nakatoma. The fallowing Families need to go. Blackstone, White, Rossi, Thorn, Thornhill, Stonewall, and Chapel. All of who are on the list as traitors or as their representative.” I hear a heavy sigh on his end. “All of these individuals have at one time or another managed to block my own investigations. The rest of the High Families are trust worthy as far as it goes. However they have been rendered almost powerless in the Hall of Lords as the other seven are either the First Lord for the Hall of Lords, and the entire Counsel of Lords for the Hall of Lords in the Parliament it’s not much there they control the Planetary Governor, the Sectary General for the Planetary Parliament, its First Speaker, and the ruling Party Leader. In other words that whole stinking lot needs to be ripped out like a cancer.”
“Very well then; that is exactly what we will do. Starting tomorrow morning we are taking back the government of this planet and returning it to the people and the High Families who can be trusted to do their duty to the people.” It was getting late so I decided to end the call and go to bed. “Until tomorrow General goodnight.”
“Any time My Lady; any time. Until tomorrow, goodnight.” And he signed off.
Hey kiddo you’re pushing it kind of hard here aren’t you? I mean the way you’re going about this it’s like an assault on the Government and all its branches. You sure this is the rout you want to take? (Dee De)
“No Dee De, I’m not. However it’s too late to stop now. If we do the ones we’re after they will not have a chance to cover-up or get rid of evidence. I have wanted to know why they left my daughter and her husband to die on Havens Mist for over twenty years now. It looks like they did it on purpose so that the strongest House Family would be weakened by infighting. With the ruling Family without representation in either the Hall of Lords or Parliament they had free run in getting what they wanted. Well the Nakatoma Family has a rightful Head of House. I will no longer allow them the chance to bleed this planet dry.”
This will look like a coup you know that, right? I mean you’re using the P.D.F. Provost Marshall and to carry out the arrests of civilian personnel. They might just brand you a revolutionist and demand your own arrest. What will you do if they try that? (Dee De)
“Simple. I will become exactly that. But the difference will be that I will have not only our House troops at my disposal but the P.D.F. as well. Thanks to what the Provost did earlier I now know that my statutes as a Death Dealer are still in effect. This opens up all my options.”
The commander is correct Dee De. I have just finished verifying that the command and authority over ride codes for James Owens now belong to Nakatoma Maiha Mana. I have checked and rechecked but it would seem that the First Lord of the Military has assigned all of those codes to you. It would seem the High Command on Earth Prime once an active Death Dealer is in system and on planet. (Charley)
“Alright, I’ll buy that, but the 64 credit question is why? Those yahoo’s don’t do anything without a reason. Any guess’s as to why?”
Just one, commander, and I don’t think you’ll like it. (Charley)
“Ok Charley, out with it. What you got?”
You were originally coming here to say good bye to your fallen comrades. When you filed your flight plan back on Apollo they found a chance to place a Death Dealer in system and not go through channels; the very channels that would alert the people who are soon to be arrested. (Charley)
Only one problem with that Charley for James Owens to be able to act as a Death Dealer I would have to be activated. Before our entry to this system I was in a default state of inactive. (Dee De)
All it would take is the override signal to be broadcast at the jump point. Once we crossed into normal space you would have been activated. The prefect plan. The Death Gates system gets a Death Dealer First Lord who can take down the corrupted political system while giving one of the most highly decorated Death Dealer ever a chance to clear the names of his daughter, son-in-law, and the 3rd ACR. All the while getting a little justice and revenge on those responsible for what had happened on Havens Mist. What they had not planned for was the pirate attack. And the secondary reconfiguration protocols being activated. That is why the former High Lord Marshall rushed to clear your arrival. (Charley)
“Ok that sounds reasonable. Do you have any proof, Charley?”
Just a file with the title Operation Lazarus in the H.C. high security files. (Charley)
You did not hack the H.C. security files did you, Charley? (Dee De)
No need to Dee De we have full access to those files and any information in the H.C.S. and P.D.F. servers. (Charley)
When were you going to tell about this little ability? (Dee De)
I had thought that you knew already. It was on the read out of the reconfigure specs. It was listed as COMBAT CONTROL COMMUNICATION CENTER ACCESS LEVEL 5 INTER NET ACCESS UNLIMITED. Did you not realize what that meant? (Charley)
“So that’s what all that was about. I just thought it was a mobile C&C unit so I could help coordinate local combat operations in case of the destruction of the local C&C.”
With that type of access we can override everything done in the past forty years with just a command over ride. We can even change the outcome of the votes cast to pass the laws on this planet. (Dee De)
“We’ll pick this up in the morning. I need some sleep.”
I have just taken off my obi and sandals when Kina and Gin returned. They both quickly gave me a hand getting undressed. Then into a fresh sleeping corset and nightgown. Once I was ready for bed they informed me that Maj. Howard said that it will be done before sunrise. “Thank you ladies for all you’ve done for me this evening. I will see in the morning. Goodnight.”
“Goodnight my Lady.” And they left.
And with that I crawled into bed and went to sleep. And so ended my first full day as the Head of House for the Nakatoma Family. I hope that they all aren’t like this one.
Across town…..
Lt Suzume Walking Water’s Hotel room
“I cannot believe those people won’t even let me in to chambers. I’m her Ladyship’s appointed Representative with all the correct documentation. How can they just stop me from even going in?” I was ranting I know but I was furious. That and afraid of what Lady Maiha will do when she finds out. I know that she wasn’t joking about sending in the A.P.S. House troops or calling down the full might of the P.D.F. in an all-out revolt. What is even more terrifying than that would be her using her ability to call in other Death Dealers and how many she would bring in? That would be something I would not want to see.
“Child, you do know that all you have to do is sit back and wait, right?” asked my father.
“Papa just what in the name of all the gods are you talking about?”
“Oh the impudence of youth. Did you not see the other Representatives in the hall way from the other Families? The ones who are loyal to House Nakatoma. The ones who do all they can to try and stop the others who only support the off world Houses and Families.” He said looking at me. “Did you learn nothing from the members of the High Command Staff about politics child?”
I felt like a fool. Here was my father once again treating me like a child again. However Lady Nakatoma did send him with her to be an advisor in these matters. He had years of experience in these types of matters where I had almost none. “How could you know that? I mean I saw more than one person in the hallway. Besides which if they are being kept out what good will those do us?”
“Child, for once will you use that genius I.Q. for yours and think. Or do I have to break it down for you?” he said with some exasperation. “Well come on, think. Child, you have the ability now just put two and two together and come up with four.”
I still didn’t see what he was seeing. I mean if all those people in the hallway were the Representatives for the other Houses and High Families that would mean only seven Houses and Families were actually represented in the Hall of Lords and in the Parliament chambers. If that was the case then other fourteen Houses and Families have no representation in either branch of government. That would also mean that the Planetary Governor and Lieutenant Governor are in on the corruption of the system. They were the ones who were supposed to keep this from happening. It was like I was hit over the head with a club.
Before I could tell my father what I had come to realize there was a knock at the room door. “Are expecting someone, papa?” when he shook his head no I pulled my sidearm out and flipped off the safety. As I approached the door he did the same. Looking through the peep hole I saw a man in a hotel uniform. “Who is it?”
“Room service. I have the extra towels you order.” The man said through the door.
“We didn’t order any towels. Thank you any way.”
At that point he pulled out a high-powered assault rifle and pointed it at the door. I jumped back to the side before he could fire through. I watched as the door came off its hinges the fool was using high impact-high explosive rounds. Those things were made to take on A.P. Suits. Is he out of his mind using them in a hotel? They will go through the walls and the people on the other side. Not to mention making a mess out of whoever was his target. As I roll out of the way the assassin charges into the room. He sees me before my father which may be why I am still alive. Because  as he turned his weapon on me my father put four rounds from his pistol in the center of his chest and one in the head. Talk about your training taking over that was old school C.Q.C. battle drill. As I watch the assassin fall I saw that he had a backup who was coming through the door aiming at my father. I didn’t think twice. I put two in his chest and two in his head.
When the smoke clear my father looked over at me. “I see I need to take you back to the C.Q.C. course for some refresher training.”
“Hey I dropped my target and I only used four rounds verses the five you used.” I snapped back. Like I need to go through a refresher course on Close Quarters Combat. I did better than he did I only used four rounds to his five.
In response my father just rolled over my target. When I looked down I saw that there were seven bullet holes not the four that I claimed. I dropped the magazine from my weapon. Looking at the round counter on the side showed that I had fired seven times not four. I had lost count of how many times I fired. Oh shit; something like that can get you killed. “You have made your point, papa. I shall join you on the C.Q.C. range when we get back to the House compound.” He merely nods his head.
“Now daughter what does this little episode show us?” he asked.
“That there are certain members of the local government that don’t want either me or House Nakatoma here in the Capitol. Now if they have gone so far as to send assassins after us would they be brazen enough to go after her Ladyship in the Family Compound? Or will they wait for her to come in to town or here to the Capitol? I need answers here, papa. Not more questions.” I said well to be honest I whined.
“Calm yourself child her Ladyship sent you here because she has faith in your abilities. You only lack experience. That is why I am here. Help you and guide you in making your decisions. Right now though we shall have to deal with the L.E.O. units that are most likely already on their way here.” And with that he replaces the spent rounds in his magazine and then placing it back in its holster. I quickly fallowed his example. He always told me to never have a half loaded fire arm. It was either full or empty. This was a practice that had saved his life on more than one occasion not to mention my own.
It that point I realize I need to send a warning to the House troops. If someone tried to kill me here then they could very well be going after her Ladyship next. Reaching for the vid-com I start entering the code for the House troop guard office. As I’m waiting to be put through the L.E.O. units arrived. Oh great just great they’re both 1AD-AM 12s. Not the easiest units to deal with. The damn things are only good for traffic control, minor crime, gang control, and riot control. As they set into the room one of them pointed its auto-gun at me saying. “Citizens you will surrender your fire arms. Failure to comply will result in your immediate termination. You have ten seconds to comply.” Well in the words of a great man ‘It is better to run away and live to fight another day. Than to fight and die today.’ I removed my side arm and placed it on the floor. I watched my father do the same. “Citizens why did your use your fire arms in the hotel?” I did not have time for this. Thankfully my father stepped up to handle the L.E.O. droids. I had more important things to deal with. Like warning the House troops of a possible assassination attempt on her Ladyship.
“Nakatoma House, troop Head Quarters Pvt. James how can I direct your call please?”
“This is Cpt. Suzume Walking Water get me the S.O.G. now.” 
“One moment ma’am while I transfer you.”
In what felt like hours but really only seconds I heard “Sgt. Carter, how can I help you ma’am?”
“Sgt. Carter this is Cpt. Walking Water I have just been attacked at my hotel room by two individuals supporting high-powered assault rifles with high impact-high explosive rounds. I have reason to believe that there may be another team or teams in rout to make an attempt on her Ladyship.”
“Do you have any proof that there will be an attempt on her Ladyship besides a feeling?” he asked me.
I don’t believe this a Sergeant is questioning the orders of a Captain of House Nakatoma. “Excuse me I but did you just question the word and order of a House Captain for House Nakatoma sergeant?”
“Sorry Captain, but you are not one of the House troop Captains. I should know. As I have been a member of the Nakatoma House troops for over fifteen years. Until I receive orders to the contrary. You are not in my chain of command. So goodnight ‘Captain’.” And signed off.
I don’t believe this shit. While I was dealing with the moron S.O.G. my father had straightened out everything with the L.E.O.s. Once the 1AD-AM12s were satisfied that we had not fired first we were allowed to recover our fire arms. I quickly tried to contact the House troop Head Quarters again. However instead of reaching the night time C.Q. desk I get the automated service. I don’t believe this. That Sargent had placed a block on any call from this vid-com. I next tried the bodyguard H.Q.s and got the same response. What the hell? Did he block all access to the House military? Oh God please don’t let that man be working for the enemy. “Papa I need to use your vid-com. This one has had its access to the House com system blocked.”
“What do you mean by blocked? Is it to just one port or all ports, child?” he asked me we headed for his room.
“It was to all ports, papa. Why?”
“Did you talk to an officer for the House troops or a Noncommissioned officer?”
“A Non-com. Again why?”
“Because not all of the House troops are happy with their loss of position as the primary military unit for House Nakatoma. Some of them feel that the old Head Captain should have been elevated to the position of Shogun. A few of them acutely feel that Lady Dai Etsu should not have confirmed Lady Maiha as Head of House or Defender of the Nakatoma Family. A few believe that she should be married off to some Lord ling in one of the other Families to ‘restore’ honor to House Nakatoma.”
“My God! Don’t they realize that trying to force that young lady to do anything will result in bloodshed?”
“In a word. NO. I can tell you this now; not all of the House troops or their Captains are as loyal as they appear.”
“Do you know which ones?”
“Again no. I have no definitive proof. When Lady Dai Etsu was acting Head of House the House troops were in control because of their Head Captain and I had a bargain in place. So long as he did not challenge me as the Military Commander then he could run the House troops as he saw fit. It was my fault that the old head Cpt. challenged for the position of Shogun. I should have warned her Ladyship but I didn’t think that they would go so far as to ignore a command for a House Military Officer. For that I am sorry. Can you forgive me my arrogance?”
“Father I don’t blame you. You have always done what you believe to be in the best interest of the House and Family. No the ones we need to stop are those fools in the House troops that think they can force Lady Maiha to do as they want. Before she truly unleashes her wrath on them all. If that happens she will not leave one of them alive. She has no tolerance for traitors.”
Once we reach his room I went straight to the vi-com. I dialed for the House troop H.Q. and got the automated answer again. Next I tried the H.Q. for the bodyguards and still got the automated answer. Once I tried the House code and had the same response I knew we were too late.
“Oh God, papa, what do we do now?”
“Calm down child and think.” He ordered me. “So you cannot contact the compound by vid-com. What other ways are at our disposal?” 
That’s when it hit me. I was still a member of the P.D.F. I can use the military com-links to get a hold of the Hell Hounds. Keying up the need codes in the vid-com I got through to Maj. Howard. “Maj. Howard thank God I reached you. I believe that there is an attempt on Lady Maiha taking place right now.”
“What?! How can you be sure?”
“I have been unable to reach the compound by vid-com direct. All calls are going to the automated answer on all lines. The only way I could get through to you was on the P.D.F. com-links. You need to send out the troops before they get to her. And do not trust the House troops; when I called earlier the S.O.G. told me he didn’t answer to non-House troop Capt.’s or officers’ then hung-up on me.”
“Copy that Cpt. Walking Water. Deploying the Hell Hounds now. Don’t worry Cpt. We’ll secure the compound or die trying.” And with that he hung up. All I could do now was wait for word to come. I send up a prayer to the Goddess. “Please let them be in time.”
Back at House Nakatoma ……
In Maiha’s bed room
Full combat mode engaged hostel targets located and radar locked. Strength four light infantry armed with Cooller M-12 assault rifles. (Charley)
“What the hell Charley why have you activated our full combat mode?”
Commander there are four men armored with assault rifles just outside of your balcony door. I do not believe that their intentions are peaceful. (Charley)
No shit, buddy. Maiha that is an assassination team out there with you as its target. (Dee De)
Before I can reply the doors to my balcony fly out followed by a hail of bullets.



Chapter 12
Interrogation
I rolled off the bed onto the floor. I kept rolling until I was into the dressing room.
I have analyzed the ammunition they are using commander.
“How is that helpful Charley? Right now I need to keep moving or they will blow the entire house to pieces and me with it.”
Commander you can withstand the impact of those rounds with nominal damage. They are using fifteen millimeter case less high impact-high explosive rounds. They do not have the power to penetrate our armor skin.
“In other words I can move in and not worry about them blowing holes in me.”
Remember we need one of them alive for questioning.
With that in mind I release the C.Q.C. blades in my arms. This is the first time I have engaged them. Looking down at the four eight inch blades protruding from the back of my hands I realize how much of a weapon I really was.
Hay kiddo I have a suggestion. Why not use the sonic disrupters instead of the combat blades? This way you stop them and still get your living prisoner for interrogation. 
“My God! I forgot that I have a non-lethal weapon. Ok Charley how do we engage the sonic disrupters?”
You merely have to be pointed in the general direction and release the burst. Warning though, at this range they may suffer extensive auditory damage.
“Whatever so long as it stops them. Well, here goes nothing.”
Thanks to the t&t radar system I knew exactly where all four of them were. Thankfully they had not continued to spray the room after the first burst. I roll out from behind the wall that separates the dressing room from the bedroom area of my rooms. I come to a kneeling position just as my movement attracts the attention of my four would be assassins. I cut loose with a full blast of sonic waves. I am glad that I was not on the receiving end. It hit the four of them with the force of a heavy transport truck. I’ll need to get the engineers to replace the windows in my room. As well as repair the walls, floor, and everything else that got destroyed in the fight. Looking around I realized that something wasn’t right. If they had killed me then that would put the Head of House back in contention but only until Dai Etsu reclaimed the title. Even though that would not stop what I had already put in motion. However if they could get to her before anything got moving then that was another story.
“Charley give me a full scan of the entire house now.”
What ya thinking hon? (Dee De)
“That they might be making a run at taking House Nakatoma out of the way when it comes to the politics on this planet and in this system.”
Commander I have four heavily armed individuals in the rooms of your aunt. There are another four in the hallway leading to her rooms. I also count eight men outside all armed with Cooller M-12 assault rifles. How should we proceed? (Charley)
“Our first priority is my aunt’s safety, and then the ones outside.”
Maiha have thought to inform the Maj.’s of the situation?
“What are you talking about Dee De?”
The bodyguard’s girl. You have two whole Combat Teams at your disposal. Why aren’t you using them? (Dee De)
“Holy Shit I forgot all about them. Get me in touch with Maj. Howard Dee De.”
One minute. Connecting via the C5 network. Contact with Maj. Howard call sign is Hound one. (Dee De)
“Hound One this is Wave Dancer; how copy? Over.” 
“Wave Dancer this is Hound One; good copy. What is your status? Over.”
“Hound One I have sixteen hostiles in total. Four with the grand Lady. Four in main hallway. Eight outside of main house. Possible hostage situation in grand Lady’s rooms. I have four downed and secured hostiles in my rooms. How copy? Over.”
“Wave Dancer I read four by four hostiles in the main house, and eight on the outside. Hell Hound A.P.S. inbound from the nine, twelve, and three positions with infantry support. How Copy over?”
“Hound One I have you five by five. Out.”
Either the man was a mind reader or someone had tipped him off. I’ll figure that out later, right now I had to save my aunt and I needed a plan to do that. I know that there was at least fifty feet of walls and rooms between my rooms and hers. Not to mention a hallway that has four heavily armed individuals. If I try a run and gun the hostiles in my aunt’s rooms could kill her before I even got close to the door. Wait a minute I don’t have to kill them. My sonic disruptors could knock them out, and not alert the four in my aunt’s rooms. With that in mind I step into the hallway. I found that I was all alone. I needed more Intel.
“Charley where are the four hostiles you said were here?”
Scanning Commander. Have hard target lock on all four. It would appear that they are using optical camouflage. I’ll show you the locations on your heads up display. (Charley)
Once Charley had painted a crosshair on each of the hostels I saw they were grouped to cover the far end of the hallway. They weren’t even looking in my direction. I had total surprise on my side. I decided to teach these four a lesson they would never forget. At half power I sent a sonic blast at them. They all acted as if a ton of bricks had landed on them. I moved up to check their pulses only to find they were all dead.
“What the hell Charley? I only hit them at half power. Why are they dead?”
I am afraid commander that the walls of the hallway magnified the effect of the blast by concentrating the sonic wave. When it reached them it was over fifteen times stronger than anticipated. (Charley)
“Not your fault; I didn’t see this happening either. Oh well no help for it now.”
I headed over to the door to my aunt’s rooms. The heads-up display shows me that my aunt is in the middle of the room sitting in one of the chairs she has in her receiving area. Two of the hostiles are over by the balcony door with the other two near the wall next to the hallway door. I can’t tell which direction their weapons are pointed. Damn it looks like I’ll have to make a hard entry if I want to have any chance of saving her. The only problem is that I need a diversion. Then out of nowhere I hear the report of a one hundred and fifty auto cannon fallowed by the detonation of the impacting rounds from outside. From inside my aunt’s room I hear. “Bloody hell! Are they out of their minds?  They’re using Armored Power Suits on our people outside. Don’t they realize we have the acting Head of House in here? They have to listen to our demands.”
“You are all fools if you believe that. My niece is the Head of House and when she arrives it is you who will be facing off against the Daughter of Death. Not some Political lackey. I tell you this now; if you surrender she may be of a mind to show mercy. If not then I will not stay her hand from killing you.” That was my aunt’s voice. At least I know she is ok for now.
“Don’t you realize, old woman. Your niece is already in the land of the dead. Those shots earlier were from the team sent to kill her. And since the team out in the hallway hasn’t fired a shot that means they were successful. So you see you are now once again the Head of House for your Family.”
I hear a very soft laugh almost a giggle. “You poor fools. You truly have no idea of what your actions have unleashed. I will pray for your souls as they are sent to meet your makers.” I don’t believe my ears; my aunt has just given me the go ahead to kill the four of them. Whatever it was they had done to push her, to this point has to be a whopper. 
Maiha I have just finished with a head count of all of the house hold. (Dee De)
“Dee De, not now. I need to be ready to breach this door on the next volley from those APS unit out there.”
Maiha this is important. (Dee De)
“Ok what is it? What’s so important that you need to interrupt Me.?”
None of your aunts’ attendant novices can be accounted for. (Dee De)
“Charley give a thermal scan of my aunt’s rooms. Now.”
Working on it now……Commander you are not going to like this. I have found that besides your aunt there are four other heat signatures that match those of members of the house hold. (Charley)
“Where are they? They’re not showing up on the radar.”
The radar will only show live targets. The heat signatures are showing signs of cooling. I would hazard to say that they are already dead. (Charley)
Those fracking bastards had killed four teenage girls just for being there with my aunt. From deep within me came the cold rage I had felt as a young man. A rage that had nothing to do with the battle field. No this rage came from watching fanatics kill innocent by-standers. Women, and children, persists and priestess, and any or all noncombatants in a war zone. Only to watch as they were given a trial in a court of law only to have some piece-of-shit lawyer get them off on a technicality. There would be no trial for these animals. They have already been found guilty in a court of justice and been sentenced. The Reverend Mother Dai Etsu had handed out their judgment. Now it was my task to carry out the sentence. This was death. I feel the combat blades extend from the back of my hands. I received a hard lock on all four targets on the heads up display for the anti-personnel lasers. There will be no court of appeals for them. Judgment day has come and Death has sent his Daughter. I rip the door from its hinges as I enter the room. The a.p.l.s fire from my left hand cutting the two behind the door in half. The ones over by the balcony doors don’t even get the chance to even turn before I am between the two of them. I shove my blades deep into their chests. They are dead before they hit the floor. My rage is just barely controlled, but it is controlled. As I turn to look at my aunt what I see sickens me. All four of her novices are lying naked on the floor. Their bodies have been violated in ways that if these children of the Goddess had not died then it would have haunted them to the end of their days. My rage starts to boil again at the fact these animals were already dead. I had killed them too quickly. 
“Child, let the anger go, please. There was nothing you could do to prevent this. The greed and lust for power among people who would commit such acts cannot be stopped by the point of a sword.” I look at her and I see the pain of loss in her eyes for these young girls that were in her heart the closest thing to being her children. I realize then and there I truly was more to her than just the savior for her House and Family. More than just a second chance at what could have been. I was not only a pupil but a daughter to her as well. 
“I am sorry that you had to witness this, mother Dai Etsu. If I could have prevented it I would have done all in my power to do so.” At my calling her mother Dai Etsu I see her start to cry. Yes from now until the day that I die this woman will always be the mother Dai Etsu I never had. As a man my mother died when I was too young to really know her. As I grew older all I ever had was fuzzy images of her. “Yes I called you mother Dai Etsu, Nakatoma Dai Etsu. Over the past few days I have come to love you as one would love one’s mother. I never really knew mine as a child for she had passed away before I had the chance to know her. When your sister came into my life that was one of the many things I was jealous of. You had a family, you had a mother, but it was those very things that drove me to become more than just a Death Dealer. I had to be the best so I could protect those very things. You asked me to be the Head of House for this Family, I now ask you to be my mother and show me the way to being first a young lady and then a woman.” As I stand there covered in the blood of my enemies this quiet, beautiful, yet hard as steel woman broke down into tears. I quickly pull her into my arms saying. “Please forgive me if I have overstepped my bounds. I meant no disrespect or harm by calling you mother Dai Etsu. I will never do so again auntie.”
Looking into my eyes with tears running down her normally peaceful and serene face. “Be at peace my daughter you have not shamed or caused me harm. What you have done though is to give me the one thing I have longed for in my life. A child to call my own as you and Matsue had with Ohmei.” We are interrupted by the sounds of heavy gun fire and the explosion of auto-cannon rounds outside. Grabbing her hand I led her for her rooms back over to mine. Once there I send her to my bathroom away from the gun fire and explosions outside. I look at my four would be assassins they’re still unconscious. Tearing my sheets into strips I tie their hands behind their backs then their feet to their hands. Once that was done I dragged them over to the far wall. As I did this I notice that they were members of the former Head Captain’s unit. Looking closer I found they were also all N.C.O.s, but I couldn’t be sure. My new mother Dai Etsu may know them however. After all she had be the acting Head of House for the last forty years. “Mother Dai Etsu could you come out here for a moment please?”
As she leaves the ‘safety’ of my bathroom and dressing area I notice that once again the look of peaceful calm has come to her face. I swear the more I’m around her the more I want to be like her. However I know that will never be. I surrender too much of my humanity for the power that I now command. I was now more machine than human. I am a cyborg. This is a truth that I cannot escape no matter how hard I try. “What do you wish to know Maiha?” the look on my face must have given me away. “Daughter I know that you would not place me in danger unless it was important. Now how may I help you?”
“Do you know these men, mother Dai Etsu? I think that they are part of the old Head Captain’s personal unit, but I am unsure. Would you know?” I asked of her.
She quickly came over to where I was standing over the tied up men. Looking at them closely, she examined their faces. Slowly a frown crosses her peaceful face that quickly turned the look hard and cold. Standing up slowly I saw something there I had only seen once. It was anger. Anger with terrible consequences. “I know these men my daughter. Much to my shame all four are members of the House troops. And before you ask the ones that were in my rooms were not though. Thank you for what you did in there showing the restraint that you did was a tribute to your family.” I had cut two of them in-half with my lasers and gutted the others with my combat blades. She had called that restraint. My mother Dai Etsu must truly fear me losing control and going all out. Then again so did I. My run on the combat course had showed me that. “Yes, I know you had killed those men but you didn’t relish in their deaths. You did what had to be done. No I do not hold you responsible for what has happened here this night it was not you’re doing. That belongs to someone else and those who would aid them. For now though we will wait for your Hell Hounds to finish with those outside. Then we shall have a word with these dogs as to who their masters are.” With that she turned and retreated to my bathroom to be out of the way.
Left to myself I listened to the fight going on outside. It sounded like there was more than I had originally thought or that Charley had detected. Pulling up my heads up display I activated my active radar scan. What I found stopped me cold there was at least a full company of enemy infantry out there. From the looks of it they had at least light armor for support. How the hell did they get past the Main gate? Pulling up the duty roster of the gate guards for tonight I found that the people manning the gates were from the former Head Captain’s unit. Using the C5 suit I contacted Maj. Howard to pass on this information. He in turn informs me that all but the newest members of that unit were part of the uprising in the House compound. I asked how many had been taken prisoner. His reply was none. They were fighting to the death. The ones not partaking in the uprising had informed both him and the commander for the Wolves of the Mountain that those who were involved had taken a vow to avenge the ‘honor’ of their former Captain by killing the ‘Devil Child’ and returning the last true Nakatoma to the Head of House. After informing me of what was taking place I let him get back to dealing with the traitors. With nothing to do but wait for the fighting to end I sat down in the doorway to my dressing area to protect my adopted mother Dai Etsu.
“Dee De, you there girl friend?”
Just where would I be? I’ll always be here for you to talk to you know that. So what’s bugging you now, kiddo? (Dee De)
“Well I know that I gave up a big chunk of my humanity in the reconfigure. Just how much that may be I don’t know. So my question is am I now more machine than human or is it the other way around?”
I was wondering when this would come up. To be honest with you I really don’t know. That information is not in my data base. You’ll have to ask Charley because all information concerning the secondary reconfigure is locked in his data bases not mine. (Dee De)
“Right, gotcha. Ok, Charley, time for a full discloser on the reconfigure.”
Very well commander. I can now tell you everything about the secondary reconfiguration. (Charley)
“Why couldn’t you tell me before now?”
Part of my programing is to keep all data regarding the secondary reconfiguration from my host until asked. Sorry commander but I can’t go against my base programing. To answer the question as to how much of you is still organic and how much is machine. Well the answer is fifty /fifty. While your arms and legs are now fully bionic the core of your body is still organic your bone structure has been reinforced by a bio-metallic lamellar and  you already know about the dual processors that now reside in you cranium. The power supply for your weapons is a micro-nanotech cold fusion reactor that is next to your bionic heart. The original was too badly damaged to be saved. So during the reconfigure it was replaced. The rest of your organic organs were repaired. So you see you are still very much human. Only half of your body was consigned to the reconfigure for your weapons systems. (Charley)
“Did you say that I have a nuclear Reactor in My Chest?”
No I said that you have a micro-cold fusion reactor in your chest next to your heart (Charley)
“I have a nuclear reactor in my chest. I am a walking nuclear bomb. MY GOD! Whose bright fracking idea was that?”
A cold fusion reactor was the only power source that was found to be able to handle the needed power output for your main weapon systems commander. It was up to director of design Iechego Corrasacky to find the answer for a reliable power supply. (Charley)
“Charley, what happens if the reactor takes a direct hit?”
We detonate with the force of one thousand mega tons. (Charley)
“We What?!”
Just kidding. Nothing like that will happen. If the reactor were to be hit we will simply die just any other person will who has their heart destroyed. And just like all other humans you will grow old and die. You will just have a lot more experience than most. (Charley)
“Thank you, Charley. You have answered a lot of questions for me. How is the fight going out side?”
I can answer that one at least. The bodyguard units and loyal House troops have surrounded the traitors and wrapping things up as we speak. I doubt there will be any prisoners. It seems they have all taken a vow to fight to the death. (Dee De)
“Thank you, guys.”
Don’t worry about it kid. Oh by the way Maj. Fujiyama is on tact21 trying to contact you and Maj. Howard is also trying to contact you he is on tact22. (Dee De)
“Patch them through but conference call them. I need to talk to both at the same time.”
Yes ma’am it’s good to have the old hard ass back in charge for a while. (Dee De)
“Can the horse shit, Dee De. I was never a hard ass with you. Just the people who pissed me off.”
Never mind that connecting you now with Maj’s’ Howard and Fujiyama. (Dee De)
“Maj’s do please forgive my delay in my response to your request for information. How can I help you?”
Maj. Fujiyama was the first to respond. “My Lady I was calling to see if either you or Lady Dai Etsu were in need of assistance? I have rounded up the last of the traitors in my area.”
“Thank you Maj. Fujiyama. At this time neither Lady Dai Etsu nor I are in need of either medical or military assistance. See to your men first. Right now we are holed up in my rooms.” I told them both.
“My Lady Maiha the last of the traitors has been put down. I have sent the loyal House Captains to the barracks to insure all the remaining troops are loyal to you or Lady Dai Etsu. Neither Maj. Fujiyama nor I will stand for this. If there is even one traitor left we will find them.” I could tell by his voice the man was beyond pissed. I have a really bad feeling here. There is something they are not telling me. 
Making a quick decision I order them and all of the House Captains plus all their officers and A.P.S. pilots to meet me and mother Dai Etsu in the great hall in half an hour. With that I signed off and went to get my mother Dai Etsu. “Mother Dai Etsu, it’s all over now. I have asked the commanders of our bodyguards and the remaining House troops to meet within the great hall. Would you care to join me?”
“I think that I would like that my dear. What shall we do with those four?” she said pointing to my would be assassins.
“For now I’ll just drag them out to the great hall to await our officers and their judgment. It is after all a military matter that we are dealing with here. So it should fall to the Military of our House to handle it as they had promised.”
“You are quite right my dear. However don’t you think you should put something on over your armor?”
It wasn’t until then that I realized I was still in full combat mode. I would love to put something more feminine on but right now I do not have time. I do however have time to wash the blood and gore from my armor though. Once done I reach into my dressing area I grab one of the robes I normally only use when in the privacy of my rooms. After putting it on I head over to grab two of the turncoats when there is a knock at my door.  Before I can say anything mother Dai Etsu opens it to allow in the J8. “James you will take these four criminals to the great hall. Once that is done you will find the department heads for housekeeping and engineering and have them join us in the great hall. Do you understand?”
“Deliver criminals to great hall then find department heads. Yes ma’am.”
Looking over at her she holds out her hand to me. “Come along dear let James do his job.” And so taking her hand we left my rooms and head for the great hall. As we walk around the inside of the main house I realize how much damage had been done. I’m not innocent here of wrong doing but at least I tried to keep the collateral damage to a minimum. A half hour after disconnected from my radio conversation with the commanders of the body guard unit they join us in the great hall. With them in front of me I could that something was truly bothering them.
“Alright gentlemen what is it? What aren’t you telling me?” I demanded. I was going to know what has them so upset. “So who is going to tell me?”
“Very well, my Lady. Since I have been here the longest I shall be the one to tell you.” It was Maj. Fujiyama stepping in before Maj. Howard could offer up an explanation. “It would appear that over half of the old Head Captains personal unit participated in the uprising. Only the newest troops stayed out of the fighting. What this means is we no longer have a full battalion under House Nakatoma colors. With the loss of what amounts to three of the four platoons from the Head Captains Company and at least one out of five NCOs for the rest of the battalion it has basically been cut down to the size of a rump battalion or roughly three quarters of its size.”
Oh shit this isn’t good to lose over a quarter of our strength would leave us very vulnerable to attack by the other Houses and cut into the available defenses for the planet. “How bad off are we gentlemen?”
“Not bad at all really, My Lady. You see most of the ones who participated in the revolt would have been retired within the next year or two.” Maj Fujiyama was saying. “We had already had plans in motion for their replacements. We just need to move them forward is all.”
With this revelation I didn’t feel so bad. If it was the only the die hards' from the old guard that had revolted then there just might be hope for us yet. “So what exactly is our tactical situation then?” Looking at Maj. Fujiyama.
However it was Maj. Howard who answered. “As it stands right now, Lady Nakatoma, our troop strength is three full Combat Teams each, constituting of one A.P.S. company with two light armor infantry platoons, with three full heavy armor infantry companies with two full companies of heavy and assault class A.P.S. units and one fire support A.P.S. company.” Wow where did all that fire power come from. I mean that is close to a full brigade of combat troops.
“Excuse me gentlemen but do you mean to tell me that between the two bodyguard units and what is left of the House troops we still have almost a full brigade of combat troops? Because if that is the case I find myself at a loss for words.”
“My Lady Maiha did you not know that the House troops of House Nakatoma were the largest on Hades or in the Death Gates system?” Asked Head Captain Ojima for the House troops. When I nodded yes to her question she quickly gave me a full run down of the House troop strength. “My Lady, the House troops consist or I should say consisted of one Combat Team, four heavy armor infantry companies, two full A.P.S. companies of heavy and assault class A.P.S. units, and the one fire support A.P.S. company.” Once she had finished the new commander of the House troops step forward.
“My Lady, one of the many problems facing the members of the House troops is that we are not treated as regular military but more like mercenaries’.” Cpt. Takeda was saying. “For the time that I gained my rank of Cpt. I have tried to change the way rank was achieved within my own unit. Unfortunately not all of my fellow Capt.’s believed in the new ways. Especially the former Head Captain.”
“Why was that, Cpt. Takeda? I mean if you promote an individual for performing it gives the others the idea that with hard work come rewards; everyone knows this.”
“I can answer that for you my Lady.” It was a very young Cpt. from the House troops who I had only met at my coronation. “My uncle believed that only the strong had the right to lead. I believe it was this belief that made him challenge you for the title of Shogun.” The young lady bowed very deeply to before going on. “I must also beg your forgiveness for what my cousins have done this night.”
“Pardon me, Captain, but what do you mean by that?”
The young lady points to two of the men that had tried to kill me in my sleep. “Those two are the youngest sons of my dead uncle, the former Head Captain. It would give me great pleasure to put them out of their disgrace.” She was already drawing her katana. She stopped at the shake of my head.
“Not yet Captain. They still have information that I need. When I have that then and only then, are they yours, but for now stay your hand. Maj. Howard I notice that one of your infantry officers as well as two of your A.P.S. pilots are missing. You said that you had no casualties. Where are they?” I was worried at not seeing those three members of the Hell Hounds. For them to be absent was not a good sign. I really wanted an answer as to why they weren’t here.
I had expected for Maj. Howard to tell me they were either dead or in hospital. “They should be arriving at Cpt. Walking Waters position as we speak ma’am. It seems that certain members of our local government have tried to have her killed. They failed but I thought it would be best if she had some back up.”
“So how much ‘back up’ did you send?” I said in my sweetest voice. I think it was so sweet, that it got mother Dai Etsu’s undivided attention. As well as everyone else’s. Ah oh. Think they’re catching on to my moods. 
Maj. Howard started to chuckle. “I only sent what I believed to be a proper show of strength my Lady.”
“And just what might that be Maj. Howard? Perhaps a platoon of light armored infantry with A.P.S. support maybe?”
“Only two squads with their normal I.F.V.s and A.P.S. attachments ma’am, I didn’t think you wanted a ‘hammer or gun’ approach. I figure that the young captain will know what to do with them. If she should have need of more I can have the rest enroot to her in a matter of minutes.” Was his smiling reply. The man had to be absolutely crazy to think that an infantry assault team was a mild response to a request for back up in an urban environment. Then again this was the military way of dealing with terrorists. So I really can’t fault him for the actions he took. As a matter of fact I must commend him for his restraint. A normal response would have included a whole infantry platoon with full A.P.S. back up.
“Very well I’ll let Cpt. Walking Water handle the situation on her end as she sees fit. However I believe that the ‘hammer or gun’ approach would be more in keeping with what needs to be done here.” I began to tell my commanders what would be transpiring in the morning. “I believe that by 1000 hours local time over half of the Hall of Lords will be under arrest along with sixty percent of the Parliament, the Planetary Governor, the Lt. Governor and half of the Heads of House for the current High Families on Hades.” I saw smiles form on the faces of over three quarters of my officers. “Yes ladies and gentlemen justice is coming to Hades. We are going to rip the corruption out of our planet’s government. Once we are done the government of this planet along with all its resources shall be returned to the people. So Maj. I believe that the rest of that infantry assault team needs to be dispatched please.”
The look on their faces tells me I have started down the right path. Looking over at mother Dai Etsu I can tell I have done what she had always wished to do. No there is no change to that mask of inner peace on her face I can still tell by the twitch of her mouth. 
“For now though what we need is intelligence, like who paid for the revolt here, the assassination attempt on Cpt. Walking Water, why did they attack tonight, and who all else is involved.” Looking over at my prisoners I feel my anger begin to rise. A hand gently grasps my shoulder. Looking over at who would dare place their hands on me, I see the peaceful calm of mother Dai Etsu. The look on her face is all I need to see. I cannot let my anger show. I must be the one to remain calm while others rage at the traitors. I must not let them know how much they have upset me; if I do then they will direct how this interrogation will flow.
With a calming breath I center myself, and then wave for the guards to bring the first traitor forward. “Sergeant I will ask you one time, and one time only. Who paid you to kill me?” when he does answer me I look over at the young female captain from the House troops. “Captain I need the use of your sword please?” when she begins to remove her katana from its scabbard the fool started to scream for his lawyer. “You want a lawyer do you? Will I am afraid you lost that right the moment you tried to use assassination to bring about a change of leadership. Captain if you would do the honors please?” with that simple request she brings her sword down across the back of his neck removing his head. “Thank you captain. Before we proceed further I would know your name and why you have such anger towards the men of your dead uncles’ former unit?”
“My Lady Nakatoma, I am Captain Gunma Konami. As for my anger with these dogs dressed as men, well I have had more than one complaint filed by the women of my company about sexual harassment, assault, assault & battery, attempted rape, and rape by the men of my uncle’s old unit that it sickens me. These men have not had to face justice of any kind. My uncle would merely dismiss the charges as the ‘flights of fantasy’ that only ‘a woman’ would have. Not a true warrior or samurai.” The anger this young woman had was justified. I will need to have the new Head Captain and the Commander for the House troops investigate these charges. Then if they are true bring the criminals before me to receive their punishment. “Before you ask my Lady the majority of those who participated in tonight’s crimes were the worst offenders. For too long the Head Captains Unit has had no one to force them to follow the U.C.M.J. or any form of law. They all believed that might made right the only person which they would answer to was a power hungry, greedy, and selfish old man with dreams of being the ‘true power’ on the throne.”
“Calm yourself Captain. I will still need your judgment in dealing with your cousins and their friends.” I wave for the next prisoner to be brought up. “I will give you the same chance as your friend there. Who paid you to kill me?” When he didn’t answer I looked to Cpt. Gunma and nodded my head. Her strike was just as swift as the last. Mother Dai Etsu has yet to say one word on how I have been handling the situation. “Mother Dai Etsu am I doing the right thing here? I feel as if I have been violating their rights to a fair trial.”
“No Child you are not; what you do here is not law but justice. These men betrayed the House that has clothed, housed, and fed them. Now put your mind at ease, and do your duty. Remember ‘Honor is light as a feather, Duty heavy as the mountain’.”
“Yes ma’am I remember. That was one of Matsu’s favorite sayings; she used it when I doubted what I was doing. If you’ll excuse me I need to finish with this unpleasantness.” Turning back to the proceedings I wave for the last two to be brought forward. When they were in front of me cut to the meat of the matter. “I do not care what you want or perceive as your right to a fair trial. You have one, I repeat one, chance at mercy. To receive it you will answer my questions and be truthful when you. Do you understand?” when they each nodded their heads yes. I guess seeing the heads removed from their partners in crime got the point across. “Who paid you to kill me?”
The one on the left answered first. “It was the Family of Vic. Lord High Marshal Blackstone. They paid us fifty thousand gold credits apiece.”
“So you sold your soul to the very people who have been raping the people of your home? Do you have no honor?!” I screamed at him. I had lost control of my anger. I felt my combat blades snap out to their full length. If it had not been for mother Dai Etsu placing her hands upon my shoulder I know for a fact that I would have gutted the man myself. Taking a deep, deep, breath to calm down and regain the inner peace I needed to show those around me. After a few moments I was once again calm enough to continue the interrogation. “Would you care to explain why they wanted me dead or did they even tell you?”
This time the other one answered it would seem I have scared the first moron so bad he had passed out. “They said that you were an imposter put here for the sole purpose of destroying House Nakatoma. That Lady Dai Etsu was being led astray by the O.E.C.H.  They told us that with you dead Lady Dai Etsu would be returned to her rightful place.”
“What else were you promised?” Maj. Howard asked before I could. 
When no answer came Maj. Howard reached over and grabbed him by the neck. Pulling the prisoner off the floor the Maj. began to beat the poor bastard about the head and shoulders. Every time Howard would hit the man he would repeat his question, the man never said another word. After a few minutes I called a halt to the beating. “Enough Maj. I need him alive for now.” Looking around at the gathered officers, both House and Bodyguard alike, all of them wanted to drive these two jokers into the ground with their bare hands. Time to see if either one is willing to talk. “Ok shitheads; let’s have a little more cooperation here. No need for you to lose your heads or other body parts. I just need you to answer my questions. Do you agree?” I wait for a few seconds to make sure they understood. “Now one more time, what else were you promised?”
“The Head of House for Blackstone would make us Captains in the House troops and the Kiel Head of House promised that the all of the women of this House would be sent back to where they belong.” Shithead 1 said. No this last bit really got my attention.
“Just where would that be my little man?” my face may have only shown a peaceful calm not betraying the anger that was boiling inside of me, but my voice was as cold and hard as the polar ice caps.
“Be at peace, child.” Mother Dai Etsu said from behind me. “Forgive the poor ignorant fool his misconceptions. I highly doubt for us to remain barefoot and pregnant. Why I’m sure he would have no problem with any position we took so long as we answer to a man.” Like me her face may show peaceful calm, her voice held the total heat of the flames in Hell. She maybe a pacifist, but she was still human. I believe if it was not for her vows this man would be missing his ability to reproduce. I swear to all that was holy and unholy the poor man lost control over his bladder. I know that I can put the fear of the gods in a person, but mother Dai Etsu makes me look like an amateur. “Now tell my niece that is a daughter to me exactly what you meant by return the women of this House to ‘where they belong’.”
If this man had the brains of a chipmunk he would keep his mount shut. “The women of this House by trying to unnaturally assume the rightful positions of men and have torn down the very foundations of this Family and House. Your father should have married you off like he did your sister. Better he had appointed one of the males from the lesser family members than to have let either you or that whore of a sister that thing there claims as a grandmother.” I snapped this time. With a scream of rage, pain, and hunger for vengeance. I extended my combat blades, and then proceeded to peel the skin from his body one inch at a time. No one tried to stop me. As I sliced the flesh from his body I demanded answers to questions that were asked by those around me. I did not care if he told us anything or not I just wanted vengeance for the lives this man had destroyed. I didn’t care if he lives or not when I was done. Over half his skin had been removed by my hand. He was a bloody mess and I didn’t care. I was covered in body fluids and I didn’t care. My robes were ruined and I didn’t care. I had answers to questions, valuable intelligence, and I didn’t care. I had ripped the information from this man by the use of torture. I had crossed a line, that twenty five years ago I would have never even come within a mile of, but tonight I had not even though once about. Still I didn’t care. All I knew was I had begun my quest for vengeance, and there was nothing that I would not do to reach it. Surprisingly this though doesn’t upset me.
“Charley Dee De why am I not upset with my actions here? I should at least feel bad about what I have done to this man but I feel nothing. Do either one of you know why?”
Sorry honey I don’t have e a clue. (Dee De)
Unfortunately Commander Nakatoma I believe that I do. (Charley)
“What is it Charley you don’t sound happy about whatever it is.”
I have just found a subroutine in the behavioral program. From what I have discovered this subroutine will remove whatever behavioral blocks that will get in the way of you doing whatever it takes to achieve your mission goals. (Charley)
“So what your telling me is that I will have no inhibitions to doing whatever it takes to succeed and not blow our cover right?”
As Dee De says you got it one. (Charley)
I have only one though upon hearing this. OH SHIT! That crazy behavioral program has turned me into the Galaxy’s most heavily armed biggest amoral girly-girl sociopath with access to an entire planetary military at her full disposal with no questions asked. Sweat Mother of God! HELP!!!!!!!!!!
---------------------------------To Be Continued---------------------------------------
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